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; ‘M..K- SURANA & CO. 20, SYNAGOGUE STREET

2nd FLOOR, KOLKATA-700 001
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ‘ TELE. : 2210-3203/3235

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements _

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT
PRIVATE LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregutarities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of internal financial control, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into
account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be
included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the
financial statements that give true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by-Eompany’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. D
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements, give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India;

a) inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2016;

b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

c) inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 issued by Central Government of India in terms of
Sub Section (11) of Section 143 of the Act on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the said order, we
further report that-

i The company does not have any fixed assets, hence the clause is not applicable

ii. As explained to us, the inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals.
No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

iii. a)  The company has granted unsecured loans to parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.

b) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the company’s
interest.

¢)  Theloan being repayable on demand, clause regarding schedule of repayment is not applicable.
No party has defaulted in repayment of loan and interest accrued thereon.

iii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is adequate
internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business
with regard to purchase of inventory, fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. During the
course of our Audit, we have not come across any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in
the aforesaid internal control system.

iv) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that, the Company has not has neither given any
guarantees nor any security to any party covered in the register maintained under section 185 or 186.
No loan has been given by company in violation of section 185. Further, loan given and investment
made are in compliance with section 186.

v) The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and
the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and
the rules framed there under are not appIicab/lgff
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vii)

viii)

ix)

X)

xi)

xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

xv)

xvi)

The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central
government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

a) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information
and explanations given to us, in our opinion the company has generally been regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including income tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty
of excise, cess and any other material statutory dues. There are no undisputed statutory dues
unpaid for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable. Taxes not
stated are not applicable to the company.

b) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to information and
explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income tax, service tax, which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute. . Taxes not stated are not applicable to the
company.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks. Further the company does not
have any outstanding from financial institution not had issued any debentures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, neither any money was raised by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) nor any term loan has been
raised, hence the clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud by the

company nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or reported during the
year.

As examined by us, the company has not paid remuneration to managerial personnel during the
period in accordance with the requisite approval mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that all the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has neither
made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares nor fully or partly convertible

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Hence clause
is not applicable.

According to the information and expianations given to us, we report that company is not required to
be registered u/s 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and has obtained such registration.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

s
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As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2016 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2016 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financials reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure A.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us:

a) There are no pending litigations against the Company.

b) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

¢} There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M.K SURANA & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd. No. 324127E

£
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Kirti Kumar Surana

Partner

Membership No.061605

20, Synagogue Street, Kolkata - 700001
Date, The 28th day of May 2016




ANNEXURE A - REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (1) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF
SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

To the Members of BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of BHAGWATI BUILDERS &
DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED as of 31 March 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of thé accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of interna!
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those poli i6s.and ocedures that




i) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately |and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

ii) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necegsary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and those receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company.

iii) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection jof unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a naterial effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal finantial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial contiol over financial
! reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31 March 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M.K SURANA & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd. No. 324127E

b o Mem - T

Kirti Kumar Surana

Partner

Membership No 061605

20, Synagogue Street, Kolkata — 700001
Date, The 28th day of May 2016
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8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata-700001

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2016

BHAGWAT! BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Note As at ~ Asat
No. 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
| EQUITY & LIABILITIES

1. Shareholders' Funds 1

a) Share Capital 272,000 272,000

b) Reserves & Surplus 75,893,921 76,165,921 68,314,424 68,586,424
2. Non Current Liabilities 2

a) Long Term Borrowings -— -

b) Other Long Term Liabilities 8,400,000 8,400,000 900,000 900,000
3. Current Liabilities 3

a) Short Term Borrowings 692,000 692,000

b) Trade Payables 1,283,381 1,234,581

c) Other Current Liabilities 60,992,608 78,314,440

d) Short Term Provisions 1,250,000 64,217,989 1,261,000 81,502,021

Total 148,783,910 150,988,445
Il ASSETS

1. Non Current assets

a) Long Term Loans & Advances 4 16,585,888 17,717,078
2. Current Assets’ 5

a) Inventories 57,255,180 58,664,382

b) Trade Receivables 34,531,085 56,600,060

c) Cash & Cash Equivalennts 1,594,956 3,075,352

d) Short Term Loans and Advances 38,552,529 14,128,293

e) Other Current Assets 264,272 132,198,022 803,280 133,271,367

Total 148,783,910 150,988,445
The Notes forming part of the Financial
Statement 1310 21

For M.K.SURANA & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 324127E

VLV\_F L o -

Kirti Kumar Surana
Partner

Membership No.061605
20 Synagogue Street
Kolkata - 700 001

Jau—

-{28th Day of May, 2016 .

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board

BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PVT, LTD.

.

S Bredeop Vs

Directat
Director

BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PYT, LTO.

PRy

Directof
Director




BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata-700001

Statement of Profit & Loss For The Year Ended 31st March, 2016

Note For the Period For the Period
No. 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
1 REVENUE
Revenue From Operations 6 10,438,822 33,616,221
Other Income 7 2,353,749 336,779
Total Revenue 12,792,571 33,953,000
2 EXPENSES
Construction activity expenses 8 1,200,504 2,390,862
Changes in Inventories of Finised Goods, Work
in Progress & Stock in Trade 9 1,409,203 25.391,766
Employee Benefits Expense 10 889,805
Finance Costs 11 2,679 2,037
Others Expenses 12 460,948 197,302
Total Expenses 3,963,139 27,981,967
PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 8,829,433 5,971,033
3 TAXEXPENSES

a) Current Tax 1,250,000 1,261,000 ‘

b) Tax for EarlierYear (64.00) 1,249,936 1,261,000
PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAX 7,579,497 4,710,033
Profit/(L oss) From Disontinuing Operations

Provision for Income Tax Written Back -

4 PROFIT /(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 7,579,497 4,710,033
EARNINGS PER SHARE ( 10 PER SHARE)
Basic 278.66 173.16
Diluted 278.66 173.16
The Notes forming part of the Financial Statement 13to0 21
This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For M.K.SURANA & CO For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELCPMENT PYT.LTD.  BMAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPHET PV 110,
Firm Reg. No. 324127E . .
o C o Padep Higer e b
T Ve . \/ ; W
W o . Directot w‘& Dir¢ctof
Kirti-Kumar Surana e e Director Director
Partner S
Membership No.061605 L
20 Synagogue Street ;{ o
Kolkata - 700 001 %l
28th Day of May,2016 S
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ash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March, 2016

fAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

For the year ended
Cash Flow Statement 31st March,2016

For the year ended
31st March,2015

{(Amount in *)

(Amount in *)

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation & Amortisation -
Interest provided capitalised under Inventories ——

Fixed Assets written off -
Net Unrealised Exchange (Gain) / Loss -

8,829,433

1,298,462

Interest Received (2,353,749) (231,270)

6,167

Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes
Changes in working capital:

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Short-Term Provisions -
Long-Term Provisions -

(2,353,749)
6,475,684

Inventories 1,408,203 24,093,304
Trade Receivables 22,068,975 436,842
Long-Term Loans & Advances 1,131,190 (757,000)
Other Current Assets (28,898) ——

Trade Payables 48,800 51,668
Other Current Liabilities (17,321,832) 21,679,422
Other Long-Term Liabilities 7,500,000 (35,735,000)

Cash Flow from Extraordinary ltems
Cash Generated from Operations
Net Income Tax (Paid) / Refunds
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities :
Sale / (Purchase) of Fixed Assets —

Cash Flow From Extraordinary ltems —

5,971,033

1,073,359

14,807,438
21,283,121

(693,030)
20,590,091

Short-Term Loans & Advances (24,424,236) 19,966,934
Interest Received / (Paid) 2,353,749 231,270

(22,070,487)

7,044,392

9,769,236

16,813,628

(1,016,999)

45,796,629

20,198,204

Net cash from Investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long-Term Borrowings -
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short-Term Borrowings -
Cash Flow From Extraordinary items -~

(22,070,487)

(33,811,383)

20,198,204

(33,811,383)

Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance

Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance

(1,480,396)
3,075,352
1,594,956
1,594,956

(33,811,383)

2,183,450
891,902

3,075,352

3,075,352

CASH AND CASH EQUIVELANTS COMPRISE:
Cash on Hand
Balances with Scheduled Banks on:

Current Accounts

Cheque in Hand

631,243

963,713

1,594,956

1,866,102

1,109,250

3,075,352

This is the Statement of Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

Firm Reg. No. 324127E

- [
LY FUR

o e - o2 o dep ive

Kirti Kumar Surana L

Partner S _

Membership No.061605 - Director
20 Synagogue Street
Kolkata - 700 001
28th Day of May,2016

0

M.K.SURANA & CO For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants BHAGWATE BUILDERS & DEVELOPHEHT PYT. LTD,

ST

Director \I‘M W

Director

BHAGWAT! BUILDERS & DEVELSPIFENT PV i 0.

Directot




BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATAE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statement

As at
31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

Notes No. "2" Non Current Liabilities
e NO. < WNon Current Liabilities

a) Long Term Borrowings

b) Others Long Term Liabilities
Security Deposit
Advance Against Properties

Notes No. "3" Current Liabilities
a) Short Term Borrowings

From Body Corporate
a) Related Parties
1) Holding Company
2) Others
b) Others

b) Trade Payables
- To Micro, Small & Medium Enterprise
- To other than Micro, Small & Medium Enterprise

¢) Other Current Liabilities

Advance From Customers
Bank Over Draft
TDS & Professional Tax & Service Tax Payable

d) Short Term Provisions
Provision for Income Tax

900,000
7,500,000
8,400,000

692,000

692,000

1,283,381

1,283,381

60,961,205
1,264
30,140
60,992,608

1,250,000
1,250,000

900,000

900,000

692,000

692,000

1,234,581

1,234,581

78,219,293
4,264
90,883

78,314,440

1,261,000

1,261,000




BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statement

|Notes No. - "4" Fixed Assets Figure in "
Description GROSS BLOCK ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
of As at Additions Duduction As at Upto For Duduction Upto As at As at
Tangible 1st April During the | During the | 31st March | 31st March During During the | 31st March | 31st March | 31st March
Assets 2,015 Year Year 2,016 2,015 { the Period Year 2,016 2,016 2,015
i) Tangible Assets
Furniture & Fixtures 41,850 — 41,850 — 41,850 -— 41,850 — — -
Sub Total 41,850 - 41,850 - 41,850 - 41,850 - - —--
ii) Intangible Assets
Sub Total —ve -~ — -—- —— - - - - -
Grand Total 41,850 ——— 41,850 —— 41,850 - 41,850 - —— -
Previous Year 41,850 — - 41,850 - (6,167) 41,850 — 6,167

\

-

35,683




= / 'BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

/2 Notes to the Financial Statement

As at As at
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
/ 3 . ;
Notes No. "5" Long Term Loans & Advances
Advance Against Land 16,481,000 17,612,190
Security Deposit at WBSEDCL 104,888 104,888
16,585,888 17,717,078
Notes No. "6" Current Assets
a) Inventories
Work in Progress 39,506,066 38,305,563
Finised Stock 17,749,114 20,358,819
| 57,255,180 | | 58,664,382 |
b) Trade Receivables
(Unsecured, considered good)
Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six L
months
b) Other Debts 34,531,085 56,600,060
Grand Total (A + B) 34,531,085 56,600,060
c) Cash & Cash Equivalents
i) Balance with Bank
Current Accounts 963,713 1,109,250
ii) Cash in Hand
Cash in hand (As certified by management) 631,243 1,966,102
: 1,594,956 3,075,352
d) Short Term Loans and Advances
Advances Recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be
received
a) Related Parties
b) Others —— 245 149
Loan Given
a) Related Parties
1) Holding Company - -
2) Others —- -
b) Others 38,552,529 13,883,144
38,552,529 14,128,293
e) Other Current Assets
Advance Against Service Taxes 28,898 -
Advance, Self Assessment Tax & TDS Receivable 235,374 803,280
‘ 264,272 803,280




BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statement

For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
Notes No. - "7" Revenue From Operations
a) Sales of Construction 7,383,548 21,759,852
b) Sale of Land — -—
c) Sale of Services 3,055,274 11,856,369
10,438,822 33,616,221
Notes No. - "8" Other Income
a) Interest Received
i) Related Parties
1) Holding Company - -
2) Others - -
ii) Others 2,353,749 231,270
b) Miscellaneous Income - 105,509
2,353,749 336,779
Notes No. - "9" Construction activity expenses
i) Cost of Land & Development Charges 1,200,504
ii) Construction and Other Materials -
ii) Labour Charges -—- -
iv) Other Construction Expenses — 852,879
v) Professional Charges o 239,521
vi) Interest Paid on Loan (Holding Co.) - 1,039,496
vii} Interest Paid on Loan (Others) - 258,966
1,200,504 2,390,862
Notes No. - "10" Changes in Inventories of Finised Goods,
Work in Progress & Stock in Trade
A) Opening Stock '
Work In Progress 38,305,563 38,305,561
Finished Goods 20,358,819 45,750,587
Total (A) 58,664,382 84,056,148
B) Closing Stock
Work In Progress 39,506,066 38,305,563
Finished Goods 17,749,114 20,358,819
Total (B) 57,255,180 58,664,382
(A-B) 1,409,203 25,391,766
Notes No. - "11" Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages, Bonus, Exgratia etc. 889,805 —
Staff Welfare Expenses ——
889,805
Notes No. - "12" Finance Costs
Bank Charges 2,679 2,037
Interest Paid to Holding Company ——
Interest Paid to Others — ——
2,679 2,037




Notes to the Financial Statement

BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

For the Year Ended

- 31st March, 2016

For the Year Ended
31st March, 2015

Notes No. - "13" Others Expenses

a) Adminstration Expenses
Statutory Audit Fees

Tax Audit Fees
Travelling & Conveyance
Filing Fees
General Expenses
Office Electricity Expenses
Office Rent
Postage, Telegraph & Telephones
Printing & Stationery
Legal & Professional Fees
Fixed Assets Wiritten Off
Rates & Taxes
Tota (A)
b) Marketing Expenses
Advertisement & Publicity
Commission & Brokarage
Other Marketing Expenses
Tota (B)

Grand Total (A + B)

5,000 5,000
2,500 2,500
3,214 10,890
1,368 6,590
3,655 3,989
12,000 23,000
60,000 115,000
2,580 2,065
8,540 7,601
187,800 10,100
- 6,167
4,423 4,400
291,080 197,302
90,157 -
79,711 -
169,868.00 -
460,948 197,302
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|Bhagv;vatl Builders & Development Pvt Ltd
The Notes forming part of the Financial Statement

14.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all the material aspects with Accounting Standards nofified by Central
Govemnment u/s 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 rules made there under and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The
financial statement has been prepared under historical cost convention on an accrual basis in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP). The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the company except otherwise stated and are
consistent with those used in previous year.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set
outin Schedule Hl of the Companies Act, 2013. The normal operating cycle has been considered as 12 months.

B. USE OF ESTIMATES
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date and amounts of
income and expenses during the year. Examples of such estimates include contract costs expected to be incurred to complete construction
contracts, provision for doubtful debts, income taxes and future obligations under employee retirement benefit plans. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. The effects of adjustment arising from revisions made to the estimates are included in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the year in which such revisions are made.

C. REVENUE RECOGNITION
a) Revenue from own construction projects are recognised on percentage of completion method. Units for which agreement for sale
is executed till reporting date are considered for it. Revenue recognition starts when 20% of estimated project cost excluding tand
and marketing cost is incurred. Further, units for which Deed of Conveyance is executed or possession is given, revenue is
recognised to full extent. :
b) Revenue from Joint Venture Development Agreement under work sharing arrangements are recognized on the same basis as
similar to own construction projects independently executed by the company to the extent of the company’s share in joint venture.

c) Revenue from Construction Contracts are recognised on percentage of completion method measured by reference to the survey
of works done up to the reporting date and certified by the client before finalisation of projects accounts.
¢ d) Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services to customers except otherwise stated.
e) Rental income from assets is recognized for an accrual basis except in case where ultimate coliaction is considered doubtful.

f) Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis. Interest on delayed payment from customers is recognised when realised

9) Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax and value added tax, if any, net of sales return
h) Rental Income: Rental Income is exclusive of Service Tax

D. FIXED ASSETS
Fixed Assets, -including those given on lease, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, il any. Cost
comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Software is capitalized, where it is expected to provide fulure enduring economic benefits,

Leasehold land under perpetual lease is not amortized. Lease hold land other than on perpetual lease is being amortized on time proportion
basis over their respective lease periods. :

E. DEPRECIATION

Depreciation is provided on depreciable value (cost minus residual value) using straight line method in the manner that the asset is
depreciated over the useful life stated in "Schedule - Il " of Companies Act, 2013.

F. INVESTMENTS
All investments are bifurcated into Non Current investments and Current [nvestments. Investments that are readily realisable and intended to
be held for not more than a year from the date of Balance Sheet are classified as Current Investments. All other investments are classified
as Non Current Investments. Current Investments are carried at lower of cost or fair market value, deterimined on an individual investment
basis. Non Current Investments are carried at cost. Provision for Diminution in the value of Non Current Investments is made, only if such a
diminution is other than temporary.

G. INVENTORIES
a) Finished Goods: At iower of cost or net realisable value.
b) Work-in-Progress: At lower of cost or net realisable value.
Cost comprises of cost of land and development, material cost including material lying at respective sites, construction expenses,
finance and administrative expenses which contribute to bring the inventory to their present location and condition.

Provision for obsolescence in inventories is made, wherever required.
Work-in-progress- Real Estate projects (including land inventory): represents cost incurred in respect of unsold  area of the real
astale davelopment projects or costs incurred on projects where revenue is to be recognized.

Work-in-progress- Contractuat: represents cost of work done yet to be certified / billed.

H. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three
months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value,

3 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
i) Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax and value added tax, if any, net of sales return.
if) Rental Income: Rental income is exclusive of service tax.




15.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTION
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of transactions or that approximates
the actual rate at the date of transactions.
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in the statement of profit and loss for

tha pariod.
Transactions which remain unsetiled at the reporting date and reported at rates prevailing as at reporting date and any exchange gain / loss

is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
[}] Short term employee benefits:
Short term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, expected cost of ex-gratia etc. are recognized in the period in
which the employee renders the related service.
i) Post-employment benefits
a) Defined Contribution Plan: Employse penefits in the form of Employees State Insurance Corporation and Provident
Fund are considered as defined contribution plan and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
for the period when the contributions to the respective funds are due.

b) Defined Benefit Plan: Employee benefits in the form of Gratuity is considered as defined benefit plan and are provided
for on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method, as at the Balance Sheet
date as per requirements of Accounting Standard-15 (Revised 2005) on “Employee Benefits”.

fii) Actuarial gainsfiosses, if any, are immediately recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

TAXATION
a) Current Tax: Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year in accordance with
the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Minimum Alternative Tax credit available under section 115JB of the Income Tax Act,
1661 will be accounted In the year in which the benefits are claimed.

b) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognised subject to consideration of prudence on the basis of timing differences being the
differences between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more
subsequent periods using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantialiy enacted as on the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that the asset will be
realised in future.’

PROVISIONS/CONTINGENCIES

A provision is recognised for a present obligation as a result of past events if it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
seftle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based on best estimate of the
amount required to settle the obligation as at the Balance Sheet date. Liabilities which are material and whose future outcome cannot be
ascertained with reasonable certainty are treated as contingent liability and are disclosed by way of note.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the same exceeds its recoverable amount. impairment is charged to the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of the recoverable amount.

Earnings per share
Earnings per share is computed as under:- As at As at

31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

Profit / (Loss) after Taxation (A) (Rs) 7,579,487 4,710,033

VVeighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding

Paid up Equity Shares 27,200 27,200
Pending Allotment - =
Total Equity Shares (B) (Nos.) 27,200 27,200
Earnings per share (Face value of ~ 10/- per share)

a) Basic & Diluted (A/B) (Rs) 278.66 173.16

e




16. Segment Reporting:-
a) The Business of the company falls under a single segment i.e, Development of Real Estate & Infrastructure”, In view of the general
classification issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India for Companies operating in single segment, the disclosure
requirement not applicable to the company.
b) The Company's business is mainly concentrated in simifar geographical, political and economical conditions; hence disclosure for
Geographical segment is not required.

17. Related Party Disclosures:-
In terms of Accounting Standard-18 are as under:

(0] Other related parties with whom the company had transactions:-
A} Holding Company
Sk No. Name Holding Percentage
1 RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited 100%
()] Disclosure of fransactions between the Company and related parties and the balances as on 31.03.18 Amount in {Rs)
31-Mar-2018 Amount in (Rs)
Nature of Transactions Holding Company Key Management Enterprises over which KMP
Personnel & their & their relatives have
Relatives significant influence
2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 201415 2015-16 2014-15
interest Paid - 1,039,496 - - . -
Short Term Borrowings Received - 26,400,000 . . - —
Short Term Borrowings Repaid - 60,903,383 - -— -
Closing Balance
Short Term Borrowings Taken - - e . P
18. The Company is in communication with its suppliers to ascertain the applicabitity of “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development

Act, 2006". As on the date of this Balance Sheet the Company has not received any communications from any of its suppliers regarding the
applicability of the Act to them.

19. interest amounting to Rs NiL (Previous Year Rs 1,039,496/-) paid on loans taken for real estate projects has been included in the value of
inventory.
20. In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated value if realised in ordinary course of

business. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary. There is no contingent
liability except stated and informed by the Management.

21. The figures of Previous Year have been recast and regrouped wherever considered necessary.
FOR : M.K.SURANA & CO For and on behaif of the Board
Chartered Accountants BHABWATI Bl & . - e e S
Firm Reg. No. 324127E BHACRAT) wiztec.. ’ ' y BHAGWATE BUILDER G «. &

o Vo L. (;) !\»J» fb’aolm)o Myevr w MJ\E

Kirti Kumar Surana iran: leCCtOt
Partner s e

Membership No.061605 e Director Director

20 Synagogue Street Tl

Kolkata - 700 001
28th Day of May,2016
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M. K. SURANA & CO. 20, SYNAGOGUE STREET

2nd FLOOR, KOLKATA-700 001
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS - TELE. : 2210-3203/3235

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
BHAGWATI PLASTO WORKS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bhagwati Plasto Works Private Limited (‘the
company”),which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of internal financial control, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from materal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into
account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be
included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the
financial statements that give true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by: Compar
presentation of the financial statements. b

Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements, give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India;

a) inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2016;

b) inthe case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

¢) inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 issued by Central Government of India in terms of

Sub Section {11) of Section 143 of the Act on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the said order, we
further report that-

i. a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

b) As explained to us Fixed Assets of the company are physically verified by the management
according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items which considering the size
and nature of operations of the company appears 1o be reasonable. Pursuant to such
program, no material discrepancies between book records and physical inventory have been
noticed on physical verification.

c) The company does not have any immovable property under the head fixed assets, hence
clause is not applicable.

ii. As explained to us, the inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals.
No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

iit. a) The company has granted unsecured loans to parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.

b) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the company’s
interest.

)  Theloan being repayable on demand, clause regarding schedule of repayment is not applicable.
No party has defaulted in repayment of loan and interest accrued thereon.

iiii) in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to US, there is adequate
internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business
with regard to purchase of inventory, fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. During the
course of our Audit, we have not come across any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in
the aforesaid internal control system.

iv) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that, the Company has not has neither given any
guarantees nor any security to any party covered.in the register maintained under section 185 or 186.




vi)

vii)

viii)

ix)

xi)

xii)

xiii)

xiv)

No loan has been given by company in violation of section 185. Further, loan given and investment
made are in compliance with section 186.

The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and
the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and
the rules framed there under are not applicable.

The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central
government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

a) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information
and explanations given to us, in our opinion the company has generally been regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including income tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty
of excise, cess and any other material statutory dues. There are no undisputed statutory dues
unpaid for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable. Taxes not
stated are not applicable to the company.

b) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to information and
explanations given to Us, there are no dues in respect of income tax, service tax, which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute. . Taxes not stated are not applicable to the
company.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks. Further the company does not
have any outstanding from financial institution not had issued any debentures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, neither any money was raised by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) nor any term loan has been
raised, hence the clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud by the

company nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or reported during the
year.

As examined by us, the company has not paid remuneration to managerial personnel during the
period in accordance with the requisite approval mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that all the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has neither
made any preferential ailotment or private . placement of shares nor fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year under review. kjéh}:fé%hﬂ*s‘éishofc applicable.
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According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Hence clause
is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that company is not required to
be registered u/s 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and has obtained such registration.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company sO farasit
appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2016 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2016 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financials reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure A.

With respect to the other matters to be inciuded in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us:

a) There are no pending litigations against the Company.

b) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

¢) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M.LK SURANA & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd. No. 324127E
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Kirti Kumar Surana

Partner

Membership No.061605

20, Synagogue Street, Kolkata - 700001
Date, The 28th day of May 2016




ANNEXURE A - REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE () OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF
SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

To the Members of BHAGWATI PLASTO WORKS PRIVATE LIMITED

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of BHAGWATI PLASTO WORKS
PRIVATE LIMITED as of 31 March 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Iindia. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and

completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate

internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected

depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financia! reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

i) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.




ii) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and those receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company.

iiii) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31 March 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M.K SURANA & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd. No. 324127E

VRN ~— =

Kirti Kumar Surana

Partner

Membership No.061605

20, Synagogue Street, Kolkata — 700001
Date, The 28th day of May 2016
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BHAGWATI PLASTO WORKS PRIVATE LIMITED
/1. Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata-700001

8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata-700001

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2016

Note As at As at
No. 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015

EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders' Funds 1

a) Share Capital 11,036,000 11,036,000

b) Reserves & Surplus 53,092,075 64,128,075 42 569,491 53,605,491
2. Non Current Liabilities 2

a) Long Term Borrowings -—- -

b) Other Long Term Liabilities 37,989,035 37,989,035 32,989,035 32,989,035
3. Current Liabilities 3

a) Short Term Borrowings 9,502,184 13,857,497

b) Trade Payables 1,348,305 5,823,218

c) Other Current Liabilities 24,255,568 23,617,381

d) Short Term Provisjons 3,018,479 38,124,536 5,610,000 48,908,096

Total 140,241,646 135,502,622
Il ASSETS

1. Non Current assets

a) Fixed Assets 4

i) Tangible Assets
ii) Intangible Assets —— “-- —

b) Non Current Investments 5 360,000 360,000

¢) Long Term Loans & Advances 6 126,571 121,002
2. Current Assets 7

a) Inventories 118,971,078 114,733,256

b) Trade Receivables 8,291,432 8,717,515

¢) Cash & Cash Equivalents 3,612,778 2,493,246

d) Short Term Loans and Advances 7,090,151 7,219,789

e) Other Current Assets 1,789,637 139,755,075 1,857,814 135,021,620

Total - 140,241,646 135,502,622
The Notes forming part of the Financial
Statement

In terms of our report attached.

For M.LK.SURANA & CO
Chartered Accountants

The 28th day of May 2016

for BRAGWATI PLASTD WORKS PVT. LTO,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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BHAGWATI PLASTO WORKS PRIVATE LIMITED
8/1. Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata-700001

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,2016

Note For the Period For the Year Ended
No. 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
1 REVENUE
Revenue From Operations 8 1,294,793 14,416,138
Other Income 9 14,151,673 13,899,920
Total Revenue 15,446,466 28,316,058
2 EXPENSES
Construction activity expenses 10 4,237,822 32,283,330
Changes in Inventories of Finised Goods,
Work in Progress & Stock in Trade " (4,237,822) (28,244,130)
Employee Benefits Expenses 12 480,610 424,061
Finance Costs 13 1,444,838 1,963,959
Depreciation 4 -
Others Expenses 14 568,635 1,531,063
Total Expenses 2,494,083 8,028,283
PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 12,952,383 20,287,775
3 TAX EXPENSES
a) Current Tax 3,018,479 5,610,000 |
b) Tax Adjusted for EarlierYear (588,680) 2,429,799 1,600,204 7,210,204
PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAX 10,522,584 13,077,571
EARNINGS PER SHARE (OF ~ PER SHARE)
Basic 9.53 11.85
Diluted 9.53 11.85
The Notes forming part of the Financial Statement

In terms of our report attached.

For M.K.SURANA & CO
Chartered Accountants

)/\\,)/ [ —

Kirti Kumar Surana

Partner

Membership No.061605

20, Synagogue Street,2nd Floor,
Kolkata - 700 001.

The 28th day of May 2016
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BHAGWATI PLASTO WORKS PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March, 2016

For the year ended For the year ended
Cash Flow Statement 31st March,2016 31st March,2015

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax 12,952,383 20,287,775
Adjustments for:
Depreciation & Amortisation -
Interest Paid on Loan 1,444,838 1,963,959
Sundry Balance Written Off / (Write Back) —— -
Other Non-Cash Charges (Specify) e 324
Net Unrealised Exchange (Gain) / Loss
1,444,838 1,964,283
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 14,397,221 22,252,058
Changes in working capital:

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories (4,237,821) (28,244,130)
Trade Receivables 426,083 2,319,064
Short-Term Loans & Advances 197,815 8,731,759
Long-Term Loans & Advances (5,569) ) (99,553)

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade Payables (4,474,913) 5,257,928
Other Current Liabilities 638,187 (4,784,078)
Other Long-Term Liabilities 5,000,000 1,558,500
Short-Term Provisions (2,591,521) 5,131,884
Long-Term Provisions

(5,047,739) (10,128,626)

Cash Flow from Extraordinary Items 9,349,482 12,123,432

Cash Generated from Operations -- -

(h Net Income Tax (Paid) / Refunds (2,429,799) (7,210,204)

Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A) 6,919,683

4,913,228

B. Cash flow from investing activities :
Sale / (Purchase) of Fixed Assets - —
Sale / (Purchase) of Long-Term Investments - —
Loans Realised / (Given) — —
Cash Flow From Extraordinary Items —— -

Net cash from investing activities - —

C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long-Term Borrowings —— -

Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short-Term Borrowings (5,800,151) (5,229,317)
Cash Flow From Extraordinary ltems —— (5,800,151) - (6,229,317)
Net cash generated/(used) [n financing activities (5,800,151) (5,229,317)
Net increase/(decrease) In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,119,532 (316,089)
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 2,493,246 2,809,335
3,612,778 2,493,246
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance 3,612,778 2,493,246
CASH AND CASH EQUIVELANTS COMPRISE:
Cash on Hand 133,111 77,893
Balances with Scheduled Banks on;
Current Accounts 1,262,957 1,039,442
N Fixed Deposit Account 2,216,710 1,375,911
3,612,778 2,493,246
Notes:

(i) The Cash Flow Statement reflects the combined cash flows pertaining to continuing and discounting operations.
(i) These earmarked account balances with banks can be utilised only for the specific identified purposes.

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached.

For M.K.SURANA & CO
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors A .

- for BHAGWAT) PLASTO WORKS PVY. LTD,  ror BHAGWATI PLASTD WOHKS PVI. L.TD

l& N "&f . . \ -
/ : " fidh P ‘," et r\ j&g Y }n’“ ¢ 6 " Cl«‘,.;x{ ﬂ‘ka-.-/"‘d‘u‘,

Kirti Kumar Surana 1t Y‘LJ ecp ¥ N ARG LS ?/“"’“
Partner Dlrectof Directot
Membership No.061605 Director Director

20, Synagogue Street,2nd Fioor,
Kolkata - 700 001.
The 28th day of May 2016




BHAGWATI PLASTO WORKS PRIVATE LIMITED
, Notes to the Financial Statement

As at

31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

Notes No. 1 Shareholders’' Funds

a) Share Capital

Authorised

12,50,000 Equity Shares of * 10/- each

(Previous Year 12,50,000 Equity Shares of * 10/- each)

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
11,03,600 Equity Shares of * 10/- each

12,500,000

12,500,000

11,036,000

11,036,000

12,500,000

12,500,000

11,036,000

11,036,000

i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstandin

at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Equity shares with voting rights

Opening Balance

Opening Balance

Year ended 31 March, 2016

- Number of shares 1,103,600 1,103,600

- Amount () 11,036,000 11,036,000
Year ended 31 March, 2016

- Number of shares 1,103,600 1,103,600

- Amount (*) 11,036,000 11,036,000

i) Details of shares held by the holding company, the ultimate holding company, their subsidiaries and associates:

Particulars [ Name of the Company | Number of Equity shares with] Number of Equity shares
Period As at 31 March, 2016 As at 31 March, 2015
. RDB Realty &
Holding Company Infrastructure Limited 562,870 56?,870
Ultimate Holding Company None
Subsidiaries of the Holding Company | None
Associates of the Holding Company None
Subsidiaries of the ultimate None --
Associates of the ultimate None

(iv) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares.

iiiy Arrears of fixed cumulative dividends on preference shares as at 31 March, 2016 * Nil (As at 31 March, 2015 Nil)

As at 31 March, 2016

As at 31 March, 2015

. P
Name of shareholder Equity shares with voting rights Number of % holding in that Number of| % holding in
shares shares that class of
class of shares
held held shares
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd. 562,870 51% 562,870 51%
Raj Kumar Jaiswal 104,500 9% 104,500 9%
Ram Gopal Manpuria (HUF) 80,000 7% 80,000 7%
Shree Prakash Manpuria (HUF) 74,000 7% 74,000 7%
Arjun Patra (HUF) 61,800 6% 61,800 6%

(v) Shares Reserved for Issue under option As at 31 March, 2016 are Nil (Previous Year Nil)

(vi) No Equity or Preferance shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received
in cash for the period of 5 years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date.

As at

31st March, 2016

As at
31st March, 2015

b) Reserves & Surplus

Securities Premium
Opening Balance
Profit & loss Account
Opening Balance

As per annexed account e

9,968,000

32,601,491
10,522,584

53,092,075

9,968,000

19,623,920
13,077,571

42,569,491




BHAGWATI PLASTO WORKS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statement
’ As at As at
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
Notes No. ""2" Non Current Liabilities
Others Long Term Liabilities
4 Security Deposit 4,271,035 4,271,035
Advance Against Properties 33,718,000 28,718,000
37,989,035 32,989,035
Notes No. “3" Current Liabilities
a) Short Term Borrowings
a) Related Parties 2,553,907 7,737,661
(Includes interest Rs. 5,18,015 /-, Prv.Yr: Rs.18,12,133/-)
b) Others 6,048,277 6,119,836
(Includes interest Rs. 9,20,490/-, Prv.Yr: R. 1,33,1561/-) 9,502,184 13,857,497
b) Trade Payables
Sundry Creditors:
- Goods 1,050,504 1,050,504
- Services / Expenses - 297,801 4,772,714
1,348,305 5,823,218
c) Other Current Liabilities
Advance From Customers 24,014,217 23,295,771
Retention Money -
Outstanding Statutory Payment 241,351 321,610
: 24,255,568 23,617,381
d) Short Term Provisions '
Provision for taxation 3,018,479 5,610,000
3,018,479 5,610,000
Notes No. ""5" Non Current Investments
Long Term Investment in - Non Trade
Unquoted Equity Shares Face Value Nos. Cost () Nos. Cost ()
Daiton Kunj Private Limited T 10 40,000 80,000 40,000 80,000
Manavata Vyapaar Private Limited £ 10 50,000 100,000 50,000 100,000
Perci Fashion Private Limited T 10 90,000 180,000 90,000 180,000
TOTAL 180,000 360,000 180,000 360,000
Aggregate book cost of unquoted investments Rs. 360,000 360,000
Notes No. "6" Long Term Loans & Advances
a) Capital Advances
Total A T
b) Security Deposits
Deposit With Sales Tax Dept
Security Deposit at CESC 126,571 121,002
Total B 126,571 121,002
Grand Total (A + B) 126,571 121,002




BHAGWATI PLASTO WORKS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statement
) As at As at
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
Notes No. "7" Current Assets
a) Inventories
Work In Progress(As Certified By Management) 118,971,078 114,733,256
118,971,078 114,733,256
b) Trade Receivables
(Unsecured, considered good)
i) Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six
months
a) Rent Receivable 3,356,421 2,983,541
b) Other Debts 668,678 3,958,740
Total A 4,025,099 6,942,281
if) Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six
months
a) Rent Receivable 723,755 723,755
b) Other Debts 3,642,578 1,051,479
Total B 4,266,333 1,775,234
Grand Total (A + B) | 8,291,432 8,717,515
3 c¢) Cash & Cash Equivalents
¢ i) Balance with Bank
Current Accounts 1,262,957 1,039,442
ii) Cash in Hand .
Cash in hand (As certified by management) 133,111 77,893
ili) Fixed Deposits .
Fixed Deposit Account(Pledged With Bank As Security) 1,572,773 895,000
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit 643,937 480,911
3,612,778 2,493,246
d) Short Term Loans and Advances
Advances Recoverable in cash or in kind or for vaiue to be
received
a) Related Parties
b) Others 7,090,151 7,219,789
7,090,151 7,219,789
e) Other Current Assets
Advance Against Service Taxes 132,413 ——
Advance, Self Assessment Tax & TDS Receivable 1,657,224 1,857,814
1,789,637 1,857,814




' BHAGWATI PLASTO WORKS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statement

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31st March 2016 31st March 2015
Notes No. - "8" Revenue From Operations
a) Construction Activities - 12,673,512
b) Maintenance & Other Charges 1,294,793 1,742,626
1.294,793 14,416,138
Notes No. - "9" Other Income
a) Rent Received 13,967,136 13,782,386
b) Interest Received 184,537 117,534
(TDS Raceivable for the period Rs. 15,474/, Previous Year Rs.13,059/-)
14,151,673 13,899,920 |
Notes No. - "10" Construction activity expenses
i} Construction and Other Materials 853,799 11,773,159
iiy Labour Charges 698,966 4,488,272
iii) Other Construction Expenses 2,685,057 16,021,899
4,237,822 32,283,330
Notes No. - "11" Changes in Inventories of Finised Goods,
Work in Progress & Stock in Trade
A) Opening Stock
Work In Progress 114,733,256 86,489,126
Less : WIP Transferred to Loans & Advances o
Total (A) 114,733,256 86,489,126
B) Closing Stock (As Certified by the Management) 118,971,078 114,733,256
Work In Progress
Total (B) 118,971,078 114,733,256
{A-B) (4,237.822) (28,244,130)
Notes No. - "12" Employee Benefits Expenses
Salary & Bonus 480,610 494 061
480,610 494.061
Notes No. - "13" Finance Costs
Interest Paid to Others 1,438,550 1,945,284
Interest on TDS 275 3,726
Interest on service Tax 670 10,660
Bank Charges 5,343 4,289
1.444.838 1,963,959
Notes No. - "14" Others Expenses
a) Adminstration Expenses
Auditor's Remuneration
Statutory Audit Fee 7,500 5000
Tax Audit Fee 3,500
Travelling & Conveyance 14,835 10,116
Donation Paid ——— -
Filing Fees 2,012 4875
General Expenses - 700
Postage,telegram & Telephone 17 39
Printing & Stationery 32,263 29,205
Repairing & Maintanance Charges 504,508 758,526
Legal & Consultancy Charges 900 1,300
Rates & Taxes 4,350 4,350
Fixed Assets Written off (Net) - 324
Sundry Balance (Written Off) 2,250
Tota (A) 568,635 817,935
b) Marketing Expenses
Advertisement & Publicity 9,000
Commission paid — 704,128
Tota (B) 713,128
Grand. Total (A + B) 568,635 1,531,063




requirement as per Accounting Standard -17 on "Segment Reporting™ are not applicable to the company.

b} The Compariy’s business is mainly concentrated in similar geographical, political and economical conditions; hence disclosure for

Geographical segment is not required.

1.21 Related Party Disclosures:-

In terms of Accounting Standard-18 are as under:

(i)

Other related parties with whom the company had transactions:-

(A

Holding Company

Nare

Holding Percentage

Sl. No.
i

RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited

51%

(8)

Key Management Personnel & their relatives.-

Sl No.

Name

Designation /Relationship

1 Pradeep Hirawat

Whole Time Director

2 Raj Kumar Jaiswal

Director

(C) Enterprises over which Key Managemert Personnel/Major Shareholders/Their Relatives have Significant Influence: -

Sl. No. [Name of Enterprise

1 Pyramid Sales Private Limited

31-Mar-2016

(iy Disclosure of transactions between the Company and related parties and the status of outstanding balances as on

Amount in ()

Nature of Transactions

lioiding Company

Key Management
Personnel & their

Enterprises over which KMP &
their relatives have significant

Relatives influence

2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15
Interest Faid 1.579.233 - - 232,900
Directors’ Remuneration e - 214,500 192,500 - -
Short Term Advance Given received - - 50,506 — - .
Short Term Borrowings Received _ - 11,250,000 - e - 19,600,000
Short Term Borrowings Repaid - 28,344,804 -=- - - 11,890,390

Closing Balance

Short Term Advarice Given o - 35,000 85,506 - ___
Short Term Advance Taken = = 500,000 500,000 - -
Short Term Borrowings Taken - - - — ——- 7,737,661




BHAGWATI PLASTO WORKS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

1.22 In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated value if realised in ordinary course of
business. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and ot in excess of the amount reasonably necessary There is no
contingent liability except stated and informed by the Management.

1.23 The figures of Previous Year have been recast and regrouped wherever considered necessary.

In terms of our report atiached.

For M.LK.SURANA & CO For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

20, Synagogue Street,2nd Floor,
Kotkata - 700 001.

Chartered Accountants for BHAGWAT! PLASTD WORKS PVY. u‘ for BHAGWAT! PLASTO WORKD ¢ i}
e S o freder Higew? O 6()\/1 GBM s e
giarrttinlé:.lmar Surana i:!;v ke Directot Directot
Membership No.061605 Director Director

The 28th day of May 2016
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‘- K- SU RANA & Co' 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA-700 001

—  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS TELE. : 2210-3203/3235

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
RAJ CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Raj Constructions Projects Private Limited (“the
company”},which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in section 134(5) of the Companieé Act, 2013
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Séction 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Ruiles, 2014. This responsibility also includes the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of internal financial control, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into
account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be
included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the' Company’s preparation of the
financial statements that give true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements, give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair

view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India;

a) inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2016;
b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and
€) inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Companies {Auditors Report) Order, 2016 issued by Central Government of India in terms of
Sub Section (11) of Section 143 of the Act on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the said order, we
further report that-

i a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
' details and situation of fixed assets.

bj As explained to us company does not have Fixed Assets under the head fixed assets, hence
clause is not applicable.

c) The cornpany does not have any immovable property under the head fixed assets, hence
clause is not applicable.

il. As explained to us, the inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals.
No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

iii. a)  The company has granted unsecured ioans to parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.

b)  The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the company’s
interest.

c) The loan being repayable on demand, clause regarding schedule of repayment is not applicable.
No party has defaulted in repayment of loan and interest accrued thereon.

iiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is adequate
internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business
with regard to purchase of inventory, fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. During the
course of our Audit, we have not come across any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in
the aforesaid internal control system.

iv) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we are of the opini




v)

vi)

vii)

viii)

ix)

xi)

xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

No loan has been given by company in violation of section 185. Further, loan given and investment
made are in compliance with section 186.

The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of india and
the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and
the rules framed there under are not applicable.

The rules regarding maintenance of ¢ost records which have been specified by the central
government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

a) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information
and explanations given to us, in our opinion the company has generally been regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including income tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty
of excise, cess and any other material statutory dues. There are no undisputed statutory dues
unpaid for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable. Taxes not
stated are not applicable to the company.

b) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to information and
explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income tax, service tax, which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute. . Taxes not stated are not applicable to the
company.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks. Further the company does not
have any outstanding from financial institution not had issued any debentures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, neither any money was raised by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) nor any term loan has been
raised, hence the clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud by the
company nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or reported during the
year.

As examined by us, the company has not paid remuneration to managerial personnel during the
period in accordance with the requisite approval mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that all the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has neither
made any preferential allotment or priva’_(g ip‘l?ge\m\ent of shares nor fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year under review; Hgfice cla-uge;:“ Q?t applicable.
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Xv)

xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Hence clause
is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that company is not required to
be registered u/s 45-IA of Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934 and has obtained such registration.

Report on Other Legal and Re ulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2016 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2016 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financials reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure A.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us:

a) Thereare no pending litigations against the Company.

b) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any materiai foreseeable losses.

¢) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M.K SURANA & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd. No. 324127E

R P S

Kirti Kumar Surana

Partner

Membership No.061605

20, Synagogue Street
Kolkata - 700001

Dated: 28" Day of May 2016




ANNEXURE A - REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (1) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF
SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

To the Members of RAJ CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of RAJ CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

PRIVATE LIMITED as of 31 March 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsibie for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to éxpress an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally acceptgd‘;ﬂ-: ting principles. A company's internal financial




i) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

ii) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and those receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company.

iii) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

For M.K SURANA & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd. No. 324127

Lo
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Kirti Kumar Surana

Partner

Membership No.061605

20, Synagogue Street
Kolkata — 700001

Dated: 28" Day of May 2016




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016

Notes As at As at
Particulars No. 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders' Funds
a) Share Capital 1 18,544,500 18,544,500
b) Reserves & Surplus 2 185,175,578 203,720,078 180,410,362 198,954,862
2. Non Current Liabilities
a) Long Term Borrowings 3 1,652,346 3,111,483
b) Other Long Term Liabilities 4 2,247,500 3,899,846 2,247,500 5,358,983
3. Current Liabilities
a) Short Term Borrowings 5 - -
b) Trade Payables 6 - 212,270
c) Other Current Liabilities 7 4,834,197 4,522,664
d) Short Term Provisions 8 2,200,000 7,034,197 7,050,000 11,784,934
Total 214,654,121 216,098,778
Il ASSETS
1. Non Current assets
a) Fixed Assets 9
i) Tangible Assets 5,694,284 6,467,915
ii) Intangible Assets - -—-
5,694,284 6,467,915
b) Non Current Investments 10 - 16,011
c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 11 58,246 73,937
d) Long Term Loans & Advances 12 2,568,514 8,321,044 203,087 6,760,950
2. Current Assets
a) inventories 13 36,244,323 35,456,399
b) Trade Recsivable 14 1,198,795 1,129,417
¢) Cash and Bank Balances 16 2,238,420 5,592,700
d) Short Term Loans & Advances 16 165,381,891 165,323,539
e) Other Current Assets 17 1,269,648 206,333,077 1,835,772 209,337,828
Total 214,654,121 216,098,778
N ) i
aS;%rgS;:asnt accounting policies and other notes to 25 10 30
Notes referred to above forms an integral part of the
Financial Statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For M.K.SURANA & CO
Chartered Accountants

s e £

Kirti Kumar Surana

Partner

Membership No.061605

20, Synagogue Street,2nd Floor,
Kolkata - 700 001.

The 28th day of May 2016

For and on behalf of the Board

RAJ CONS I'?U‘“ TiON PROJECTS PVT Lo
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Director
Director
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Raj Construction Projects Private Limited

Statements of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2016

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars No. 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)
REVENUE
Revenue From Operations 18 13,909,619 33,155,470
Other Income 19 - 299,500
13,909,619 33,454,970
EXPENSES
Construction Activity Expenses 20 1,565,855 510,929
Qhanges in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work 21 (787,923) 8,170,421
in Progress
Employee Benefits Expense 22 925,079 978,515
Finance Costs 23 464,952 914,864
Depreciation 8 762,671 308,197
Other Expenses 24 3,980,242 4,039,453
6,910,876 14,922,379
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6,998,743 18,532,591
Less: Provision For Tax

- Current Tax 2,200,000 7,050,000

- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Years 17,836 (34,063)

- Deferred Tax 15,691 2,233,627 a-n 7,015,937
PROFIT AFTER TAX 4,765,216 11,516,654
EARNINGS PER SHARE (OF Rs. 10 PER EQUITY
SHARE)

- Basic 2.57 6.21
- Diluted 2.57 6.21
Significant accounting policies and other notes to accounts 251030
Notes referred to above forms an integral part of the Financial
Statements

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For M.K.SURANA & CO
Chartered Accountants

RENEY
! WA

L(__ :/_—“"H | R

Kirti Kumar Surana

Partner

Membership No. 061605

20, Synagogue Street,2nd Floor,
Kolkata - 700 001.

The 28th day of May 2016

For and on behalf of the Board

RAJ CONSTRUCT:ON PROJ

st ik~ Cadecp
Director
Director Director

ECTS PVT. LTD.
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Director




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended

31st March,2016
(Amount in Rs.)

For the year ended

31st March,2015
(Amount in Rs.)

A. Cash flow from operating activities :

Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 6,998,743 18,532,591
Adjustments for

Depreciation 762,671 308,197

Interest Paid 462,791 911,152

Fixet Assets written Off 76,862 -—

(Provison for Rental Income) / Provision W/Back - —--

Interest Received (9,448,739) (8,146,415) (16,418,808) (15,199,459)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes (1,147,672) 3,333,132

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (787,924) 8,170,421

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables (69,378) 2,107,825

(Increase) / Decrease of Short-Term Advances (58,352) 10,945,672

(Increase) / Decrease of Long-Term Advances (2,365,427) -

(Increase) / Decrease of Other Current Assets 566,124 (416,465)

(Increase) / Decrease of Long-Term Liabilities - (15,302)

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables (212,270) 51,480

Increase / (Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities (4,538,467) (7,465,694) (11,566,698) 9,276,933
Cash generated from operations (8,613,366) 12,610,065

Less: Direct taxes paid/(Refunds) including Interest (Net) 2,217,836 7,015,937
Cash Flow before Exceptional ltems (10,831,202 5,594,128
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities (10,831,202) 5,594,128

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Purchase of fixed assets (65,900) (4,423,050)
Sale of fixed assets - -
Investment NSC 16,011 -—
Loans Refund / (Given) -— -
Interest Received 9,448,739 9,398,850 16,418,808 11,995,758
Net cash from investing activities 9,398,850 11,995,758
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings (1,459,138) (12,257,347)
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings - -
Interest Paid (462,791) (1,921,929) (911,152) (13,168,498}
Net cash generated/{used) in financing activities (1,921,929) (13,168,498)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents X
(A+B+C) (3,354,280) 4,421,388
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 5,692,700 1,171,312
2,238,420 5,592,700
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance 2,238,420 5,592,700
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 1,854,665 5,199,972
Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 383,755 392,728
2,238,420 5,592,700

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For M.K.SURANA & CO = RAJ CONSTRUCT 2 PROJECTS PVT. LTD.
Chartered Accountants //;’ g URA;“Q‘\\:\ \ N\\V
-~ el e p o /’7 ~- N \

b e e N o W

. . #leyr, Ve | Director
Kirti Kumar Surana 3 a7 ’
Partner e / S Director
Membership No.061605 RNC S

20, Synagogue Street,2nd Floor,
Kolkata - 700 001.

The 28th day of May 2016

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
RAJ CONSTRUCTICN PROJECTS Py

f ¥odep figewt

Director

Dirg

1. LT
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Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement

Particulars

As at
31st March 2016
(Amount in Rs.)

As at
31st March 2015
(Amount in Rs.)

Notes No. - 1
SHARE CAPITAL
a, Authorised Share Capital
Number of Equity shares
20,00,000 (Previous year 20,00,000)

b. Issued. subscribed and paid-up share capital ;
Number of Equity shares fully paid up
18,54,450 (Previous year 18,54,450)

¢. Par_value per share
Equity shares

20,000,000

20,000,000

20,000,000

20,000,000

18,544,500

18,544,500

18,544,500

18,544,500

10

10

10

10

d. Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding as at the beginning and as at the end of the year

Particulars Opening Balance Closing Balance
No. of shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 1,854,450 1,854,450
Add: Number of shares issued during the year - -
Less. Number of shares bought back during the year - -
No. of shares outstanding as at the end of the year 1,854,450 1,854,450

e. The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value

f Details of shareholders holding more then 5% shares with voting rights.

of dividend and repayment of capital

of Rs. 10 per share. Each Shareholder is eligible for one vote. The

dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders, except in case

of interim dividend.

As at 31st March 2016 As at 31st March 2015
::; Name of Equity shareholders Number of :{: ':OI:“"Q i: Number of :{: ttmlldmg ":
shares held at class o shares held at class o
shares shares
1 |RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited 1,854,450 100 1,854,450 100
As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)
Notes No. - 2
RESERVES & SURPLUS
a) Securities Premium Account
Opening Balance 77,042,500 77,‘042,500
Add: During the Year - 77,042,500 = 77,042,500
b) Balance in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance 103,367,862 - 91,851,208
Add/Less : Profit/{Loss) during the year 4,765,216 11,516,654
108,133,078 103,367,862
185,175,578 180,410,362




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement

As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)
Notes No. -3
LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Secured Loans *
Loan Against Car Securitisation 1,652,346 3,111,483
1,652,346 3,111,483
Notes No. -4
OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Advance against properties - -
Sundry Deposits 2,247,500 2,247,500
2,247,500 2,247,500
Notes No. -5
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
From Other Than Bank (Unsecured)
Sundry Deposits
a) Related Parties (Holding Co) - -
b) Accrued Interest but not due - -
Notes No. - 6
TRADE PAYABLES
Trade Payables * - 212,270
*The Company is in communication with its suppliers to ascertain the
applicability of “The Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006". As on the date of this Balance Sheet the Company has not received
any communications from any of its suppliers regarding the applicability of the
Act to them.
= | 212,270 |
Notes No. -7
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advances from Customers 2,000,000 2,000,000
Short Term Borrowings 1,485,146 1,329,584
Other Liabilities 241,301 7,500
Outstanding Statutory Payment 1,107,750 1,185,580
4,834,197 4522 664
Notes No. -8
SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Income Tax current Year 2,200,000 7,050,000
Income Tax Previous Year - —
2,200.000 7,050,000




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement

Particulars

Notes No. - 10

NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Other Investments
National Savings Certificate
Interest Accrued

Notes No. - 11

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)
Deferred Tax Liabilities on
Depreciation Allowance on Fixed Assets

Notes No. - 12 .
LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
(Unsecured, Considered Good)

Security Deposits

Notes No. - 13
INVENTORIES
Work in Progress (As Certified By The Management)

Notes No. - 14
TRADE RECEIVABLE
(Unsecured, considered good)

Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months

Other Debts

Notes No. - 15
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
a. Cash and Cash Equivalents :
Balances with Banks
Cash on hand (As certified by the management)

Notes No. - 16
SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
(Unsecured, considered good)
Loans to Related Parties
Loans to Others
Other Advances

Notes No. - 17
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Advance Income Tax & Tax Deducted at Source

Service Tax Input
Prepaid Expenses

As at
31st March 2016
(Amount in Rs.)

As at
31st March 2015
(Amount in Rs.)

58,246

58,246

2,568,514

2,568,514

36,244,323

36,244,323

1,198,795

1,198,795

1,854,665
383,755

2,238,420

160,838,339
4,543,552

165,381,891

1,231,684

37,964

1,269,648

10,000
6,011

16,011

73,937

‘ 73,937

203,087

203,087

35,456,399

35,456,399

549,467
579,950

1,

129,417

5,

199,972
392,728

5,

592,700

6,

159,221,482

102,057

165,323,539

1,

744,375
37,964
53,433

1,

835,772




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2016
(Amount in Rs.)

For the year ended
31st March 2015
(Amount in Rs.)

Notes No. - 18
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
a) Sales & Services
Construction Activities
Sale of Land
Services

Sub Total (A)
b) Other Qperating Income
Rental Income *
Interest Received
- On Related Parties
- Others

* Raceived from the Holding Company (RDB Realty & Infrastructure
Limited) amounted * 90,000/- (Previous Year ~ 90.000/-)

Sub Total (B)

Total (A + B)
Notes No. - 19
OTHER INCOME
Liabilities/Advances no longer payable written back
Miscellaneous Income

Notes No. - 20
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY EXPENSES
Construction and other Materials
Contract Labour Charges
Professional Charges
Other Construction Expenses

Notes No. - 21
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED
GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRESS
Opening stock
Work in Progress

Sub Total (A)
Closing stock
Work in Progress (As Certified by the Management)

Sub Total (B)

Total (A -B)

9,448,739

4,460,880

9,448,739

16,418,808

12,576,750

12,576,750

13,909,619

13,909,619

207,489
553,104

75,000
730,262

1,565,855

35,456,400

35,456,400

36,244,323

36,244,323

(787,923)

4,159,912

16,418,808

20,578,720

33,155,470

299,500

299,500

510,929

510,929

43,626,820

43,626,820

35,456,399

35,456,399

8,170,421




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)
Notes No. - 22
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries, Wages, Bonus, Exgratia etc. 925,079 978,515
Directors’ Remuneration - -
| 925,079 | 978,515
Notes No. - 23
FINANCE COSTS
Interest Paid
To Related Party - -
Others 462,791 462,791 911,152 911,162
Finance Charges 2,161 3,712
464,952 914,864
Notes Np. -24
OTHER EXPENSES
A) ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL EXPENSES
Legal and Professional Charges 20,080 52,350
Postage, Telegraph & Telephones 650 210
Fixed Assets (Written Off) 76,862 -
Motor Vehicle Expenses 221,909 36,691
Others Rates & Taxes 8,913 850,953
Municpal Tax Paid 1,071,810 -
Rent 35,564 34,894
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 129,812 18,063
Filing Fees 3,040 6.040
Auditors Remuneration :
- Statutory Audit Fee 5,000 5,000
- Tax Audit Fee 2,500 7,500 2,500 7,500
Electricity Expenses 58,548 19,270
Other Repairs 206,922 835
Maintanance Charges 550,123 1,696,710
Printing & Stationary 33,614 15,334
Donation 1,000,000 400,000
Insurance Expenses 65,004 64,338
Miscellaneous Expenses 23,537 41,090
Sub Total (A) 3,513,888 3,244,278
B) SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Advertisement & Publicity Expenses 163,014 277,200
Commission to Selling Agents 25,000 414,000
Sales Promotion Expenses 278,340 103,975
Sub Total (B) 466,354 795,175
Total (A + B) 3,980,242 4,039,453
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Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
The Notes forming part of the Financial Statement

25,

A.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India under the
historical cost convention on accrual basis. These financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the
accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set
out in the Schedule Ilf to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptlons that
affect the balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date and amounts of
income and expenses during the year. Examples of such estimates include contract costs expected to be incurred to complete construction
contracts, provision for doubtful debts, income, taxes and future obligations under employee retirement benefit plans. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. The effects of adjustment arising from revisions made to the estimates are included in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the year in which such revisions are made.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

a) Revenue from own construction projects are recognised on percentage of completion method. Units for which agreement for sale is
executed till reporting date are considered for it. Revenue recognition starts when 20% of estimated project cost excluding land and
marketing cost is incurred. Further, units for which Deed of Conveyance is executed or possession is given, revenue is recognised to
full extent.

b) Revenue from Joint Venture Development Agreement under work sharing arrangements are recognized on the same basis as similar to
own construction projects independently executed by the company to the extent of the company’s share in joint venture.

c) Revenue from Construction Contracts are recognised on percentage of completion method measured by reference to the survey of
works done up to the reporting date and certified by the client before finalisation of projects accounts.

d) Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services to customers except otherwise stated.
e) Rental income from assets is recognized for an accrual basis except in case where ultimate collection is considered doubtfut.

f) Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis.

FIXED ASSETS
Fixed Assets, inciuding those given on lease, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost
comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Software is capitalized, where it is expected to provide future enduring economic benefits.

Leasehold land under perpetual lease is not amortized. Lease hold land other than on perpetual lease is being amortized on time
proportion basis over their respective lease periods.

DEPRECIATION
Depreciation is provided on written down value method at the rates prescribed under Schedule-XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.

INVESTMENTS

All investments are bifurcated into Non Current Investments and Current Investments. Investments that are readily realisable and intended
to be held for not more than a year from the date of Balance Sheet are classified as Current Investments. All other investments are
classified as Non Current Investments. Current Investments are carried at lower of cost or fair market value, determined on an individual
investment basis. Non Current Investments are carried at cost. Provision for Diminution in the value of Non Current Investments is made,
only if such a diminution is other than temporary.

INVENTORIES
a) Finished Goods: At lower of cost or net realisable value.
b) Work-in-Progress: At lower of cost or net realisable value.
Provision for obsolescence in inventories is made, wherever required.

Work-in-progress- Real Estate projects (including land inventory): represents cost incurred in respect of unsold area of the real estate
development projects or costs incurred on projects where rev T fgcogmzed

Work-in-progress- Contractual: represents cost of work d billed.

{ sl ¢




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
The Notes forming part of the Financial Statement

H.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of
three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
i) Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax and value added tax, if any, net of sales return.
i) Rental Income: Rental income is exclusive of service tax.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTION

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of transactions or that
approximates the actual rate at the date of transactions.

Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in the statement of profit and loss for
the period.

Transactions which remain unsettled at the reporting date and reported at rates prevailing as at reporting date and any exchange gain /
loss is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
i) Short term employee benefits:
Short term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, expected cost of ex-gratia etc. are recognized in the period in which the
emplovee renders the related service.
ii) Post-employment benefits
a) Defined Contribution Plan: Employee benefits in the form of Employees State insurance Corporation and Provident Fund are
considered as defined contribution plan and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period when

the contributions to the respective funds are due.
b) Defined Benefit Plan: Employee benefits in the form of Gratuity is considered as defined benefit plan and are provided for on the

basis of an independent actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method, as at the Balance Sheet date as per
requirements of Accounting Standard-15 (Revised 2005) on “Employee Benefits”.

i) Actuarial gains/losses, if any, are immediately recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets.
A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

TAXATION

a) Current Tax: Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year in accordance with the
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Minimum Alternative Tax credit available under section 115JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961 will
be accounted in the year in which the benefits are claimed. -

b) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognised subject to consideration of prudence on the basis of timing differences being the differences
between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent
periods using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted as on the balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset
is recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that the asset will be realised in future.

PROVISIONS/CONTINGENCIES

A provision is recognised for a present obligation as a result of past events if it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based on best estimate of the
amount required to settle the obligation as at the Balance Sheet date. Liabilities which are material and whose future outcome cannot be
ascertained with reasonable certainty are treated as contingent liability and are disclosed by way of note.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the same exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment is charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset i s impaired. The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting
period is reversed if there has been a change in the estim Sﬂhm\amount.
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"Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
The Notes forming part of the Financial Statement

26. Earnings per share in accordance with AS-20

As at As at
Earnings per share is computed as under:- 31st March,
2016 31st March, 2015
Profit available for Equity Shareholders (A) (Rs.) 4,765,216 11,516,654
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding (B) (Nos.) 1,854,450 . 1,854,450
Earnings per share (Face value of Rs.1Q/- per Equity Share) 257 6.21

Basic & Diluted (A/B) (Rs.)

27. Segment Reporting:-
The Business of the company fall under a single segment i.e. Development of Real Estate & Infrastructure”. The disclosure requirement as
per AS - 17 on ‘Segment Reporting’ is not applicable to the company. The Company’s business is mainly concentrated in similar
geographical, political and economical conditions; hence disclosure for Geographical segment is also not required.

28. Related Party Disclosures in accordance with AS - 18:-
(i) Enterprises where control exists
A) Holding Company

SI. No. Name of Company
1 RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited
B) Others
SI. No. Name of Company
1 Maple Tie Up Private Ltd

(i) Disclosure of transactions between the Company and related parties and the status of outstanding balances as

on 31-Mar-2016 Amount in (Rs.)
Holding Company Key Managemer;t Eersonnel & their Others -
Nature of Transactions Relatives
As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st March As at 31st March  As at 31st March As at 31st March
March 2016 March 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Opening Balance
Reveivable 16854 -
Loan Given 3,689.759 28,574,720 - - - -
Transaction during the
year
Interest tncome 43,468 1,350,043 - - - -
Rent Received 90,000 90,000 - -—- ---

Interest Paid - - —
Directors’ Remuneration - - — —
Advance Received Repaid - — — -
Unsecured Loan Received
Unsecured Loan Repaid - - — -

Loan Given --- — — —
Refund of Loan Given 3,733,227 26,100,000 - — - —
Closing Balance - — i
Reveivable 119,360 16,854 - — — —
Unsecured Loan - —- - — —
Loan Given 3,689,759 - — —

29. In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated value if realised in ordinary course of
business. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary. There is no contingent
liability except stated and informed by the Management

30. The previous year figures have been reclassified / regrouped wherever necessary

For M.K.SURANA & CO For and on behalf of the Board of Directors - [a} TD:
CTION PROJECTS VT, L
Chartered Accountants R M Wﬁgﬁl{p ' PROJECTS PVT LTD. RAJ CONST;UW‘J o chr
N : " TN ¥odecp
K \,.j_ LA e ‘[\'\ i< ‘ / "‘\\‘;\\ \ \\‘\\\\V ' N
/ » (?’{upq ': ‘.‘ \}\‘N Du'ectof
Kirti Kumar Surana QL o ,": I Director Director
Partner \ . /',3
Membership No.061605 \:'1.," ,..,,-«’,\‘///,*
20, Synagogue Street,2nd Floor, Y bt

Kolkata - 700 001.
The 28th day of May 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,
The Merabers,
M/S. MAFLE TIE-UP PRIVATE LIMITED

Report om the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements MAPLE TIE-UP PRIVATI:
LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016, Statement of Profit and
Loss for the year then ended, and a sunupary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Corpany’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Cempanies Act, 2013 with respect 10 (he preparation and presentation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, includivg the Accounting Standards spacified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for
safeguarding of the asseis of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgmenis and estimaies that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial control, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and compieteness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatencert, whether due to e or error.

Auditor’s Responsibibity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made there under. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are fice from material misstatement.




An audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disciosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or emor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
staiements that give true and fair view, in order 0 design audit procedures that are appropriate
in fthe circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the
Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and operating effectiveness of such controls . An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the zudit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for cur audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinien

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statemenis give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the slate of affairs of the company as at 31 March, 2016, and its loss for
the year ended on that date.

Report oa eiber Legal and Regulatory Reguaircments

]. Requirements of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016(*the Order”) issued
by the Ceotral Government of India i1 terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, ave not agplicable.

5
)

2. Asreguired by section 142(2) of the /ict, we report that:

) We have sought and obtaived ali the ‘nformation and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) 1a our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Corapany so far as it appears from our cxamination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

d) I our opinicn, ihe alorcsaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companics
(Accounts)y Rules, 2014,




¢)  On the basis of wrillen representations received from the directors as on 31 March.
2016, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March, 2016, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

1) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report

in Annexure A

£) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Reportin accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
positior.
ii. The Company did not have eny long-term contracts including derivatives

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which required to be transferred by the Company to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund.

For Vireet Khetan & Associales
Chartered Accountants

G

\é&?& g

1

Vineet Khictan
Propriclor
(Membership No.: 660270)

Place: XKolkata
Daiz: 28" My, 20006




ANNEXURE TO THE INIEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS OF MAPLE TIE-UP PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the internat Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting MAPLE TIE-UP PRIVATE
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial staternents of the Cempany for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsilbility for Interna! Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the intermal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial informstion, &s reguired under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is (o exprass an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrals over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, (o the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to sn audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Charlered Accountents of lndia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethisal requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonzble assurance ahout whether acequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was estabiished and maintzined and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit invoives performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial contrels system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial cortrols over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control basad on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statemenis, whether due to fravud or error,




e believe that the audit evidence iiwe have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my /our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

/ A company's internai financial control vver financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial slatementls for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordarice with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipls and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorsations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of celiusion or impropar management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and ot be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the nlerna! financial conirols over financia! reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinior, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial

controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial

reporting were: cpevating eifectively as ot March 314, 2016, based on the internal control over

financial reporiing criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
P

of internal control stated in the Guidarce Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Vinect Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountanis

N
Vineet Khetan
Proprietor
(Membership No.: 060270)
Place: Kolkata ‘ L
Date: 28" May,2016 R ANTR




/
/ Maple Tie-Up Private Limited
/ Batance Sheet as at 31st March 2016
B Note T As at As at
, Pariiculars No. 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
/
/
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
* 1. Sharcholders’ Funds
a) Share Capital 1 1,00,000 1,00,000
b) Reserves & Surplus 2 (47,05,314) (39,95,876)
_ ] (46,05,314) (38,95,876)
j/ 2. Non Current Liabilities
g a) Long Term Borrowing 3 20,00,09,536 14,80,24,130
b) Other Long Term Liability 4 52,67,688 38,61,607
3. Current Liabilities
a) Trade Payzbies 5 1,43,13,675 1,44,23,400
b) Other Current Liabilities & 3,18,26,123 17.,65,78,476
¢) Short Terrn Frovision 7 1,806,000 | 9,63,19,798 1,26,000 19,11,27,876
Toial 29,69,91,708 33.91,17,757_
Il ASSETS
1. Non Curreint Asseots
‘ a) Fixed Assets 8 13,175 31,520
b) Deferred Tenx: Assats 9 21,09,242 17,93,632
¢) Non current investments 10 6,16,68,008 6,01,30,000
d) Cther Non current Assets 11 3,51,600 5,27,400
2. Current Assels
a) Inventories 12 10.83,89,055 24,57,96,442
b) Trade Reaceivable 13 68,46,130
¢) Cash & Casgh equivaients 14 53,75,437 47.85,064
d) Short Term Lo and Advances 15 21943079 2,54,56,326
e) Other current Assieis 16 | 295982 23,28,49,683 5,97,353 27,66,35,135
Total 29,69,91,708 33,91,17,737
Significant accounting policies and other notes 1o 2410 29
Notes referred to above forms anintegial part of the
Financial Statements
This is the Balance Sheat referred to in cur report of even date.
For Vineet fhetan & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
; “hartered Accountarts
¢ Registration No.3244285 -
’ For MAPLE TIE UP PVT. LTD
o
(\L\—\ ! "
ﬁ\ 4 Q\/ Nikash chand Tha
Vineet Khetan Directo
“{Partner irec
Membership No.060270 Director Director
3B,Lal Bazar Street,
Place: Kolkata
Date: 28th May 2096 L




Maple Tie-Up Private Limited

Statement of Profit and LLoss for the year ended 31st March 2016

Note For the Period For the Year Ended
Particulars No. 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
/REVENUE
7 Revenue from Operation 17 10,01,15,406
/ Other incomes 18 1,65,534 2,76,802
/( 10,02,80,940 2,16,802
EXPENSES
Construction Activity expenses 19 5,00,74,218 7,28,49,549
Changes in Inventorics of Work in Frogress 20 4,74,07,387 (7,28,49,549)
Depreciation 8 18,345 25,923
Employae benefit Expence 21 10,25,563 6,50,014
Finance Costs 22 4,04,504 9,916
Other Expenses 23 23,75,971 19,29,842
10,13,05,988 26,15,695
Profit /{L.oss) Before Taix (10,25,048) (23,98,893)
Less : Provision For Tax
- Deferred Tax 3,165,610 7,47,460
- Current Tax —
Profit Aiter Tax (7,09,438) (16,51,433)
Earnings per shate {of * Per Share)
Basic (70.94) (165.14)
Diluted (70.94) (165.14)
N'otes feferred o above {ornis an inleg ai part of the 9410 29
Financial Statements )

{ .

“ Vineet Khretan & Aszociales
Chartered Accountants
Registration No.3244281:

vy

Vineet Khetan

Partner

Membership No.0G0270
3B.Lal Bazar Street,
Place: Kolkata

Date: 28th May 2018

This is the Proiit & Loss Acceunt referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

APLE TIE UP PVT_LTD
@)ﬂ ikath ehaad Tkwfes.

Director Cirgstetior

R Rt
i ye

:"/"" ‘1'7




Maple Tie-Up Private Limited

_Notes to Financial Statement

Farticulars

31st March, 2016

As at

As at
31ist March, 2015

= g No. -1
HARE CARITAL
A Authorised

Number of Equity Shares
1,000,0C0 (Previous Year 20,000)

b. Issued, Subscribed and Paid up share capital
Number of Equity Shares fully paid up
10,000 (Frevious Year 10,000)

¢. Par value per shave
Equity shares

10,00,00,000

10,00,00,000

1,00,000

1.00,000

10
10

d. Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

10,00,00,000

10,00,00,000

1,00,000

1.00,000

10

10

Particulars Opening Balance Closing Balance
Number of shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 10,000 10,000
[ Add: Number of chares issuad during the ysar - ' -
l.ess : Number of shares bought back during the year - -
Number of shares outsianding as at the end of the yea 10,000 10,000

e. The rights preferences & restrictions attaching 10 shares a1d restrictions on distribution of dividend and repayrnent of capital

The Company has only one closs of equity shares havin
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is
dividend.

¢ pai value of * 10 per share.Each Shareholder is eligible for one vote.
subject to the approval of shareholders, expect in case of interim

f. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares, with voting rights

Marticulars

Notes No.-2

RESERVES & SURPLUS
Surplus i.e Balance in Stalement of Profit & Loss
Opening Balance
Add:Profit for the Year

31st March, 2016

As at 31 March, 2016 As at 31 March, 2015
de ing Equity shares wi ing Y ing i 9 ing i
Name of shareholder ho!d.r‘ng’ Eguity shares with voling Number of % holding in Number of % holding in
righis that class of that class of
shares held shares held
e | shares sharzs
1) RDB Really & Infrastructure Ltd N o 7,000 70.00% 7,000 0.00%
Kiran Poonamchend Meli N 1,000 10.00% 1,000 0.00%
9) Vikash Mohan Jhanwar e 1,000 10.00% 1,000 0.00%
4) Aditya Kurar o 1,000 10.00% 1,000 0.00%
g. Shares Reserved for Issue under option As at 31 March, 2016 are NIL (Previous Year Were NIL)
h. No Equity or Preference shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment
being received in cash for the period of 5 years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date.
o B As at As at

31st March, 2015

(39,95,876)
(7,09,438)
(47,05 314)

(23,44,443)
(16,57,433)

(39,9%,.876)
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Maple Tie-Uis Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statement

on Current Liabilities
nsecured Long Term Borrowing
"~ -From Related Parties

-From Others

Notes No.-4
Other Non Current Liabititiss
Interest accrued and due on horrowing

Notes No.-5
TRADE PAYARBI.ES
- Trade Creditors

Motes No.-6
IER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advance From Customers and Others
Outstanding Statutory payment
Other Liabilities

Notes No.-7
Short Term Provision
Provision for Expenses

Notes No.-9

Deffered Tax Assets (Net)
On Fixed Assets

On Brought Forward Lcsses

Notes No.-10
Non current investi

ke
R

' estmentin Partnership firm (51% PSR)

Notes No.-11
Other Non Current Asseis
Prelimanry expenses

Notes No.-12
Inventories
Work In Progress

Notes No.-13
Trade Receivable

(Debts outstanding for a period of less than Six moniths)

Notes No.-14
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash & Cash equivalents
Balance with Banic
Cash on hand

As at As at
31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
8,37,11,000 8,59,85,720
11,62,98,536 6,20,38,410
20,00,09,536 14,80,24,130
52,67,688 38,61,607
52,67,688 38,61,607
1,43,13,675 1,44 23,400
1,43,13,675 1,44,23,400
7,96,37,599 17,55,45,050
8,55,285 7,286,751
13,33,239 3,06,675
8,18,26,123 17,65,78,476
1,80,000 126,000
1,80,000 1,26,000
2,434 522
21,06,808 17,93 110
21,09,242 17,93,632
6,16,68,008 6,01,30 000
6,16,68,008 6,01,30,000
3,51,600 5,27 400
3,51,600 5,27 400
19,83,89 055 24,57,96 442
19,83,89,055 24,57,96.442
68,46,130

68,46,130
53,62,569 47,77.021
12,868 8,043
53,75,437 47.85,064




I

RV LOANS AND ADVANCES

/d, considered goods)
’,rﬁf)/ Deposit

ance with Reverue Authority
Jther Advances

';t_;tes No.-16

Dther Current Assets

" [CENVAT Credit
“|Prelimnary Expenses

vnce 1o Sundry Creditors against Material

e e e e s 19 i 21 b i

9,46,650
4,33,445
2,92,873
2,02,70,111

2,19,43,079

1,20,182
1,75,800

2,95,982

v

iz geret
N~

A

1,66,719,020




Mapie Tie-Up Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statement

For the Year Ended
31st March 2016

For the Year Ended
31st March 2015

venue from Operation 9,71,40,439
pevelopment Charges 9,68,659
{infrastructure cost 4,44 300
Legal fees 1,35,000
Meter charges 90,000
Profit / (Loss) from partnership firm 13,37,008
10,01,15,406
Note No.-18
OTHER INCOMIE
Bank interest 1,658,414 -
Misc. Income — 2,09,793
Interest on Incometax refuna 7,120 7,009
1,65.534 2,16.802
ote No.-19
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY EXPPENSES
Construction Expenses 5,00,74,218 7,28,49,549
5,00,74,218 7,28,49.5649
Note No. -20
CHANGES IN iINVENTORIES OF WORK IM PROGRESS
Opening stock
Work in Progress 24,57 .96,442 17,30,21,053
Adjustment - (74,1€0.)
Sub Total (A) 24 57,96 442 17,2946 893
Closing Stock(As Certified by the Managemerit)
WorkK in Progress 19,83,89,055 24,57,96,442
Sub Tota! (B) 19,83,89,055 24,57,96,442
Totat (A-13) 4,74.07,387 7,28,49.549
Note No. -21
"MPLOYE:. BENESITS
Salary Expenses 16,25,563 6,50,014
10.25.563 6,50,014
Note No. -22
FINANCE EXPENSES
Bank Charges 14,504 9,916
Processing fees for OD & BG 2,50,000 .
Stampduty & Registration changes for OD & BG 1,40,000 -
4,04,504 9,816




Nigple Tie-Up Private Limited

Nofes to Financial Statement

EXPENSES
ratutory Audit fFees

rax Audit Fees

Filing Fees

Swachh bharat cess
Business Promotion £2xp.
Computer Expenses
General Expenses
Postage & Telegram
Printing & Stationery
Professional Fees

Notary & Franking charges
Advrtsing Expenses
Electricity Charges (Office)
Internet Charges

Office Rent

Office Expenses

Other Interest

MCGM charges
Professional Tax

Penalty

Repairs & Maintenance - cthars
Tea & Refreshment Charges
Telephone Charges
Tender Fee

Travelling Charges
Prelimanry exoenses Wioff

7,500 7,600
21,000 e
2,400 5,840
9,131
30,190 56,660
- 5,C00
4,955 5,005
86,914 96,608
3,91,467 2,88,C76
23,822 -
2,96,699 81,144
67,950 61,810
16,281 16,640
9,561,697 8,61,C00
77,401 45,£18
3,652 48,408
2,398 e
17,500 2,£00
3,000 -
22,620 17,145
45,325 48,819
17,118 19,631
40,000 10,000
61,151 76,638
1,75,800 1,75,€00
23,75.971 19,29.842

[
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Maple Tiz-Up Private Limited

Assessment Year : 2016-17
Closing Inventory Working as on 31/03/2016

S Addition during [Adjustment during
Batance B/f the year the year Total

Amoghsidiha CHS Ltd 8156 2,06,496 2,14,652.40
Bhojraj Bhavarn 54,588,960 2,39,934 57,28,893.62
Darshan View GHE Lid 754,311,420 220,244,697 (9,74,56,117) -
Ganga Niwas 2.11,04, 354 17 65,677 2,28,70,031.10
Girnar CHS Lt 8,666 1,40,747 1,49,412.95
Hemae Nivas 287,24 266 17944779 4,36,69,035.06
Khetan CHS Ltd 17,532 541 17,872.92
Land at Bandra 5,64,73,397 31.,06,296 7,15,79,792.55
Land at Santracruz{West) 4.63,49,603 16,51,675 5,10,01,368.40
Natwarnagar Jogaswari 25488 (25,488.00) -
Shiv CHS Ltd 1,564,720 20,93,276 31,57,996.00

20,57 96,442 5,00.74,218 (9,74,81,605) 19,83,89,055

int




Mante Tie-Up Private Limited

Financial Year 2015-16
Assessment Year 2016-17

COMPUTATION OF TOTAL INCOME

Amount Amount
Rs. Rs.
INCOME FROM HOUSE PROVERYIES
Gross Annual Value Nil
Less : Corporalion Tax
Net Annual Value Ni
Less i) Deduction Under Section 24(a)
Standard Deduction @ 30.00% on Net Annual Income
incorae from House Propary Nil
INCOME, FROM BUSINESS
Net Profit /(l.oss) as par Frofit & Lose Accotnt (10,25,048)
Add : Expenses Disallowed or Considered Separataly
Depreciation as per Companies Act 18,345.00
Pznalty 3,000.00
Less Items Considered Separately/Expenses Allowed
Depreciation Allowable as per Income Tax Act 12,154.80)
incom econsidered separately 1,65,534.00)
(11,81,392)
Profit/ {Loss) From Business (11,81,392)
INCORE FROM QTHEIt SQURCES
Bank Interest 1,58,414.00
Other ‘ncome 7,120.00 1,65,534
GRROS3 TOTAL PROFIFHLOSS) (10,15,858)
Less: Brought Forward Losses (58,02,291)
Net Taxable Income/(L.oss) (68,18,149)
Computation Li/s 115,08 as_per Book Profii
Net Profit /(L.oss) as per Frofit & Loss Aceount (10,25,048)
Less Exaenption U510 Nil
(10,25,048)
¢ ,
Minimum Allamate Tax @ 18.5% Nif
Add: Education Cess @) &% Nil
Total Tax Payable Nil
L€s5s.TDS Receivable Nil
_Payable/{Refundable) , Nil
Los3 to be carded [orward s per 1T Act Bisiness Loss Set Off Total
B/F Loss for the Asst. Yaar 2003-03 Nil Nil
B/F Loss for the Asst, Year 2009-10 8,507.00 8,507.00
B/F Loss for the Asst. Year 2010-11 7,580.00 7,580.00
B/F Loss for the Asst, Year 2013-14 2,26,370.00 2,26,370.00
B/F Loss for the Asst. Year 2014-15 31,51,043.00 31,51,043.00
B/F Loss for the Asst. Year 201516 24.08,791.00 24,08,791.00
B/F Loss tor the Asst. Year 201617 i0,15,858.02 10,15,858.02
e Nil 68,18,149.02
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Maple Tie-Up Private Limited
Details for Deferred Tax Liabil lity/ Assets as on 31.03. 2016

Position as on 37st March 2016 I Tax Books Amount Tax@ 30.90%
e e JVDV _ (Vv

Business [ 053 66,18,149 - 68,18,149 21,06,808

Fixed Assets 21,083 13,175 7,878 2,434

Deferred Wa>: Z‘\SS@*{S?ES_QD 31st March 2016 B)_ 21,09,242

Deferred Tax Assels as on 313t March 2015 (A) 17,93,632

Defeired Tax Assets 1o be provided as on 31st March 2016 (A) - (B) (3,15,610)




i Maple Tie-Up Private Limited
“Anrnexture fo Notes; to Financial Statement
Assessment Year 2016- -17
Loar» From Related P(my o N R )
Klran P Md“ e 5,62,11,000
kaas,h Jhanwar } o ) 2,75,00,000 8,37,11,000
lmn hom Othegs o ]
Kh—Jtrd In\/estrnq}tg&rﬁr ace ltd o . 12961971. -
Ril zen Contra Pvt Ltd 4 ,52,00,000 L
YMS Finance Limited (I ormcaly Knon as l’ymmld '5,81,36,565
Sales PVELId) (Interest @ 9%) - 11,62,98,536
\)the~ (.wreni L Iabﬁﬂ{ ~
lnterest payble on ioan B .
Khatrd investments & Fin dd 8,73,209 .
Pyramid Sales Pvt L (Interest @ 99 4394479 | 52,67,688
Current Liabilities ] T
Ady Against Flat Booking | -
Pushpa Shah - 1002 i 9,270 !
Litadhari L Galen ) ] 12,00,000
Munita Rethod ) 2,89,125
Chetan ‘Surya Flat No 503 (HN i 7,114,370
Jayarit Shetty Flat No 601 (HN) . 1. 1319400
Laxrai M Haria Flat No 502 (HN) JF’ 1002]23;
Nithesh Shetty Flat NJ 602 (HN) B 70,00,000 |
Pushpa & Sum itran Jein IF “lat No 800/9C0 (HN) | 13,62,554 1
Radhz Unnithan Flat No 701 (k Ny l 7,84,907 j
Suresh M Chowdhari Flat No 1101 (HN) 17,85,250
BFM Ind slires Ltd ) 1.61,50,000
Pancham Vanjiva Pvt Ltd - 4,10,00,000
Paramdham Mercantiles Pvi Lid j 40,00,000
Veekay Apartiments Pyt Ltd ! 30,20,000 7,96,37,599
Trade. F’&_ydble o B ;77 : N
ras CHS Ltd - Momibers Gorgus, I i
Abhneot Navaratan Bohia ((JN) | 6,46,650 .
Allca Hement Poln s (GN) 4,48,200
Indu Mavratan Bolwa (GN) 5,99,400
Javerchand Rathod (GN) 6,08,850 .
Jayehum, /‘-mlnml Dauqlly ( \‘ 5,75,100 !
Ceshevial 1 Patel (GN) O 6,30,700 ;
Laxmi Chand m Salian (GN) ) t 5 {1@767700 i
Lilachar i_ ul«hams[w G} 7 6,30,700 |
Mardar Bheskar Mo : \(:N) i 777,875 |
Mamula l\/loofchano Jain (GN) j 6,46,650
McayurAmu tal Smgh ’GNx ; 12,683,600
Meena Kantilal Jain (CSN) } 5,99,400
Navratan Decratan Bohr. a (G } 6,29,400 |
Nayna Ravii Nayal (GN) i 6,46,650 |
Ramesh Bhavanji Sangoi (GN) N 5,83,400 L
Samay P Patif (GN) © 6,48,000 ‘
Sheoratan Deoraten Bohra (GN) | 16,43,800 3
Vikash Amntlal Singhi (GN) 14,28,350 -
YWelset Extrutionisie (GN) ’ 4,680,350
Creditors - Hema Niwas :
Vanita J Vora Flat No 403 (HN) 3,00,000 1,43,13,675




| Service tax payable

TDS on Rent(194-l)
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TDS on (‘ontractor(m/ )

'1 DS on Iterest

TDS on Profesional Fees(194-J)

Ap@) Stationers &‘I m*exo .
A&ho:h Jumbo Zerox
Ashish hverl B
AG (,OHSUL c1xon
Kt |ght [)otauvn &€ \m,l.rl Se rv;ccn Pv‘ 1 10
Kolkata Num.pal C (*rpr)rdtv)n

'"'mt Sup olier Pt Ltd

Lol\a Plo;)uivef "vt L'Ld

Veenit Khetan & /\ssm,mes

Audlt F ees deahle o

vamon fm [ xpule,( s
For F’rofe 7910”61! fees

!'n\/éstmfe;"l_ris 7
Regent Ass omatns (51% PSR)

Hank Accounts

Bank of Baroda - 11 5‘)4
Bank of Barod: - 1354
ICICI Bank
Oriental Bank of( Somm eru‘
Kowa« Mahindra Bank

l’h nqu Ni wa< Uem;lt
Dinash l(.|]
Sundry Debtors

Asina I\a[\esh Jain 1201
Curngaram Mal 120171 )()?
Sathir Singh Sethi - 302
Shanshalk ‘matty 1202
Virnod Kothari - 701

une iz ___Clg-ifzwfs

Adavnce to St 2
Advocate Vijay Therat
Advocate Varughese P M
Creditors - Girnar CHSL.
Harsha A Shah (Gir)

Mohamad Adit Chowdhari (GIR)
Pratap N Sanghabi (Gn)

Fravin J F\Jthod (GIR).

I\d aldevi S Kothari /un)
Ramm D Medatiya (Gir)

Saro] § Agrahari erit)
Shankarbhai R Solanki ((m)
Surandia ¢ K()Lhd'l (Gir)

| far 1}»'"\ M rv

Statement ===
- 2016-17

70,000 |

1,400

36,830

29,250

5.85.208 |

8,000 |

3,751

18,288 |

1, 4“507 ;

- 3972

12,02,480
22, 554

1,950
5,943
44,301

~ 28,500

1,500 |

13,33,239

' 6,16,68,008

'1,80,000

47,75,281

1,80,000

6,16,68,008

14,673

20,861
51,754

12,868

! . |
| 9.46,650

_5,46,650
4,00,000

1,567,300
62,568,850

53,62,569

12,868

80,730 |

2,14, 000 |

135250

25,000
14,045

68,46,130

54,600
1,98,250 '
1,025 |
8,425 |
1,025
12,500 -

86,650
7,850 .
14,325
9,750 .

4,33,445




Maplc Tie-Up Private Limited
B ~Annexture to Notes to Financial Statement =~
_.{ﬁ_*v.eat;qmoi}gjf_c_a_gr 2016-17
Ualance wﬁh F\gy_e Q;gn Amhmny
TDS Rr\cosvab\e(AY 418 3933 ]
TUS Receivable (AY 1(»-17) - - 2,88,940 2,92,873
loans &Adv n( 2% (A"*»ei} L L )
Amoyh Co Op Hsg Soc 1 id o 5,00,000 .
Bhojraj A mexCHG 1,51,000 B
Ganga N.was»( Ho e 6,111,111
Gnndn Pralm'w Co Op mevi S 2,00,000
Kt 1etan CHS | hi - , - 5,00, OOO
Ch|v( I|<' - 500, OOO
‘_nvam (Jowx C I-xr (e T A ’]70977000
/-\J\/BIIC“ o s‘uff S 8000}
Annja Housing Dc=vwlmpemu‘ - 1,77,00,000 2,02,70,111
Otrier Non Cuzrent Assets N O SRR
Prelimanry expenses S ) 5,27,400 | 5,27,400
N 1,20,182 1,20,182




¥ MAPLLTIE UP PRIVATE LIMITED

HOTESNQTHE ACCOUNTS

24. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOL NTING POLICIES
A, FEINANCIAL STATEMENTS
the financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, on an
acerual basis of accounting, to comply in all material respects with the notified accounting
standards by the Companies Accounting Standards Rules, 2006 and the relevant provisions of
the Compzrics Act, 2013, The accounting poiicies discussed more fully below, are consistent”
with those used in the previous year.

. USE OF ESTIMATES

=
b

The preparation of financial staternonts s confirmity with Indian GAAP requires
management 10 make estimales and assumptions that affect the balances of assets and
~ Fabslities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date and
amounts of incone and expenses during the year. Management periodically assesses whether
there is arn indication that an asset may be impaired and makes provision in the accounts for
any rrapaiment losses estimated. Contingencies are recorded when it is probable that a
liability will be incurred, and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Actual results could
ditter from those estimates. The effecis of adjustment arising from revisions made to the
estimalos ars included in the Profit and Loss statement of the year in which revisions are
rade.
COFIXED ASSETS
Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accwnulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Cost comarises the purchase price and any aitributable cost of bringing the asset to its
warking condition for s intendoed yse.
DBEPRECIATION
Depreeiation on Fixed Asseis is nrovided using written down value method at the rates
prescribed urder Schedule-I5 of the Companies Act, 2013.
EANVENTORIES
Work in Progress is vaiued ot lower of cost or net realizable value.
F. TAXATION
a) Corrent Tax: Current tax is dotermined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable
income for the year deienmined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1067,
) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax s recognised subject to consideration of prudence on the basis of
timing differences being the differences between taxable income and accounting income that
originate in one period and capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods using the

tax rates and laws iha kave beer enacied or substantially enacted asonthe balance sheet date.
eotan & X

Defereed ax assel is recoguised and carriad forward only to th}% &
/3

certainty thet the asser wilt oo cealised in V- ore. =




s REVENUE RECOGNITION
ftems of Income & Expenditure are recognized on accrual basis.

H. PROVISIONS/ CONTINGENCIES

A provision is recognised for a present obligation as a result of past events if it is probable that
e outflow of resources vill be required to settle the obligation and in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based on best estimate of the amount
required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. Liabilities which are material and
whose future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty are treated as contingent
Hability and are disclosed by way of note.
LAMPAIRMENT GF ASSETS
An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the same exceeds its recoverable
arount. Impeirment s «,hm'g,ed to the staternent of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset
identified as impaired. The impairment Joss recognized in prior accounting period is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of the recoverable amount.
I EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Short term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, expected cost of ex-gratia etc. are
recognized in the period in which the emplovec renders the related service

25 Barpings Per Sharer

Farn; ilz'\ ‘rm shares has boen com, ).ll(‘(l as under- 2015-16 2014-15
rofit(Lossy after N Taxation (7,09,438) | (16,51,433)
{Rs}

We l;ﬂltc:’i aver dgc umber of 1 cn ty Shares cu ulsianding 10,000 10,000

Earuings oer 13]’53!"57{558,06 alue of Ra.10/- pe' share)

dasic & Db ted (70.94) [ (165.14)

26. I the opirion of the Board the Current Asseie, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated
value if realised in ordinary cowse of business. The provision for all known liabilities is
adequate end not ia excess of the amount reasonably necessary.

27. Related Pacty Drisclosares in accordance with AS-18:-

A Enterprises over which Major Shareholders/Their Relatives have Significant Influence: -

§rNo | Name of Related P: lrly " Description of Relationship
————— 1| Kiran Poonemchand Mal; KMP

2| Vikasichand Mohan Thatnwar KMP

3 ‘”Rézg(m!t Associates Investment

4 "L}C_()Ix\t] ucticn Pro;eq Pyt Lid AT Fellow Company




B Disclosurs of transactions with related parties and the status of outstanding balances.

Nature of Transactions

Enterprises over which KMP & Their

relatives have significant influence

2015-16 2014-15
“Details of Transaction during th
Loan reccived 1,47,00,000 4,75,00,000
Refund of Loan - o 1,81,89,759 3,51,00,000
Interest provided o 43,468 13,50,043
Investment in partnership firm 15,38,008 (1,70,000)
Clozing Balance
Loan recoived T 8,37,11,000 8,72,00,759
Investment in partnership firm 6,16,68,008 6,01,30,000

28, Contingent Lizbilities:

The Contingent Liabilities during the year under review are NIL. (P.Y.NIL)

29, The figures of Previcus Year have been recast and regrouped wherever considered necessary.

Signatories to Notes No.22 to 27 forming part of the Accounts

For Vinea! Khetan 8 Ascoeiites
Chartered Accoumtants

FIRM Registration No.32442855.

/o
L
NRY
W
Vineet Khatan
Proprictes

Membership No 60270

Kolkata
The 28" May 2016

For and on behalf of the Board

JO}OSJ!G
\ 0 Vikash chond Thances,
17 "LAd dN 311 31dVYWN 404

Director Director
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e 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA-700 001
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS - TELE. : 2210.3203/3235

/‘/M. Ku SlJRANA & CO- 20, SYNAGOGUE STREET

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF RDB REALTY PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Firancial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RDB Realty Private Limited (‘the
company”),which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial parformance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
. Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes the
Q maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of internal financial control, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement whethoer <ue to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into
account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be
included in the audid report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Thuse Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonabile asswanc: about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial staternents. The procedures selecled depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the
financial statemerits that give true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overalt
presentation of the financial stalements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamectj,,-sufﬂment and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.




e

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements, give the information required by the Act in the manner sO required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with tha accounting principles generally accepted in India;

a) inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2016;

b) inthe case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss for the year ended on that date; and

¢) inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 issued by Central Government of India in terms of
Sub Section {11) of Section 143 of the Act on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the said order, we
further report that

i a) The compary is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative
detaits and situation of fixed assets.

b) As explained to us Fixed Assets of the company are physically verified by the management
according to & phased programme designed to cover all the items which considering the size
and nature of operations of the company appears to be reasonable. Pursuant to such
program, no material discrepancies between book records and physical inventory have been
noticed on physical verification.

¢) The company does not hove any immovable property under the head fixed assets, hence
clause is not applicable.

ii. As explained to us, the inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals.
No material discrepancies were neticed on such verification.

ifi. a) The company has granted unsecured loans to parties covered in the register maintained under
cection 129 of the Companies Act 2013.

b)  The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the company’s
tntarest.
o) The loan being repayable on demand, clause regarding schedule of repayment is not applicable.

No party has defaulted in repayment of loan and interest accrued thereon.

iii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to Us, there is adequate
internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business
with regard to purchase of inventory, fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. During the
course of our Audit, we have not come across any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in
the aforesaid internal control system.

iv) fecording to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we are of the opinign;gbat, the Company has not has neither given any
guarantees nor any security to any party c?;é’réd\m ister maintained under section 185 or 186.
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No loan has been given by company in violation of section 185. Further, loan given and investment
made are in compliance with sectior: 186, :

The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and
the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and
the rules framed there under are nat applicable. ’

vi) The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central
government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

vii) a) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information

and explanations given to us, in our opinion the company has generally been regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including income tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty
of excise, cess and any other material statutory dues. There are no undisputed statutory dues
unpaid for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable. Taxes not
stated are not applicable to the company.

"

h) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to information and
explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income tax, service tax, which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute. . Taxes not stated are not applicable to the
company.

viii) According to the records of the Company exarnined by us and the information and explanations given
1o us, the Company has rot defaulted in repayment of dues to banks. Further the company does not
have any oulstanding from financizlinstitution not had issued any debentures.

ix) According to the information and explanations given to us, neither any money was raised by way of
initial public oifer or further public offer {irduding debt instruments) nor any term loan has been
raised, hence the clause is not applicable.

x) According to the infermation and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud by the
company rior on the cornpany by its officers / employees has been noticed or reported during the
vear.

A xi) As exarnined by us, the company has not paid remuneration to managerial personnel during the
period in accordance with the requisite approval mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with
schedule Vo the Companies Act, 2013,

it} The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicable.

xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that all the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

Xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has neither
made any preferential allotment or pr?y;ﬁ?{;q,}g;mnt of shares nor fully or partly convertible

debentures during the year under revie/w/./lﬂa‘hm & not applicable.

G




xv)

Xvi)

o
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According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Hence clause
is not applicahle.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that company is not required to
be registered u/s 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and has obtained such registration.

Report gn Other Legal and Regulatory Requivements

Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opirion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2016 taken
on record by the Board of Diractors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2016 from
heing appointed as a direcior in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

with respect to the adequagy of the inteinal financial controls over financials reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure A.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Cormpanies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us:

a) There are no pending litigations against the Company.

b} The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any materisl foresecable losses,

& Thore has been no delay in transferving amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Faor Vi.K SURANA & CO
Cheartered Accountants
Firra Reg No 3241276

L

LA «,J [y

IRTI KUMAR SURANA

Fartner

Membership No. 061605

20, Synagogue Street, Znd Floor
Dated: 28" Day of May 2016
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ANNEXURE A - REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (1) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF
SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

To the Members of RDIB Realty Private Limifed

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of RDB Realty Private Limited as of
31 March 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Managernent’s Responsibifity for intecnal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implermentation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding ot its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditers’ Resy
Our responsibyility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financiai controls, both applicabie to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Inclia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirernents and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated eficctively in sl otz al respects,

bty

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessinp the risk that @ material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion on the Cempany’s internal financial con,t»:r)}'f???y over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internai Financial Controls over Financial Reporting :

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

i) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and those receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company.

iit) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised

acguisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the finencial statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting mey become inadequate because of chanpes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies of procedures may deteriorate

Opinion

In our opinicn, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31 March 2016, based on the internal control over {inancial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Conlrols Qver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For WVi.E SURANA & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No - 324127E

-~ . et S
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KIRTHKUMAR SLIRANA

Partner

Meimnbership No.06 1605

20, Synagogue Street, 2nd | loor
Dated: 28" Day of May 2016
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; /ﬁB Realty Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016

Particulars No.

Notes As at
31st March 2016
(Amount in ¥)

As at
31st March 2015
{Amount in ¥)

I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1. Shareholders' Funds

a) Share Capitat 1 100,000,000 100,000,000
b) Reserves & Surplus 2 (11,498,660) 88,501,340 (11,310,512) 88,689,488
2. Non Current Liabhilities
a) Other Long Term Liabilities 3 90,000,000 90,000,000 90,000,000 90,000,000
3. Current Llabilities
a) Short Term Borrowings 4 73,479,128 145,879,974
b) Other Current Liabilities 5 1,091,710,011 1,165,189,139 920,398,798 | 1,066,278,772
Total 1,343,690,479 1,244,968,260
I ASSETS
1. Non Current assets
a) Fixed Assets 6
i) Tangible Assets §74,039 710,693
i) iInfangihle Assets i L —— 574,039 - 710,693
a) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 7 43,841 43,841 43,841 43,841
2. Current Assots
a) Inventories 3 1,313,533,503 1,215,977,315
b) Trade Receivable — —
¢) Cash and Bank Balances 9 2,948,562 5,615,000
d) Short Term Loans & Advances 10 26,590,534 22,617,989
e) Other Current Assels —— 1,343,072,599 3,422 | 1,244,213,726
,......__.__,________1
Total 1,343,690,479 ﬁ@f‘

Significant accounting policies and otier notes o finanaial

statements 16 To 23 !

N

This is the Balance Sheet refon ed {0 in our repoit of even date.
The notes referred o abave forms an integral pait of the Financial Statoments

For MK.SURANA & O
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board

RDB REALTY PV Lic.

- Ao 27E “.a"" .
Firm Reg. tlo. : 224127E i ?Y&‘i{& 1 = 13”0‘-0“(

Vi wte Py v Pirector

Director

Kirti Kumar Surana

Partner

Membership No.061605

20, Synagogue Street 7 Flaor,
Kolkata - 700 001.

The 28th day of May 2016

Chief Financial Officer

RDB R LTY Fv . v
oy

\N\ Directof

v /Dfréctor

Company Secretary
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Less: Provision For Tax
- Current Tax - -
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Years 1,462 -
- Deferred Tax o 1,462 = -
PROFIT AFTER TAX (188,148) (1,083,998) .
EARNINGS PER SHARE (OF Rs. 10
PER EQUTY SHARE)
- Basic (0.02) (0.11)
- Diluted (0.02) 1)
Significant accounting policies and other notes .
to financial statements 16 To 23
This is the Slatcrnent of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the Financial Statements
For M.K.SUJRANA & CO For and on behalf of the Board
Charteriad Accountants
_ - RDB REALTY PVT. LTD. RDB REALTY PVT. LTD.
m Reg. No. : 324127E _ /
: ) 5
Y ¥ ol
Proded tive Nv\/\{/
Director Director

SRS o L

Kirti Kumar Surana
Partner
Membership No.061605

Chief Financial Officer

Director

Company Secretary




RDB Realty Private Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended
31st March,2016
{Amount In )

For the year ended
31st March,2015
(Amount in %)

A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (186,686) (1,083,998)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 146,754 170,056 i
Interest Paid 12,385,105 10,871,190 .
Interest Received - 12,531,859 - 11,041,246
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 12,345,173 9,957,248
(Increass) / Decrease in inventaries (97,556,188} (12,484,240}
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables -
(Increase) / Decrease of Short-Term Advances (3,972,545) (61,296)
(Increase) / Decrease of Other Current Assets 3,422 (3,422)
{Increase) / Decrease of Long-Term Liabilities —— —-
increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables o= (60,793)
Increase / (Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities 171,311,213 69,785,902 (4,437,811) (17,047,562)
Cash generated from operations 82,131,075 (7,090,314)
Less: Direct taxes paid/(Refunds) Including Interest (Net) 1,462 e
Cash Flow before Exceptional ltems 82,129,613 (7,090,314)
Net cash Generated/{used) from operating activities 82,129,613 (7,090,314)
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Purchase of fixed assets (10,100) -
Interest Received _ o (10,100 - i
Net cash from Investing activities {10,100 =
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) from Issue of equity shares - -
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings - —
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings (72,400,846) 21,737,287
interest Paid (12,385,105) _ (84,785,951) (10,871,190) 10,866,097
Net cash generated/(used) in finaneing activiiies (84,785,951) 10,866,097
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
(A+B+C) (2,666,438) 3,775,783
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 5615,000 1,839,217
2,048,562 5,615,000
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance 2,948,562 5,615,000
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 2,913,853 5,468,923
Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 34,709 . taBo77 |
2,918,562 o 5,615,000

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For M.K.SURANA & CO

Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board

RDB REALTY PV, Liu.
(“M \ wit Godop Hb{owr

Director

Firm Reg. No. : 324127E

Director
Kirti Kumar Surana
Partner

Membership No.061605
20, Synagogue Street,2nd FIE\

Kolkata - 700 001.
The 28th day of May 2016

Chief Financial Officer

RDB RRALTY PVT. LTU. |-

' Director

Ve

Director

\{\1@,

Company Secretary
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B Realty Private Limited
otes to Consolldated Financlal Statement

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2016 31st March 2015
(Amount in ) (Amount in T)
Notes No. - 1
SHARE CAPITAL
X d Shar ital
15,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
(Previous Year 15,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each) 150,000,000 150,000,000
150,000,000 150,000,000
b. Issued, subscribed and paid-up share ital :
10,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
(Previous Yaar 10,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each) 100,000,000 100,000,000
100,000,000 100,000,000
c. Par value per share
Equity shares 10 10
10 10

d. Reconciliation of number of eguity shares outstanding as at the beginning and as af the end of the year

Particulars As at 318t March 2016 As at 31st March 2015
No. of shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 10,000,000 10,000,000
Add: Number of shares issued during the year
1 -~ Number of shares bought back during the year
i . shares outstanding as at the end of the year 10,000,000 10,000,000

. The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of dividend and repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Each Shareholder is efigible for one vote. The dividend proposed by the

f. Details of shareholders holding more then 5% shares, with voting rights.

As at 31st March 2016

As af 31st March 2015

a) Balance in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance
Add : Profit during the year

sg Name of Equity shareholders Number of shares | % holding in that class | Number of shares | % holding in that class
held of shares held of shares =
1 |RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited 5,363,046 53.63% 5,363,048 53.63%
2 |Sanjay Surana 1,000,000 10.00% 1,000,000 10.00%
3 {Gaurishankar Kothari . 1,000,000 10.00% 1,000,000 | 10.00%
4 [Kedar Nath Dhoot 540,877 5.41% 540,977 541%
5 1Santosh Devi Dhoot 600,000 6.00% 600,000 6.00%
TOTAL 8,504,023 85.04% 8,504,023 85.04%
As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2016 31st March 2015
(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in ¥)
Notes No. - 2
RESERVES & SURPLUS

(11,310,512)
(188,148)

Notes No. - 3
OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Sundry Deposits

(11,498 660)

(10,226,514)
(1,083,098)

(11,498,660

90,000,000

90,000,000

(11,310,512)

(11,340,512)

90,000,000

90,000,000

T




/
/
/

/(ﬁB Realty Private Limited

¥ {Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement

Notes No. - 8
INVENTORIES

Work in Progress (As Certified By The Management)

Nates No. - 9

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
a. Cash and Cash Equivalents :

1,313,533,503

1,313,533,503

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2016 31stMarch 2015
(Amount in Rs.) (Amount in ¥)
Notes No.-4
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Ero! r Than k {Unsecured
Other 73,479,128 145,879,974
73,479,128 145,879,974
Notes No. - §
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advances from Customers 1,007,454 965 919,868,247
Other Liabilities 83,054,251 65,998
Statutory Payables 1,200,795 464,553
| 1,091,710,011 920,398,798
Notes No. -7
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)
Deferred Tax Liabilities on
Depreciation Allowance on Fixed Assets 43,841 43,841
43841 43,841

1,215,977,315

1,215,977,315

Balances with Banks 2,013,853 5,468,923
Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 34,709 146,077
_— 2,948,562 5,615,000
Notes No. - 10
SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
(Unsecured, considered good) '
Other Advances 26,580,534 22.617,989
26,590,534 22,617,989
<] ') )
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RDB Realty Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2016
{Amount in Rs.)

For the year ended
31st March 2015
(Amount in X)

Notes No. - 11
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
a) Sales & Services
Construction Activities
Sale of Land
Services
Total
No -1
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY EXPENSES
Cost of Land & Development Charges
Construction and other Materials
Salaries, Wages, Bonus, Exgratia etc.
Professional Charges
Other Construction Expenses
interest Paid & Other Finance Cost (in accordance with AS-16)

Notes No. - 13
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED
GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRESS
Opening stock o
Work in Progress
Sub Total (A)
Closing stock
Work in Progress (As Certified by the Management)
Sub Total (B)

Total (A - B)
Notes No. - 14 .

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries, Wages, Bonus, Exgratia etc.

Notes No. - 15
OTHER EXPENSES
A} ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL EXPENSES
Rates & Taxes
Auditors Remuneration :
- Statutory Audit Fee
- Tax Audit Fee
Filling Fees
Printing & Stationary
Miscellaneous Expenses
Total

83,481,760
72,830
784,412
27,345
804,636
12,385,105

97,556,188

1,215,977,315

1,215,977,315

1,313,533,503

1,313,533,503

{87,556,188)

15,000

15,000
5712
15,430
1,290

136,685
1,476,365
10,871,190

12,484,240

1,203,483 075

1,203,493,075

1,215,877,315

1,215,077,315

(12,484,240)

878,286

878,286

2,500

20,000
o 20,000

39,932

7,155
5,038
963

35656




RDB REALTY PRIVATE LIMITED .

Financial Year 2015-16
Assessment Year 2016-17

"BIKANER BUILDING"
8/1, LAL BAZAR STREET, KOLKATA - 700 001

PAN AAJCS4437K

COMPUTATION OF TOTAL. |

ME (31.03.2016

Amount Amount Amount
Rs. Rs. Rs.
INCOME FROM BUSINES
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax as per Profit & Loss Alc (186,686)
Add : Depreciation as per Companies Act 146,754
Interest on Borrowed Capital Nil
Municipal Tax Paid for Rented Property Nil
Maintanance Charges Paid for Rented Property Nif
Donation Paid Nil 146,754
(39,932)
Less :Depreciation Allowable as per Income Tax Act 131,220
Rent Considered Separately o Nil
134,220
Incomel/(Loss) From Business (171,152}
GROSS TOTAL INCOME o an1182)
Less - Donation Paid U/S. 80 G (50% of 21,00,000 subject to 10% of GTI) NI
NET INCOME 171,152)
Total Income Rounded Off (U/S 288A) o (m,200)
COMPUTATION OF TAX - T
Tax at Normal Rate
Income Tax @ 30.00% Nil
Add : Surcharges @ 5% Nil
Add : E.Cess + SHEC @ 3.% 3 Nil
Total Tax Payble o Nil
Computation of Book Profit Uls. 113 JB
Book Profits Nil
Minimum Alternate Tax @ 18.5 % il
Add : Surcharges @ 5% Nit
Add : E.Cess + SHEC @ 3.% - Nil
Total Tax Payble . Nil
Tax at Normal Rate is Higher then MAT hence Tax Payable is Nil
Add: interest U/s. 234 B Nil
Add: interest U/s. 234 C B NI
Total Tax payable Nit
Less : TDS L 2,522,575
Tax Payable / (Refundable) __(2,522,575)
Rounded Off for buok entry Wil
BROUGHT FORWARD LOSSES
AY H/P LLOSS B/ILOSS CAP.LOSS
2008-09 - 700,420
2009-10 - 433,957
2010-11 - 183,526
2012-13 - 973,237
2013-14 - 596,000
2014-15 5,454,800
2015-16 - 5,392,100
2016-17 - 171,200
TOTAL - 13,734,040
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RDB REALTY PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

17. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING PQLICIES

A

E.

F.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all the material aspects with Accounting Standards
notified by Central Government under Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 rules made there under and
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The financial statement has been prepared under
historical cost convention on an accrual basis in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP). The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the company except otherwise stated
and are consistent with those used in previous year.

* All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non current as per the Company’s normal

operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.The normal operating
cycle of the company has been considered as 12 months.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to
contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date and amounts of income and expenses during the year.
Examples of such estimates include contract costs expected to be incurred to complete construction
contracts, provision for doubtful debts, income taxes and future obligations under employee retirement
benefit plans. Management periodically assesses whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired and makes provision in the accounts for any impairment losses estimated. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. The effects of adjustment arising from revisions made to the estimates are
included in the statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which such revisions are made.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

a) Revenue from own construction projects are recognized on percentage of completion method. Units for
which agreement for sale is executed ill reporting date are considered for it. Revenue recognition starts
when 20% of estimated project cost excluding land and marketing cost is incurred. Further, units for *
which Deed of Conveyance is executed or possession is given, revenue is recognized fo full extent.

b) Revenue from Joint Venture Development Agreement under work sharing arrangements are recognized
on the same basis as similar to own construction projects independently executed by the company to the
extent of the cormpany’s shaie in joint venture.

c) Revenue from Construction Contracts are recognized on percentage of completion method measured by
reference to the survey of works done up to the reporting date and certified by the client before
finalization of projects accounts.

d) Revenue from services are recognized on rendering of services to customers except otherwise stated.

e) Rental income from assets is recognized for an accrual basis except in case where ultimate collection is
considered doubtful.

f) Interestincome is recognized on accrual basis on a time proportion basis.

FIXED ASSETS
Fixed Assets, including those given on lease, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset
to its working condition for its intended use.
Software is capitalized, where it is expected to provide future enduring economic benefits.
Leasehold land under perpetual lease is not amortized. Lease hold land other than on perpetual lease are
being amortized on time proportion basis over their respective lease periods.

DEPRECIATION
Depreciation is provided on depreciable value (cost minus residual value) using straight line method in the
manner that the assets is depreciated over the useful life stated in "Schedule - 1" of Companies Act, 2013.

INVESTMENTS

All investments are bifurcated into Non Current Investments and Current Investments. Investments that are
readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year from the date of Balance Sheet are
classified as Current Investments. All other investments are classified as Non Current Investments. Current
Investments are carried at lower of cost or fair market value, determined on an individual investment basis.
Non Current Investments are carried at cost--Provision for Diminution in the value of Non Current

. . L LS s ha e
Investments is made, only if such a diminution is other-thantemporary.
N
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G. INVENTORIES
a) Finished Goods: At lower of cost or net realizable value.
by Work-in-Progress: At lower of cost or net realizable value.

Cost comprises of cost of land and development, material cost including material lying at respective sites,
construction expenses, finance and administrative expenses which contribute to bring the inventory to their
present location and condition.

Provision for obsolescence in inventories is made, wherever required.

Work-in-progress- Real Estate projects (including land inventory): represents cost incurred in respect of

unsold area of the real estate development projects or costs incurred on projects where revenue is to be
recognized.

Work-in-progress- Contractual: represents cost of work done yet to be certified / billed.

H. SALES
i) Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax and value added tax, if any, net of sales return.

. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTION

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of
transactions or that approximates the actual rate at the date of transactions.

Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in the
N statement of profit and loss for the period.

Transaction which remains unsettled at the reporting date and reported at rates prevailing as at reporting
date and any exchange gain / loss is recognized in statement of profit and loss.

J. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
i) Short term employee benefits:
Short term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, expected cost of ex-gratia etc. are
recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

i) Post-employment benefits
a) Defined Contribution Plan: Employee benefits in the form of Employees State Insurance Corporation
and Provident Fund are considered as defined contribution plan and the contributions are charged to
the statement of Profit and Loss for the period when the contributions to the respective funds are due.

b) Defined Benefit Plan. Employee benefits in the form of Gratuity and Leave Encashment are
considered as defined benefit plan and are provided for on the basis of an independent actuarial
valuation, using the projected unit credit method, as at the Balance Sheet date as per requirements of
Accounting Standard-15 (Revised 2005) on "Employee Benefits”.

Actuarial gains/losses, if any, are immediately recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss.

K. BORROWING COSTS
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as
part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to

get ready for intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which
they are incurred.

L. TAXATION

a) Current Tax: Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the
year in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1861. Minimum Alternative Tax credit
available under section 115JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961 will be accounted in the year in which the
benefits are claimed.

b) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognized subject to consideration of prudence on the basis of timing
differences being the differences between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one
period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods using the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantially enact 7 balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset is

is reasonable certainty that the asset will be

realized in future.

o




Impairment is charged to the statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as
impaired. The Impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimate of the recoverable amount,

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Mw“ﬁ_ —

Earnings per share is computed as under:- 2014-15

Profit/(Loss) after Taxation (10.83,998)

10,000,000

A Rs) |

Total Equity Shares

‘ ——
Earnings per share {Face value of Rs. 10/-
share)

©.11)

19. SEGMENT REPORTING:.-
a) The Business of the company falls under a single segment ie, Development of Real Estate &
Infrastructure”. In view of the general classification issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India for Companies operating in single segment, the disclosure feguirement not applicable to the
company.

b) The Company’s business is mainly concentrated in simitar geographical, political and economical
conditions; hence disclosure for Geographical segment is not requireqd.

20. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:-
In terms of Accounting Standard-18 are ag under:
The Company had no enterprise under jts control during the year under review,

‘é) Related party relationships are identified by the Company on the basis of available information which has
been relied upon by the auditors.

21, Interest amounting to Rs. 1,23,85,105/- (Previous_,.y.aa[ﬂs. 1,08,71,190/—) paid on loans taken for real estate
projects has been included in the value of inventar as e R




22. In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated value if
realised in ordinary course of business. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of
the amount reasonably necessary. There is no contingent liability except stated and informed by the

Management.

23. The figures of Previous Year have been recast and regrouped whérever considered necessary.

Signatories to Notes forming part of the Accounts

For and on behalf of the Board

For M. K.SURANA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. : 324127E RDB REALTY PVT. LTD.

Pandech Hivewd

Director

Director
KIRTI KUMAR SURANA
Partner

Membership No.0681605
Kolkata

The 28" day of May, 2016

Chief Financial Officer

RDB LTY PVILT

7 W Director

Director

Company Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members,
M/S. HEADMAN MERCANTILE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements HEADMAN MERCANTILE
PRIVATE LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016, Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
A other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial control, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
. presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
i misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made there under. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.




An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the
Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and operating effectiveness of such controls . An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31° March, 2016, and its loss for
the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Requirements of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016(“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, are not applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

¢) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March,
2016, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March, 2016, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.




f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in Annexure A.

g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which required to be transferred by the Company to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd No. 324428E

J«*/

Vineet Khetan
Proprietor

Membership No: 060270
3B,Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata -700001

28" May, 2016
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HEADMAN MERCANTILE PRIVATE
LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting HEADMAN
MERCANTILE PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internai Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

rq:l




We believe that the audit evidence I/we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my /our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent _limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd No. 324428E

A

Vineet Khetan
Proprietor

Membership No: 060270
3B,Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata -700001

28" May, 2016




Headman Merchantile Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016

Notes As at As at
Particulars No. 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
{Amount in %) (Amount in %)
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders’ Funds
a) Share Capital 1 100,100 100,100
b) Reserves & Surplus 2 8,407,387 8,507,487 7,682,610 7.782.710
2. Non Current Liabilities
a)Long Term Borrowings 3 10,964,574 12,689,249
b)Other Long Term Liabilities 4 4,780,445 15,745,019 1,765,132 14,454 381
3. Current Liabilities
a) Short Term Borrowings 5 12,387,435 13,404,214
b) Trade Payables 6 6,000 ---
c) Other Current Liabilities 7 3,155,518 2,075,700
d) Short Term Provisions 8 200,000 15,748,953 941,000 16,420,914
Total 40,001,459 38,658,005
It ASSETS
1. Non- Current Assets
a) Long Term Loans & Advances 9 166,700
2. Current Assets
a) Inventories 10 32,963,645 31,791,623
b) Trade Receivable 11 30 44
c) Cash and Bank Balances 12 358,673 349,993
d) Short Term Loans & Advances 13 6,254,505 6,303,365
e) Other Current Assets 14 257,906 39,834,759 212,981 38,658,005
Total 40,001,459 38,658,005
Significant accounting policies and other 21 to 26
notes to accounts
Notes referred to above forms an integral
part of the Financial Statements
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Registration No. 324428E HEADMAN MERCANTILE PVT. LTD. HEADMAN MERCANTILE PVT. LTD.
is — -~
, J AT f / vy
RS (Y A
Yy o .
Vineet Khetan
Proprietor Director Director
Membership No.060270

3B, Lal bazar Street,
Kolkata - 700 001
29th May, 2016
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Headman Merchantile Private Limited
Statements of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars No. 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
(Amount in %) (Amount in )
REVENUE
Revenue From Operations 15 85,583 3,360,186
Other Income 18 3,181,246 3,011,210
3,266,829 6,371,396
EXPENSES
Construction Activity Expenses 17 1,172,022 2,244,857
Changes in Inventories of
Finished Goods and 18 (1,172,022) (1,345,145)
Work in Progress
Finance Costs 19 1,646,046 1,733,551
Other Expenses 20 696,083 24,110
: 2,342,129 2,657,373
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 924,700 3,714,023
Less: Provision For Tax
- Current Tax 200,000 941,000
- Tax For Earlier Years (77) 199,923 (164,733) 776,267
PROFIT AFTER TAX 724,777 2,937,756
EARNINGS PER SHARE (OF X
PER EQUITY SHARE)
- Basic 72.41 293.48
- Diluted 72.41 293.48
Notes referred to above forms an integral
part of the Financial Statements

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

\/ Y/ Cg{ :)V b Craded bizewd g% bt W/W/
Vineet Khetan Directot lrec

Proprietor Director Director
Membership No.060270

3B, Lal bazar Street,

Kolkata - 700 001

29th May, 2016

Registration No. 324428E HEADMAN MERCANTILE PVT. LTD. HEADMAN MERCANTILE VT, LT
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Headman Merchantile Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016
For the year ended For the year ended
Cash Flow Statement 31st March,2016 31st March,2015
(Amount in T) (Amount in %)
¢ Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 924,700 3,714,023
Adjustments for
Interest Paid 088,152 088,152 1,491,674 1,491,674
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 1,912,852 5,205,697
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories (1,172,022) (1,345,145)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables 14 285,826
(Increase) / Decrease of Long-Term Advances (166,700) -
(Increase) / Decrease of Short-Term Advances 48 860 13,696,635
(Increase) / Decrease of Other Current Assets (44,925) (43,782)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables 6,000 (8,040,570)
Increase / (Decrease) of Long term Liabilities 3,015,313 (7,000,000)
Increase / (Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities 1,079,818 2,766,358 176,641 (2,270,395)
Cash generated from operations 4,679,210 2,935,302
_ess: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net) 940,923 1,120,267
Cash Flow before Exceptional Items 3,738,287 1,815,035
., Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities 3,738,287 1,815,035
3. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Net cash from investing activities -— ---
. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings (1,724,675) (1,635,696)
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings (1,016,779) 1,308,279
Interest Paid (988,152) (3,729,606) {1,491,674) (1,819,091
Net cash generatedi/(used) in financing activities (3,729,606 (1,819,091)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents E\
(A+B+C) 8,681 (4,055)
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 349,993 354,048
358,674 349,993
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance 358,674 349,993
~ASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 300,147 344,877
o Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 58,526 5115
‘ 358,674 349,993 |

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For Viheet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants

) . , ~ AR
ReglstratlorVa 324428E ( :‘af}ij " Py de b H;ngr (o lr
O Directol
Director
Vineet Khetan
Proprietor
Membership No.060270

3B, Lal bazar Street,
Kolkata - 700 001

29th May, 2016

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

HEADMAN MERCANTILE PVT. LTD. HEADMAN MERCANTILE PVT. LTO

‘ éfif/ww/ (s

Director
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Directq
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Headman Merchantile Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statement

As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
{Amount in ) (Amount in )
Notes No.-1
SHARE CAPITAL
a. Authorised Share Capital
Number of Equity shares
20,000 (Previous year 20,000) 200,000 200,000
200,000 200,000
b. Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital .
Number of Equity shares fully paid up
10,010 (Previous year 10,010) 100,100 100,100
100,100 100,100
¢. Par value per share
Equity shares 10 10
10 10
d. Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding as at the beqinning and as at the end of the year
Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
Number of shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 10,010 10,010
Add: Number of shares issued during the year
Less: Number of shares bought back during the year
Number of shares outstanding as at the end of the year 10,010 10,010

e. The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of dividend and repayment of capital
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- share. Each Shareholder is eligible for one vote per
share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors (if any) is subject to the approval of shareholders, expect in case of interm
dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company in proportion to their holding, after distribution of all preferential amounts.

f, Shares held by holding company and ultimate holding company through self or through subsidiaries or associates
9,800 equity shares of the company are held by holding company "RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited", balance 200 equity shares
are held by 2 {two) director's of the holding company in representative capacity.

. Details of shareholders holding more then 5% shares, with voting rights,

As at 31 Mar, 16 As at 31 Mar, 15
Name of Equity sharehoider Shares;\le(:d) % holding Shares(::;ld) % holding
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited (holding company) 9,800 98.00 9,800 98.00
As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
{Amount in ) {Amount in ¥)
Notes No. - 2
RESERVES & SURPLUS
i.e. Balance in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance 7,682,610 4,744,854
Add : Profit during the year 724,777 2,937,756
8,407,387 7,682,610
8,407,387 7,682,610
Notes No. - 3
LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Term Loan from Bank (Secured) 10,964,574 12,689,249
The loan is secured against first charge over property
Vi classified under inventories and lease rental receivable
from the property. Loan is repayable in 96 equal monthly
instaliment of Rs. 2,65,349/- (incl. interest) starting from
05.11.13 and last installment falling due on 05.10.21. The
rate of interest is Base Rate Plus 2.60 %
10,964 574 12,689,249
Notes No. - 4
OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Agdvance Against Properties 3,015,313
Sundry Deposits 1,765,132 1,765,132
4,780,445 1,765,132




Headman Merchantile Private Limited
Notes to Financlal Statement
As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
(Amount in %) (Amount in %)
Notes No.-5
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Repayable on Demand
From Other Than Bank (Unsecured)
a) Related Parties
b) Others 11,498,098 13,150,000
Add: Interest accrued and due(net of TDS) 889,337 12,387,435 254,214 13,404,214
12!387!435 13!404!214
Notes No. -6
TRADE PAYABLES
Sundry Creditors
Trade Payables
a)Services 6,000
b)Expenses e
* The Company is in with its supp to the applicabiiity of
“The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006". As on the date of
this Balance Sheet the Company has not ived any from any of its
suppliers regarding the applicability of the Act to them.
6,000
Notes No. -7
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Book Overdraft from Banks 834,212 -
Other Liability ) 414,312 437,414
Advance From Others
Outstanding Statutory Payment 110,726 28,253
Current Maturities of Long Term Loan 1,682,689 1,477,987
interest accrued but not due 113,579 132,046
3,155,518 2,075,700
Notes No. -8
SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Income Tax 200,000 941,000
200,000 941,000
Notes No. -9
LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
Security Deposits 166,700 -
186,700 o
Notes No. - 10
INVENTORIES
Finished Goods 27,009,400 26,890,755
Work in Progress . 5,054,245 4,900,868
32,963,645 31,791,623
Notes No. - 11
TRADE RECEIVABLE
{Unsecured, considered good)
Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months
Other Debts 30 44
30 44
Notes No. - 12
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and Cash Equivalents ;
Balances with Banks 300,147 344,877
Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 58,526 358,673 5115 349 993
358,673 349,993
Notes No. - 13
SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
(Unsecured, considered good)
Other Advances 6,254 505 6,303,365
6,254,505 6,303,365
Notes No. - 14
QOTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Service Tax Input 44,399
TDS Receivables 213,507 212,981
257,906 212,981




Headman Merchantile Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statement
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
(Amount in %) {(Amount in )
} / Notes No.-15
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sales & Services
Construction Activities - 1,720,613
Other Charges 85,583 1,639,573
85,583 3,360,186
Notes No. - 16
OTHER INCOME
Miscellaneous inmcome
Rental income 3,181,246 3,011,210
Interest received on FD/INSC
3,181,246 3,011,210
Notes No. - 17
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY EXPENSES
Interest On Project Loan -
Construction and other Materials -
Land development -
Interest paid on Loan taken 988,152 1,491,674
Professional Charges -
Other Construction Expenses 183,870 753,183
1,172,022 2,244,857
Notes No. - 18
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED
GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRESS
, Opening stock
Finished Goods 26,890,755 25545610
Work in Progress 4,900,868 4,900,868
‘Sub Total (A) 31,791,623 30,446,478
Closing stock
Finished Goods 27,009,400 26,890,755
Work in Progress (As certified by the management) 5,954,245 4,900,868
Sub Total (B) 32,963,645 31,791,623
Total (A - B) (1,172,022) (1,345,145
Notes No. - 19
FINANCE COSTS
Finance Charges -
Bank Interest 1,645 747 1,733,349
Bank charges 299 202
1,646,046 1,733,551
Notes No. - 20
OTHER EXPENSES
Filling Fees 1,240 2,835
Legal and Consultancy Charges 1,120
Business Promotion 11,000
Maintenance Charges 680,102
Rates & Taxes 4,423 4,400
Auditors Remuneration :
- Statutory Audit Fee 5,000 5,000
- Tax Audit Fee 5,000 5,000
Other Expenses 4,198 875
7 696,083 24,110




7 /dman Merchantile Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statement

’_"21. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/ These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India under the
historical cost convention on accrual basis. These financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with
the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Companies Act;, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating

B. REVENUE RECOGNITION

a) Revenue from own construction projects are recognised on percentage of completion method. Units for which agreement for
sale is executed till reporting date are considered for it. Revenue recognition starts when 20% of estimated project cost
excluding land and marketing cost is incurred. Further, units for which Deed of Conveyance is executed or possession is given,
revenue is recognised to full extent.

b) Revenue from Joint Venture Development Agreement under work sharing arrangements are recognized on the same basis as
similar to own construction projects independently executed by the company to the extent of the company’s share in joint
venture.

¢) Revenue from Construction Contracts are recognised on percentage of completion method measured by reference to the
survey of works done up to the reporting date and certified by the client before finalisation of projects accounts.

d) Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services to customers except otherwise stated.

e) Rental income from assets is recognized for an accrual basis except in case where uitimate collection is considered doubtful.

f) Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis.

C. INVENTORIES
a) Finished Goods: At lower of cost or net realisable value.
b) Work-in-Progress: At lower of cost or net realisable value.
Cost comprises of cost of land and development, material cost including materia! lying at respective sites, construction
expenses, finance and administrative expenses which contribute to bring the inventory to their present location and condition.

Provision for obsolescence in inventories is made, wherever required.

Work-in-progress- Real Estate projects (including land inventory): represents cost incurred in respect of unsold area of the
real estate development projects or costs incurred on projects where revenue is to be recognized.

Work-in-progress- Contractual: represents cost of work done yet to be certified / billed.

D. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

E. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
i) Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax and value added tax, if any, net of sales return.
ii) Rental Income: Rental income is exclusive of service tax.

F. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
i) Short term employee benefits:

Short term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, expected cost of ex-gratia etc. are recognized in the period in

which the employee renders the related service.

iy Post-employment benefits

a) Defined Contribution Plan: Employee benefits in the form of Employees State Insurance Corporation and Provident Fund
are considered as defined contribution plan and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
period when the contributions to the respective funds are due.

b) Defined Benefit Plan: Employee benefits in the form of Gratuity is considered as defined benefit plan and are provided for
on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method, as at the Balance Sheet date as
per requirements of Accounting Standard-15 (Revised 2005) on “Employee Benefits”.

jii) Actuarial gains/losses, if any, are immediately recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.




.adman Merchantile Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement

. BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such
assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

s
/ H. TAXATION

a) Current Tax: Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year in accordance
with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Minimum Alternative Tax credit available under section 115JB of the Income
Tax Act, 1961 will be accounted in the year in which the benefits are claimed.

b) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognised subject to consideration of prudence on the basis of timing differences being the
differences between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or
more subsequent periods using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted as on the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that the
asset will be realised in future.

1.  PROVISIONS/CONTINGENCIES
A provision is recognised for a present obligation as a result of past events if it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based on best
estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation as at the Balance Sheet date. Liabilities which are material and whose
future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty are treated as contingent liability and are disclosed by way of note.
22. Earnings per share in accordance with AS-20
As at As at
Earnings per share is computed as under:- 31st March, 31st March,
2016 2015
Profit available for Equity Shareholders (A) (Rs.) 724,777 2,937,756
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding (B) (Nos.) 10,010 10,010
Earnings per share (Face value of Rs.10/- per Eguity Share) 72 .41 293 48
(A/B) (Rs.)
23. Segment Reporting:-
The Business of the company fall under a single segment i.e. Development of Real Estate & Infrastructure”. In view of the general
classification notified by Central Government in exercise of power conferred u/s 211(3C) of Companies Act, 1956 for company
operating in a single segment, the disclosure requirement as per AS — 17 on ‘Segment Reporting’ is not applicable to the company.
The Company's business is mainly concentrated in similar geographical, political and economical conditions; hence disclosure for
Geographical segment is also not required.
24. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS - 18:-
The company had no enterprise under its control during the year under review.
The company had no transactions with any Key Management Personnel & their relatives:-
Person / Entities able to exercise control by virtue of shareholding:-
Sl. No. Name Designation /Relationship
1 RDB REALTY & INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED | Holding Company
, Disclosure of transactions between the Company and related parties and the outstanding balances.
Amount in )
Enterprises over which KMP &
Holding Company their relatives have significant
Nature of Transactions influence
As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2016 March, 2015 March, 2016 March, 2015
Interest Paid - 1,209,214 -
Unsecured Loan Received — 1,552,974
Unsecured Loan Repaid 13,648,909
Closing Balance
Unsecured Loan Taken

e T o




"édman Merchantile Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statement

25. In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated value if realised in ordinary course

of business. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary. There is no
contingent liability except stated and informed by the Management.

26. Contingent Liability — Nil (P. Y. Nil)

27. Previous year's figures have been rearranged and regrouped wherever necessary so as to make them comparable with those of

28. Note 1 to 27 forms an integral part of financial statements

For Vineet Khetan & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants HEADMAN MERCANTILE PVT, LTD:
Registration No. 324428E HEADMAN MERCANTILE PVT, LTD. , )
,, ?l iy Pz!alwkh;rcwf_ @‘Qﬁ { (.
/ 40 ' irecto¥
\Ib\ Director

Director Director
Vineet Khetan
Proprietor
Membership No.060270
8, Lal bazar Street,
.olkata - 700 001
28th May, 2016




"BIKANER BUILDING"

Headman Merchantile Private Limited

8/1, LAL BAZAR STREET, KOLKATA - 700 001

Financial Year 2015-16
Assessment Year 2016-17
P/A No. AABCH7247L
COMPUTATION OF TOTAL INCOME (31.03.2016)
Amount Amount Amount
Rs. Rs. Rs.
INCOME FROM BUSINESS
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax as per Profit & Loss A/c 924,700
Add : Depreciation as per Companies Act Nil
Interest on Borrowed Capital Nil
Maintenance Exp. Not Allowable 680,102 680,102
1,604,802
Less :Depreciation Allowable as per Income Tax Act Nil
Rent Considered Separately 3,181,246 3,181,246
(1,576,444)
Less : Carright Forward Business Loss Nil (1,576,444)
INCOME FROM HOUSE PROPERTY
Gross Annual Value 3,181,248
Less : Municipal Tax Nil
Net Annual Value 3,181,246
L Deduction Under Section 24
Standard Deduction @ 30.00% 954,374
Interest on Borrowed Capital Nil 2,226,872
GROSS TOTAL INCOME 650,428
NET INCOME 650,428
COMPUTATION OF TAX
Income Tax @ 30.00% 195,128
Add : Surcharge Nil
Add: E.Cess + SHEC @ 3.00% 5,854
Total Tax Payble 200,982
Add : Interest Paid U/S 234B (752)
UIs 234C (632)
Total Tax & interest Payable 200,982
Less : Self Tax Paid Nil
TDS Receivable 213,507
Tax Payable / (Refundable) (12,525)
BROUGHT FORWARD LOSSES
A.Y H/P LOSS B/ILOSS SET OFF BALANCE
2013-14 - - - -
2012-13 - -
TOTAL - - - -
Ir "t Working
Te 200,982
TDS 213,507 213507 -
(12,525)
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Apr'16-Sep'16
15% 45% 75% 100% 100%
PAYABLE (1,879) (5,636) (9,394) (12,525) (12,525)
PAID - - . - R -
S'fall (1,879) (5.636) (9,394) (12,525) (12,525)
Int. @1% (56) (169) (282) (125) (752)
IntU/s 234C —>» (632.00) Int U/s 234B
MAT U/S 115 JB
Book Profit 924700
18.5% of Book Profit 171070
Profit as per Normal Provision 195,128
Tax Payble as per Normal Provision (12,525)

As per Computation above




VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
% J 5th Floor, R. No. : 7, 3B, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 1, E-mail : khousehouse71@gmail.com

(M) 9331040655, 9831165410, Phone : (033) 3022 2030, 2248 5330, 4066 1047

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To, :
The Members,
M/S. KASTURI TIE-UP PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements KASTURI TIE-UP PRIVATE
LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016, Statement of Profit and
Loss for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial control, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made there under. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor




considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the
Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and operating effectiveness of such controls . An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 3 1* March, 2016, and its loss for
the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Requirements of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016(“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, are not applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. :

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March,
2016, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March, 2016, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in Annexure A.




P

g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.
il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which required to be transferred by the Company to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd No. 324428E

ﬂm/

Vineet Khetan
Proprietor

Membership No: 060270
3B,Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata -700001

28" May, 2016




ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KASTURI TIE-UP PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting KASTURI TIE-UP

PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering. the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial

reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves perforrﬁing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.




We believe that the audit evidence l/we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my /our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd No. 324428E

Vineet Khetan
Proprietor

Membership No: 060270
3B,Lal Bazar Street

Kolkata -700001
28" May, 2016




é,‘(’.

Kasturi Tie Up Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2016

Notes As at As at
Particulars No. 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
(Amount in %) (Amount in ¥)
i EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders' Funds
a) Share Capital 1 100,000 100,000
b) Reserves & Surplus 2 8,963,396 9,063,396 7,744,644 7,844,644
2. Non Current Liabilities
a) Long Term Borrowings 3 10,964,574 12,689,249
b) Other Long Term Liabilities 4 2,154,498 13,119,072 2,154,498 14 843,747
3. Current Liabilities
b) Short Term Borrowings 5 9,115,155 8,187,589
c) Trade Payables 6 6,530 e
d) Other Current Liabilities 7 4,805,491 3,599,726
e) Short Term Provisions 8 350,000 14,277,176 815,000 12,602,315
Total 36,459,644 35,290,705
I ASSETS
Long Term Loans & Advances
a) Long Term Loans & Advances 9 180,125 180,125 -
1. Current Assets
a) Inventories 10 35,600,207 34,662,897
b) Trade Receivable 11 1,598 1,301
c) Cash and Bank Balances 12 374,866 387,513
d) Other Current Assets 13 302,848 36,279,519 238,985 35,290.705
Total 36,459,644 35,290,705
Significant accounting policies and 20 to 25
other notes to accounts
(0)
Notes referred to above forms an
integral part of the Financial
Statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants KASTURI TIE LTD.
Registration No. 324428E 1,? frad UpP :DY:- \';}Q KASTUR' TIE UP PVT.
~ , (4 I i o ,
q\ Directot 7 Directof
Vineet Khetan
Proprietor Director Director

Membership No.060270
3B, Lal bazar Street,
Kolkata - 700 001

28th May, 2016




Kasturi Tie Up Private Limited

Statements of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2016

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars No. 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
(Amount in X) (Amount in )
REVENUE
Revenue From Operations 14 85,583 1,639,573
Other Income 15 3,882,984 3,675,448
3,968,567 5,315,021
EXPENSES
Construction Activity Expenses 16 937,310 1,756,359
Changes in Inventories of
Finished Goods and 17 (937,310) (1,756,359)
Work in Progress
Finance Costs : 18 1,645,918 1,733,635
Other Expenses 19 754,603 28,735
2,400,521 1,762,370
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 1,568,046 3,552,651
Less: Provision For Tax
- Current Tax 350,000 815,000
- Tax For Earlier Years (706) 349,294 (230,600) 584,400
PROFIT AFTER TAX 1,218,752 | 2,968,251
EARNINGS PER SHARE (OF X
PER EQUITY SHARE)
- Basic 121.88 296.83
- Diluted 121.88 296.83
Notes referred to above forms an
integral part of the Financial
Statements

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Registration No. 324428E KASTURI TIE UP PVT. LTD.
P g ’
; FAERA! T

Vineet Khetan
Proprietor

Membership No.060270
3B, Lal bazar Street,
Kolkata - 700 001

28th May, 2016

Directot

Director

rodet Hrew s T

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

KASTURI TIE UP PVT. LTD.
s %g)&‘fg%ﬂwf/&

Directof
Director




Kasturi Tie Up Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended

31st March,2016
(Amount in )

For the year ended

31st March,2015
(Amount in %)

A. Cash flow from operating activities :

Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 1,668,046 3,552,651
Adjustments for
Interest Paid 753,440 753,440 1,003,176 1,003,176
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 2,321,486 4,555,827
(Increase) / Decrease of Other Current Assets (937,310) (32,395)
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories (937,310) (1,756,359)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables (297) 4,920,831
(Increase) / Decrease of Long-Term Advances (180,125) -
(Increase) / Decrease of Other Current Assets (63,853) (32,395)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables 6,530 (437,414)
Increase / (Decrease) of Long Term Liabilities -—- (7,000,000)
Increase / (Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities 1,205,765 30,710 2,048,600 (2,256,737)
Cash generated from operations 2,352,196 2,299,090
Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net) 814,294 1,054,400
Sash Flow before Exceptional ltems 1,637,902 1,244 690
((" Net cash Generated/{used) from operating activities 1,537,902 1,244,690
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Net cash from investing activities -—— ---
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings (1,724,675) (1,635,696)
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings 927,566 1,427,327
Interest Paid (753,440) (1,550,549) (1,003,176) (1,211,545
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities {1,550,549) (1,211,545
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
(A+B+C) (12,647) 33,145
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 387,513 354,368
374,866 387,513
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance 374,866 387,513
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 323,893 379,951
¢ Cashon hand (As certified by the management) 50,873 7,562
' 374,866 387,513

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Registration No. 324428E ) (
\/d\ & )s 2,\ b

Vineet Khetan
Partner
Membership No.060270

3B, Lal bazar Street,
Kolkata - 700 001
28th May, 2016

For and on behalf of the Board

Director

KASTURI TIE UP PVT. LTD.
Cpodech Mivew

—

T\
Qe
Directot

Director

KASTYRI TIE UP PVT. LTD.

L zc/w7 72

irectof




Notes to Financial Statement

/kasturl Tie Up Private Limited

preferential amounts.

f. Shares held by holding company and ultimate holding company. through self or through subsidiaries or associates

director's of the holding company in representative capacity.

q. Details of shareholders holding more then 5% shares, with voting rights.

As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
(Amount in X) (Amount in X)
Notes No. -1
SHARE CAPITAL
a. Authorigsed Shart ital
Number of Equity shares
20,000 (Previous year 20,000) 200,000 200,000
200,000 200,000
Al d i nd paid- har ital :
Number of Equity shares fully paid up
10,000 (Previous year 10,000) 100,000 100,000
100,000 100,000
c. Par value per. re
Equity shares 10 10
10 10
d. Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding as at the beginning and as at the end of the year
Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
Number of shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 10,000 10,000
Add: Number of shares issued during the year e -
Less: Number of shares bought back during the year
Number of shares outstanding as at the end of the year 10,000 10,000
refere restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of dividend and repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- share. Each Shareholder is eligible for one vote per share. The dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors (if any) is subject to the approval of shareholders, expect in case of interm dividend. In the event of liquidation of the
Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company in proportion to their holding, after distribution of ail

9,800 equity shares of the company are held by holding company "RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited", balance 200 equity shares are held by 2 (two)

As at 31 Mar, 16

As at 31 Mar, 15

Name of Equity shareholder Shares held

o
{No.) % holding

Shares held
(No.)

% holding

RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited (holding company) 9,800 98.00

9,800

98.00

As at
Particulars 31st March 2016
(Amount in T)

As at
31st March 2015
(Amount in ¥)

Notes No. -2
RESERVES & SURPLUS
i.e. Balance in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance 7,744,644
Add : Profit during the year 1,218,752

4,776,393
2,968,251

8,963,396
8,963,396

Notes No. -3

LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Term Loan from Bank (Secured) 10,964,574

The loan is secured against first charge over property classified under
inventories and lease rental receivable from the property. Loan is
repayable in 96 equal monthly installment of Rs. 2,65,349/- (incl.
interest) starting from 05.11.13 and last instaliment falling due on
05.10.21. The rate of interest is Base Rate Plus 2.60 %

10,964,574

Notes No. - 4

OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Advance against properties
Sundry Deposits 2,154,498

2,154,498

7,744,644

7,744,644

12,689,249

12,689,249

2,154,498

2,154,498




(Kasturi Tie Up Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statement
As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2016 314st March 2015
(Amount in ) {Amount in X)
Notes No. -5
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Repayable on Demand
From Other Than Bank (Unsecured)
a) Related Parties -
b) Others 8,437,059 e 8,089,415
Add: Interest Accrued and Due (Net of TDS) 678,096 9,115,155 98,174
9,115,155 8,187,589
Notes No. -6
TRADE PAYABLES
Trade Payables *
Sundry Creditors
a) Services 6,530 -
b) Expenses 6,530 e
* The Company is in communication with its suppliers to ascertain the
applicability of “The Micro, Smalt and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006". As on the date of this Balance Sheet the Company has not received any
communications from any of its suppliers regarding the applicability of the Act
to them.
6,530
Notes No. -7
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES :
Book Overdraft from Banks 915,242
0 Other Liability 2,004,769 1,979,011
Outstanding Statutory Payment 89,212 10,681
Current maturities of Long Term loan 1,682,689 1,477,987
Interest accrued but not due (from LTB) 113,579 132,046
4,805,491 3,599,726
Notes No. -8
SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Provision for Income Tax 350,000 815,000
350,000 815,000
Notes No. -9
LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
Sundry Deposits 180,125
180,125
Notes No. - 10
INVENTORIES
Finished Goods 25,432,325 25313680
Work in Progress 10,167,882 9,349,217
35,600,207 34,662,897
Notes No. - 11
TRADE RECEIVABLE
(Unsecured, considered good)
Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months
{ Other Debts 1,598 1,301
1,598 1,301
Notes No. - 12
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and Cash Equivalents :
Balances with Banks 323,893 379,951
Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 50,973 374,866 7,562 387,513
374,866 387,513
Notes No. - 13
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Service Tax input 42,588
tncome tax advance and TDS 260,260 238 994
302,848 238,995




Kasturi Tie Up Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statement

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
{Amount in T) (Amount in ¥)
Notes No. - 14
REVEN ROM OPERATION
Sal rvices
Construction Activities -
Other Charges 85,583 1,639,573
85,583 1,639,573
Notes No. - 1§
OTHER INCOME
Miscellaneous Income
Rental Income 3,882,984 3,675,448
Interest Received on FD/NSC ---
3,882,984 3,675,448
Notes No. - 16
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY EXPENSES
Construction and other Materials
Land Development cost -
Interest paid on loan taken* 753,440 1,003,176
Professional Charges -
Other Construction Expenses 183,870 753,183
* Interest paid on loans taken for real estate projects has been included in
the value of inventory in accordance with AS-16 - "Borrowing Costs".
937,310 1,756,359
Notes No. - 17 )
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED
GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRESS
Opening stock ) ’
Finished Goods 25,313,680 23,557,321
Worlk in Progress 9,349,217 9,349,217
Sub Total (A) 34,662,897 32,906,538
Closing stock
Finished Goods 25,432,325 25,313,680
Work in Progress (As certified by the management) 10,167,882 9349 217
Sub Total (B) 35,600,207 34,662,897
Total (A - B) (937,310) (1,756,359)
Notes No. - 18
EINANCE COSTS
Bank Interest 1,645,747 1,733,349
Bank Charges 171 1,645,918 286 1,733,635
1,645,918 1,733,635
Notes No. - 19
OTHER EXPENSES
Legal and Professional Charges 1,120
Business Promotion Expenses 16,500
Filing Fees 1,240 2,835
Rates & Taxes 4,423 4,400
Maintenance Charges 740,162 -
Auditors Remuneration : ——-
- Statutory Audit Fee 5,000 -- 5,000
- Tax Audit Fee 5,000 5,000
Missellenous Expenses 2,658
754,603 28,735




Kasturi Tie Up Private Limited
The Notes forming part of the Financial Statement

20. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India under
the historical cost convention on accrual basis. These financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material
aspects with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

B. REVENUE RECOGNITION

a) Revenue from own construction projects are recognised on percentage of completion method. Units for which agreement
for sale is executed till reporting date are considered for it. Revenue recognition starts when 20% of estimated project cost
excluding land and marketing cost is incurred. Further, units for which Deed of Conveyance is executed or possession is
given, revenue is recognised to full extent.

b) Revenue from Joint Venture Development Agreement under work sharing arrangements are recognized on the same basis
as similar to own construction projects independently executed by the company to the extent of the company’s share in joint
venture.

¢) Revenue from Construction Contracts are recognised on percentage of completion method measured by reference to the
survey of works done up to the reporting date and certified by the client before finalisation of projects accounts.

d) Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services to customers except otherwise stated.

e) Rental income from assets is recognized for an accrual basis except in case where ultimate collection is considered
doubtful.

. f) Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis.

C. INVENTORIES
a) Finished Goods: At lower of cost or net realisable value.
b) Work-in-Progress: At lower of cost or net realisable value.
Cost comprises of cost of land and development, material cost including material lying at respective sites, construction
expenses, finance and administrative expenses which contribute to bring the inventory to their present location and
condition.
Provision for obsolescence in inventories is made, wherever required.

Work-in-progress- Real Estate projects (including land inventory): represents cost incurred in respect of unsold  area of
the real estate development projects or costs incurred on projects where revenue is to be recognized.
Work-in-progress- Contractual: represents cost of work done yet to be certified / bilied.

D. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly fiquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

E. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
i) Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax and value added tax, if any, net of sales return.
i) Rental Income: Rental income is exclusive of service tax.

F. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
i) Short term employee benefits:
Short term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, expected cost of ex-gratia etc. are recognized in the period
in which the employee renders the related service.
i) Post-employment benefits
a) Defined Contribution Plan: Employee benefits in the form of Employees State Insurance Corporation and Provident
Fund are considered as defined contribution plan and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
for the period when the contributions to the respective funds are due.




O

‘Kasturi Tie Up Private Limited
The Notes forming part of the Financial Statement

21,

22,

23.

b) Defined Benefit Plan: Employee benefits in the form of Gratuity is considered as defined benefit plan and are provided
for on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method, as at the Balance Sheet
date as per requirements of Accounting Standard-15 (Revised 2005) on “Employee Benefits”.

iliy Actuarial gainsflosses, if any, are immediately recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

. BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of
such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use or sale.
Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

. TAXATION

a) Current Tax: Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year in
accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Minimum Alternative Tax credit available under section 115J8
of the income Tax Act, 1961 will be accounted in the year in which the benefits are claimed.

b) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognised subject to consideration of prudence on the basis of timing differences being the
differences between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one
or more subsequent periods using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted as on the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is reasonable
certainty that the asset will be realised in future.

PROVISIONS/CONTINGENCIES

A provision is recognised for a present obligation as a result of past events if it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based on
best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation as at the Balance Sheet date. Liabilities which are material and
whose future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty are treated as contingent liability and are disclosed by
way of note.

EARNINGS PER SHARE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS-20

As at As at
Earnings per share is computed as under:- 31st March, 31st March,
2016 2015
Profit available for Equity Shareholders (A) (Rs.) ' 1,218,752 2,968,251
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding (B} (Nos.) 10,000 10,000
Earr.’unqs Per share (Face value of T 10/~ per Equity Share) 12188 296,83
Basic & Diluted (A/B) (Rs.)
SEGMENT REPORTING:-

The Business of the company fall under a single segment i.e. Development of Real Estate & Infrastructure”. In view of the
general classification notified by Central Government in exercise of power conferred u/s 211(3C) of Companies Act, 1956 for
company operating in a single segment, the disclosure requirement as per AS — 17 on ‘Segment Reporting’ is not applicable to
the company. The Company's business is mainly concentrated in similar geographical, political and economical conditions;
hence disclosure for Geographical segment is also not required.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS - 18:-
The company had no enterprise under its control during the year under review.
The company had no transactions with any Key Management Personnel & their relatives:-
Person / Entities able to exercise control by virtue of sharehoiding:-

Sl. No. [Name Designation /Relationship

-

RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited Holding Company

Disclosure of transactions between the Company and related parties and the outstanding balances.
Amount in (Rs.)

Enterprises over which KMP &
Holding Company their relatives have significant
Nature of Transactions influence

As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2016 March, 2015 March, 2016 March, 2015

Interest Paid — 894153 —
Unsecured Loan Received - 1020000
Unsecured Loan Repaid 7780262

Closing Balance

Unsecured Loan Taken
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24. In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated value if realised in ordinary
course of business. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary.
There is no contingent liability except stated and informed by the Management. .

25. Contingent Liability — Nil (P. Y. Nil)

26. Previous year's figures have been rearranged and regrouped wherever necessary so as to make them comparable with those

27. Note 1 to 27 forms an integral part of financial statements

For Vineet Khetan & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants KASTURI TIE UP PVT. LTD.  KASTURI TIE UP PVT. LTD.

Registration No. 324428E ; L |
\/6\)-0//// g )? DH/ Pﬂu‘c * hDTrecto‘ §m .Ob W Directsf

Director Director

Vineet Khetan
Proprietor

Membership No.060270
3B, Lal bazar Street,
Kolkata-700 001

28th May, 2016




KasturiTie Up Private Limited
"BIKANER BUILDING"
8/1, LAL BAZAR STREET, KOLKATA - 700 001

Financial Year  2015-16
Assessment Year 2016-17
P/A No. AACCKB545K
COMPUTATION OF TOTAL INCOME (31.03.2016)
Amoun Amount Amount
Rs. Rs. Rs.
INCOME FROM BUSINESS
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax as per Profit & Loss A/c 1,568,046
Add : Depreciation as per Companies Act Nit
Interest on Borrowed Capital Nil
Maintenance Charges 740,162
Donation Paid Nit 740,162
2,308,208
Less :Depreciation Allowable as per income Tax Act Nil
Rent Considered Separately 3,882,984 3,882,984
(1,574,776)
Less : Carright Forward Business Loss Nil (1,574,776)
INCOME FROM HOUSE PROPERTY
Gross Annual Value 3,882,984
Less : Municipal Tax Nil
Net Annual Value 3,882,984
Less :Deduction Under Section 24
Standard Deduction @ 30.00% 1,164,895
interest on Borrowed Capital Nit 2,718,088
GROSS TOTAL INCOME 1,143,313
NET INCOME 1,143,313
COMPUTATION OF TAX
Income Tax @ 30.00% 342,994
Add : Surcharge Nil
Add : E.Cess + SHEC @ 3.00% 10,290
Total Tax Payble 353,284
Add : Interest Paid U/S 2348 5,581
U/S 234C 4,698 10,279
Total Tax & Interest Payable 363,563
Less : Self Tax Paid Nil
TDS Receivable 260,260
Tax Payable / (Refundable) 103,303
BROUGHT FORWARD LOSSES
AY H/P LOSS B/ILOSS SET OFF BALANCE
2013-14 - - - -
2012-13 - -
TOTAL - - - -
Interest Working
Tax 353,284
TDS 260,260
93,024
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Apr13-Sep'13
15% 45% 75% 100% 100%
PAYABLE 13,954 41,861 69,768 93,024 93,024
PAID - - R - . .
S'fall 13,954 41,861 69,768 93,024 93,024
Int. @1% 419 1,256 2,083 930 5,581
IntU/s 234C —»  4,698.00 IntU/s 234B
MAT U/S 115 JB
Book Profit 1,568,046
18.5% of Book Profit 290,089
Profit as per Normal Provision 342,994
Tax Payble as per Normal Provision 103,303

As per Computation above
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members,
M/S. TRITON COMMERCIAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements TRITON COMMERCIAL PRIVATE
LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016, Statement of Profit and
Loss for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial control, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made there under. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the
Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and operating effectiveness of such controls . An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31% March, 2016, and its loss for
the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Requirements of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016(“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, are not applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

é) The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

¢) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March,
2016, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the djrectors is disqualified as on
31 March, 2016, from being appointed as a director jn termsof Section 164(2) of the Act.




f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in Annexure A.

g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which required to be transferred by the Company to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd No. 324428E

e

Vineet Khetan
Proprietor

Membership No: 060270
3B,Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata -700001

28™ May, 2016




ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TRITON COMMERCIAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting TRITON COMMERCIAL

PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence l/we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my /our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd No. 324428E

e

Vineet Khetan

Proprietor

Membership No: 060270 -
3B,Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata -700001

28™ May, 2016
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Triton Commercial Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2016

Notes As at As at
Particulars No. 31st March 2016 . 31st March 2015
(Amount in %) {Amount in %)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Sharehoiders’ Funds

a) Share Capitat 1 100,000 100,000

b) Reserves & Surplus 2 8,989,160 9,089,160 7,771,336 7,871,336
2. Non Current Liabilities

a) Long Term Borrowings 3 10,964,574 12,689,249

b) Other Long Term Liabilities 4 2,154,498 13,119,072 2,154,498 14,843,747
3. Current Liabilities

a) Short Term Borrowings 5 7,701,261 6,859,512

b) Trade Payables 6 6,091 -

c) Other Current Liabilities 7 4,359,610 3,187,873

d) Short Term Provisions 8 350,000 12,416,962 816,000 10,863,385

Total 34,625,194 33,578,468
il ASSETS

1. Current Assets
1. Non- Current Assets

a) Long Term Loans & Advances 9 180,125
2. Current Assets

a) Inventories 10 33,486,667 32,667,520

b) Trade Receivable 11 1,596 1,299

c¢) Cash and Bank Balances 12 374,982 374,588

d) Short Term Loans & Advances 13 278,964 296,066

e) Other Current Assets 14 302,860 34,445,069 238,995 33,578,468

Total 34,625,194 33,578,468

tSolgargggﬁmsaccountmg policies and other notes 21 to 27
Notes referred to above forms an integral part
of the Financial Statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates

Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors LTD
Registration No. 324428E TRITON COMMERCIAL PVT. LTD. TRITON COMMERCIAL PVT. LI
W ! d ¥ . ;
V.l (g fredernr oo galtiday)t
Sl i o irecto

Vineet Khetan Directof Dire
Proprietor Director Director
Membership No.060270

3B, Lal bazar Street,
Kolkata - 700 001
28th May, 2016
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Triton Commercial Private Limited
Statements of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2016

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars No. 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
(Amount in ) (Amount in ¥)
REVENUE
Revenue From Operations 15 85,583 1,639,573
Other Income 16 3,882,984 3,675,448
3,968,567 5,315,021
EXPENSES
Construction Activity Expenses 17 819,147 1,510,179
Changes in Inventories of
Finished Goods and 18 (819,147) (1,510,179)
Work in Progress
Finance Costs 19 1,645,747 1,733,382
Other Expenses 20 754,920 23,785
2,400,667 1,757,167
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 1,567,900 3,557,854
,\(;Q Less: Provision For Tax
. - Current Tax 350,000 816,000
- Tax For Earlier Years 76 350,076 (230,690 585,310
PROFIT AFTER TAX 1,217,824 2,972,544
EARNINGS PER SHARE (OF ¥
PER EQUITY SHARE)
- Basic 121.78 297 .25
- Diluted 121.78 297.25
Notes referred to above forms an
integral part of the Financial
Statements

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
_ |Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 324428E

Vineet Khetan
Proprietor

Membership No.060270
3B, Lal bazar Street,
Kolkata - 700 001

28th May, 2016

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
TRITON COMMERCIAL PVT. LTD.

Director

Director

TRITON COMMERCIAL PVT. LTD,

, " beacl(e,b Jn et ~r e ‘(/LJV“ &,
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Triton Commercial Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016

For the year ended For the year ended |
Cash Flow Statement 31st March,2016 31st March,2015
{Amount in T) (Amount in 3)
A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 1,567,900 3,557,854
Adjustments for
Interest Paid 635,277 635,277 756,996 756,996
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 2,203,177 4,314,850
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (819,147) (1,510,179)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables (297) 3,716,897
(Increase) / Decrease of Long-Term Advances (180,125) -
(Increase) / Decrease of Short-Term Advances 17,102 1,203,934
(Increase) / Decrease of Other Current Assets (63,865) (32,395)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables 6,091 (6,000)
increase / (Decrease) of Long term Liabilities —-— (7,000,000)
increase / (Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities 1,171,737 131,495 1,654,942 (1,972,801)
Cash generated from operations 2,334,672 2,342,049
Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) Include Interest (Net) 816,076 1,054,310
Cash Flow before Exceptional ltems 1,518,596 1,287,739
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities 1,518,596 1,287,739
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Net cash from investing activities - n-
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Net Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings (1,724,675) (1,635,696)
Net Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings 841,749 1,131,864
Interest Paid (635,277) (1,518,203) (756,996) (1,260,828)
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities (1,518,203) (1,260,828)
Net increasel/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
(A+B+C) 394 26,911
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 374,588 347 678
374,983 374,589 |
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance 374,983 374,588 |
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 323,893 366,911
Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 51,089 7678
374,983 374,588
; This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
For Vineet Khetan & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants TRITON COMMERCIAL PVT. LTD. TRITON COMMERCIAL PVT. LTD.
Registration N?324428E PX adeck Hi¥e wd &?1{: . , {,{7& / JLLV A
. < A .
\/O\N/ Q QLM,‘ Directof - Dirpctof
Director Director
Vineet Khetan :
Proprietor
Membership No.060270
3B, Lal bazar Street,
Kolkata - 700 001
28th May, 2016
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Triton Commercial Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statement

As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
(Amount in ¥) (Amount in %)
Notes No. -1
SHARE CAPITAL
a. Authorised Share Capital
Number of Equity shares
20,000 (Previous year 20,000) 200,000 200,000
200,000 200,000
1 u i an id-up share capital ;
Number of Equity shares fully paid up
10,000 (Previous year 10,000) 100,000 100,000
100,000 100,000
¢. Par value per share
Equity shares 10 10
10 10

d. Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding as at the beqinning and as at the end of the year

Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
Number of shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 10,000 10,000
Add: Number of shares issued during the year -
Less: Number of shares bought back during the year -
Number of shares outstanding as at the end of the year 10,000 10,000

to their holding, after distribution of all preferential amounts.

g. Details of sharehoiders holding more then 5% shares, with voting rights.

© & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of dividend and repayment of capital
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/-
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors (if any) is subject to the approval of shareholders, expect in case of interm dividend. In the
event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company in proportion

I. Shares held by holding company and ultimate holding company through self or through subsidiaries or associates
9,800 equity shares of the company are held by holding company "RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited", balance 200 equity shares are
held by 2 (two) director's of the holding company in representative capacity.

share. Each Shareholder is eligible for one vote per share.

Sl

No Name of Equity sharehoiders

As at 31 March, 2016

As at 31 March, 2015

Shares held (No.) % holding

Shares held
{No.}

% holding

1 |RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited

9,800

98.00

9,800

98.00

Particulars

As at
31st March 2016
(Amount in )

As at

31st March 2015
(Amount in %)

Notes No. - 2
RESERVES & SURPLUS
i.e. Balance in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance
Add : Profit during the year

Notgs No.-3

LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Secured Loan From Bank

The loan is secured against first charge over property classified under
inventories and lease rental receivable from the property. Loan is
repayable in 96 equal monthly installment of Rs. 2,65,349/- (indl.
interest) starting from 05.11.13 and last instaliment falling due on
05.10.21. The rate of interest is Base Rate Plus 2.60 %

Notes No. -4

OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Advance against properties
Sundry Deposits

7,771,336
1,217,824

8,989,160

4,798,792
2,972,544

8,989,160

10,964,574

10,964,574

2,154,498

2,154,498

7,771,336

7,771,336

12,689,249

12,689,249

2,154,498

2,154,498




Triton Commercial Private Limited

Notes to. Financial Statement

Particulars

As at

31st March 2016

(Amount in X)

As at

31st March 2015
{Amount in &)

Notes No. - §
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
From Other Than Bank (Unsecured)
a) Related Parties
b) Others
Add: Interest accrued and due

Notes No. -6

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade Payables *
* The Company is in communication with its suppliers to ascertain the
applicability of “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006". As on the date of this Balance Sheet the Company has not received
any communications from any of its suppliers regarding the applicability of the
Act to tham.

Notes No. -7
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Book Overdraft from Banks
Current Maturities of Long Term Loan
Interest Accured But Not Due
Other Liability
Advances from Others
Outstanding Statutory Payment

Notes No. -8

SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Income Tax

Notes No.-9
LONG TERM LOANS 8 ADVANCES

L L

Security Deposits

Notes No. - 10

INVENTORIES
Finished Goods
Work in Progress

Notes No. - 11
TRADE RECEIVABLE
(Unsecured, considered good)

Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months
Other Debts

Notes No. - 12
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and Cash Equivalents :
Balances with Banks
Cash on hand (As certified by the management)

Notes No. - 13
SHORT TERM LOANS 8 ADVANCES

(Unsecured, considered good)
Other Advances

7,129,512
571,749

7,701,261

6,775,000
84,512

6,859,512

7,701,261

6,091

6,091

912,589
1,682,689
113,579
1,673,355

77,398

4,359,610

350,000

350,000

180,125

27,660,277

5,826,390

33,486,667

1,696

1,596

323,893
51,089

374,982

6,859,512

1,477,987
132,046
1,547,597
17,102
13,141

3,187,873

816,000

816,000

5,125,888
27,541,632

32,667,520

1,299

1,299 |

366,911
7,678

374,982

278,964

278,964

374,588

374,588

266,066

296,066




Triton Commercial Private Limited
INotes to Financial Statement
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
{Amount in ) (Amount in T)
Notes No : 14
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Service Tax Input 42,600 -
Income Tax And Tax Deduct At Source . 260,260 238,995
302!860 238,995
Notes No. - 15
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Constructions -—-
Maintenance & Other Charges 85,583 1,639,573
85,583 1,639,573
Notes No. - 16
OTHER INCOME
RENT INCOME 3,882,984 3,675,448
INTEREST on FD/NSC -
3,882,984 3,675,448
Notes No. - 17
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY EXPENSES
Construction and other Materials
Land development
Interest on Project Loan”
@ Interest Paid on Loan taken 635,277 756,996
Professional Charges
Other Construction Expenses 183,870 753,183
* Interest paid on loans taken for real estate projects has been included in
the value of inventory in accordance with AS-16 - “Borrowing Costs”.
819,147 1,510,179
Notes No. - 18
CHANGES [N INVENTORIES OF FINISHED
GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRESS
Opening stock
Finished goods 27,541,632 26,304,453
Work in Progress 5,125,888 4,852,888
Sub Total (A) 32,667,520 31,157,341
Closing stock
Finished goods 27,660,277 27,541,632
Work in Progress (as certified by the management) 5,826,390 5,125,888
Sub Total (B) 33,486,667 32,667,520
Total (A - B) (819,147) (1,510,179)
Notes No. - 19
FINANCE COSTS
Bank Interest 1,645,747 1,733,349
Bank Charges 33
( 1,645,747 1,733,382
) Notes No. - 20
OTHER EXPENSES
Legal and Professional Charges 1,100
Business Promotion 11,500
Rates & Taxes 4,423 4,400
Maintenance Charges 740,243
Other Expenses 2,914 50
Filing Fees 1,240 2,835
Listing Fees
Auditors Remuneration :
- Statutory Audit Fee 5,000 5,000
- Tax Audit Fee 5,000 5,000
754,920 23,785




viton Commercial Private Limited
e Notes forming part of the Financial Statement

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India under the
historical cost convention on accrual basis. These financial statements have been prepared to comply in alt material aspecis with the
accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria
set out in the Schedule Hl to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of
assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12
months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

B. REVENUE RECOGNITION

a) Revenue from own construction projects are recognised on percentage of completion method. Units for which agreement for sale
is executed till reporting date are considered for it. Revenue recognition starts when 20% of estimated project cost excluding land
and marketing cost is incurred. Further, units for which Deed of Conveyance is executed or possession is given, revenue is
recognised to full extent.

b) Revenue from Joint Venture Development Agreement under work sharing arrangements are recognized on the same basis as
similar to own construction projects independently executed by the company to the extent of the company's share in joint
venture.

¢) Revenue from Construction Contracts are recognised on percentage of completion method measured by reference to the survey
of works done up to the reporting date and certified by the client before finalisation of projects accounts.

d) Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services to customers except otherwise stated.

e) Rental income from assets is recognized for an accrual basis except in case where ultimate collection is considered doubtful.

f) Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis.

C. INVENTORIES
a) Finished Goods: At lower of cost or net realisable value.
b) Work-in-Progress: At lower of cost or net realisable value.
Cost comprises of cost of land and development, material cost including material lying at respective sites, construction expenses,
finance and administrative expenses which contribute to bring the inventory to their present location and condition.

Provision for obsolescence in inventories is made, wherever required.

Work-in-progress- Real Estate projects (including land inventory): represents cost incurred in respect of unsold  area of the real
estate development projects or costs incurred on projects where revenue is to be recognized.

Work-in-progress- Contractual: represents cost of work done yet to be certified / billed.

D. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original matunty
of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

E. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
i) Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax and value added tax, if any, net of sales return.
ii) Rental Income: Rental income is exclusive of service tax.

F. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
i) Short term employee benefits:
Short term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, expected cost of ex-gratia etc. are recognized in the period in
which the employee renders the related service.
iy Post-employment benefits
a) Defined Contribution Plan: Employee benefits in the form of Employees State Insurance Corporation and Provident Fund are
considered as defined contribution plan and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period
when the contributions to the respective funds are due.

b) Defined Benefit Plan: Employee benefits in the form of Gratuity is considered as defined benefit plan and are provided for on
the basis of an independent actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method, as at the Balance Sheet date as per
requirements of Accounting Standard-15 (Revised 2005) on "Employee Benefits”.

iiiy Actuarial gainsflosses, if any, are immediately recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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.yfie Notes forming part of the Financial Statement
4

< G BORROWING COSTS
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such

assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred. )

H. TAXATION

a) Current Tax: Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year in accordance with
the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Minimum Alternative Tax credit available under section 115JB of the Income Tax
Act, 1961 will be accounted in the year in which the benefits are claimed.

b) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognised subject to consideration of prudence on the basis of timing differences being the
differences between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or
more subsequent periods using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted as on the balance sheet
date. Deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that the asset will
be realised in future.

. PROVISIONS/CONTINGENCIES
A provision is recognised for a present obligation as a result of past events if it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based on best
estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation as at the Balance Sheet date. Liabilities which are material and whose future
outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty are treated as contingent liability and are disclosed by way of note.

22. Earnings per share in accordance with AS-20

As at As at
Earnings per share is computed as under:- 31st March, 31st March,
p 2016 2015
{‘ Profit available for Equity Shareholders (A) (Rs.) 1,217,824 2,972,544
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding (8) (Nos.) 10,000 10,000
Earr'ﬂngs Q_ er share (Face value of T 10/- per Equity Share) 12178 297.25
Basic & Diluted (A/B) (Rs.)

23. Segment Reporting:-
The Business of the company fall under a singie segment i.e. Development of Real Estate & Infrastructure”. In view of the general
classification notified by Central Government in exercise of power conferred u/s 211(3C) of Companies Act, 1956 for company
operating in a single segment, the disclosure requirement as per AS — 17 on ‘Segment Reporting’ is not applicable to the company
The Company's business is mainly concentrated in similar geographical, political and economical conditions; hence disclosure for
Geographical segment is also not required.

24. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS - 18:-
The company had no enterprise under its control during the year under review.
The company had no transactions with any Key Management Personnel & their relatives:-
Person / Entities able to exercise control by virtue of shareholding:-
Sl. No. Name Designation /Relationship

1 RDB REALTY & INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED | Holding Company B

Disclosure of transactions between the Company and related parties and the outstanding balances.
- Amount in (Rs.)

Enterprises over which KMP &
Holding Company their relatives have significant
Nature of Transactions influence
As at 31st As at 31st March, As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2016 2015 March, 2016 March, 2015
Interest Paid - 663,094 i~
Unsecured Loan Received - 1,000,000
Unsecured Loan Repaid - 6,727,648
Closing Balance
Unsecured Loan Taken - — .
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- siton Commercial Private Limited

25. In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated value if realised in ordinary course
of business. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary. There is no
contingent liability except stated and informed by the Management.

26. Contingent Liabitity — Nil (P. Y. Nil)

Previous year's figures have been rearranged and regrouped wherever necessary so as to make them comparable with those of the

2. current year.

28. Note 1 to 27 forms an integral part of financial statements

For Vineet Khetan & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants TRITON COMMERCIAL PVT. LTD. TRITON COMMERCIAL PVT. \TD.
Registration No. 324428E s s
\// ( }» Pra.clcebhl ¥e x )ke;. w{uﬂ*
\M Q L’ W Direcw D|rect°‘
Director s Director
Vineet Khetan
Proprietor
Membership No.060270

3B, Lal bazar Street,
Kolkata - 700 001
28th May, 2016




Triton Commercial Private Limited
"BIKANER BUILDING"
8/1, LAL BAZAR STREET, KOLKATA - 700 001

Financial Year 2015-16
Assessment Year 2016-17
P/A No. AACCTS535E

COMPUTATION OF TOTAL INCOME (31.03.2018)

Amount Amount Amount
Rs. Rs. Rs.
INCOME FROM BUSINESS
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax as per Profit & Loss Alc 1,567,900
Add : Depreciation as per Companies Act Nil
Interest on Borrowed Capital Nil
Maintenance Charges 740,243
Donation Paid Nii 740,243
2,308,143
Less :Depreciation Allowable as per Income Tax Act Nil
Rent Considered Separately 3,882,984 3,882,984
(1,574,841)
Less : Carright Forward Business Loss Nil (1,574,841)

INCOME FROM HOUSE PROPERTY
Gross Annual Value 3,882,984

Less : Municipal Tax . NIl
Net Annual Value 3,882,984
Less :Deduction Under Section 24
Standard Deduction @ 30.00% 1,164,895
Interest on Borrowed Capital Nit 2,718,089
GROSS TOTAL INCOME 1,143,248
NET INCOME 1,143,248
COMPUTATION OF TAX
Income Tax @ 30.00% 342,974
Add : Surcharge Nil
Add : E.Cess + SHEC @ 3.00% 10,289
Total Tax Payble 353,264
Add : Interest Paid U/S 234B 5,580
U/S 234C 4,698 10,278
Total Tax & Interest Payable 363,542
Less : Self Tax Paid Nit
TDS Receivable 260,260
Tax Payabie / (Refundable) 103,282
BROUGHT FORWARD LOSSES
AY HIP LOSS B/LOSS SET OFF BALANCE
2013-14 - 8,611 8,611 -
2012-13 - -
TOTAL - 8,611 3,611 -
Interest Working
Tax 353,264
TDS 260,260
93,004
Apr16-
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Sep'16
15% 45% 75% 100% 100%
PAYABLE 13,951 41,852 69,753 93,004 93,004
PAID - - - - - -
S'all 13,951 41,852 69,753 93,004 93,004
Int. @1% 419 1,256 2,093 930 5,580
Int Uls 234C —»  4,698.00 jInt U/s 234B

MAT U/S 115 JB

Book Profit 1,567,900
MAT 18.5% of Book Profit 290,062
Tax as per Normal Provision 342,974
Tax Payble as per Normat Provision 103,282

As per Computation above




VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES

/ CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
\ J Sth Floor, R. No. : 7, 3B, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 1, E-mail khousehouse71@gmail.com

(M) 9331040655, 9831165410, Phone : (033) 3022 2030, 2248 5330, 4066 1047

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members,
M/S. BAHUBALI TIE-UP PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

. We have audited the accompanying financial statements BAHUBALI TIE-UP PRIVATE
€« LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016, Statement of Profit and

Loss for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial control, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made there under. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.




An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the
Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and operating effectiveness of such controls . An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements. '

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 3 1% March, 2016, and its loss for
the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Requirements of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016(*‘the Order™) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, are not applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March,
2016, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March, 2016, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.




f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in Annexure A.

g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.
il The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which required to be transferred by the Company to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd No. 324428E

A

Vineet Khetan
Proprietor

Membership No: 060270
3B,Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata -700001

28" May, 2016




ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BAHUBALI TIE-UP PRIVATE LTD

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting BAHUBAL! TIE-UP
PRIVATE LTD (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial

reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.




We believe that the audit evidence l/we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my /our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd No. 324428E

N2

Vineet Khetan
Proprietor

Membership No: 060270
3B,Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata -700001

28" May, 2016
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Bahubali Tie-Up Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2016

Notes As at As at
Particulars No. 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
(Amountin ) (Amountin )
| EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders' Funds
a) Share Capital 1 100,000 100,000
b) Reserves & Surplus 2 8,984,044 9,084,044 7,767,429 7,867,429
2. Non Current Liabilities
a)l.ong Term Borrowings 3 10,964,573 12,689,248
b)Other Long Term Liabilities 4 2,154,498 13,119,071 2,154,498 14,843,746
3. Current Liabilities
a) Short Term Borrowings 5 10,009,957 8,512,188
b) Trade Payables 6 6,092
c¢) Other Current Liabilities 7 4,355,127 3,183,711
d) Short Term Provisions 8 350,000 14,721,176 766,500 12,462,399
Total 36,924,291 35,173,574
I ASSETS
1. Non - Current Assets .
a) Long term Loans & Advances 9 181,255 1,130
1. Current Assets
a) Inventories 10 35,032,209 33,530,203
b) Trade Receivable 11 1,683 1,296
¢) Cash and Bank Balances 12 377,478 393,772
d) Short Term Loans & Advances 13 1,024,735 1,008,178
¢e) Other Current Assets 14 307,021 36,743,036 238,995 35,172,444
Total 36,924,291 35,173,574
Significant accounting policies and other [
notes to accounts 211026
Notes referred to above forms an integral
part of the Financial Statements
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For Vineet Khetan & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants T
Registration No. 324428E BAHUBALI TIE UP PVTILTD- - B/:HUBALI TIE UP PVT. L
: SRR »
\/fo ! Directof 7.0 ~ Fe Direct
Vineet Khetan ‘
Proprietor Director Director

Membership No.060270
3B, Lal bazar Street,
Kolkata - 700 001

28th May, 2016




Bahubali Tie-Up Private Limited

Statements of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2015

Registration No. 324428E
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Vineet Khetan Directt

Proprietor Director

Membership No.060270

3B, Lal bazar Street,
Kolkata - 700 001
28th May, 2016
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Notes For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars No. 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
(Amount in °) (Amount in 7)
REVENUE
Revenue From Operations 15 85,583 1,639,573
Other Income 16 3,882,984 3,675,448
3,968,567 5,315,021
EXPENSES
Construction Activity Expenses 17 1,602,007 1,021,388
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and 18 (1,502,007) (1,921,387
Work in Progress
Finance Costs 19 1,646,375 1,870,771
Other Expenses 20 755,437 30,464
2,401,812 1,901,236
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 1,566,755 3,413,785
Less: Provision For Tax
- Current Tax 350,000 766,500
- Tax For Earlier Years 140 350,140 (219,938) 546,562
PROFIT AFTER TAX 1,216,615 2,867,223
EARNINGS PER SHARE (OF ' PER EQUITY
SHARE)
- Basic 121.66 28672
- Diluted 121.66 286.72
Notes referred to above forms an integral part of the
Financial Statements
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For Vineet Khetan & Associates
- |Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Director

BAHUBAL! TIE UP PVT, LTC. BAHUBAU TIE UP PVT. LTD.
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Directd
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Bahubali Tie-Up Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statement

: As at As at
Vi Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
(Amount in ") (Amountin )

Notes No. - 1
SHARE CAPITAL
a. Authorised Share Capital
Number of Equity shares
20,000 (Previous year 20,000) 200,000 200,000

200,000 200,000

b. Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital :
Number of Equity shares fuily paid up
10,000 (Previous year 10,000) 100,000 100,000

100,000 100,000

¢. Par value per share
Equity shares 10 10

10 10

d. Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding as at the beginning and as at the end of the year

Particulars 31st March 2015 31st March 2014

.r' Number of shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 10,000 10,000

Add: Number of shares issued during the year -

Less: Number of shares bought back during the year

Number of shares outstanding as at the end of the year 10,000 ' 10,000
. Details of shareholders holding more then 6% shares, with voting rights,
’ As at 31 March, 2016 As at 31 March, 2015
Si. .
No Name of Equity shareholders Number of { % holding in that class| Number of | % holding in that class
shares held of shares shares held of shares
1 |RDB Realty & infrastructure Limited 10,000 100 10,000 100
As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
(Amount in ) (Amountin )
Notes No. -2
RESERVES & SURPLUS
i.e. Balance in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance 7,767,429 4,900,205
Add : Profit during the year 1,216,615 2,867,224
‘i: : 8,984,044 7,767,429
8,984,044 71,767,429
Notes No. -3
LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Term Loan 10,964,574 12,689,248
10,964,574 12,689,248
Notes No. -4
OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Advance against properties - e
Sundry Deposits 2,154,498 2,154,498
2,154,498 2,154,498




Bahuball Tie-Up Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statement

As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
Amount in °) (Amount in °)
Notes No. -5
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
From Other Than Bank (Unsecured)
Related Parties -— -
Others 9,302,188 8,365,000
Add: Interest accrued and due 707,769 10,009,957 147,188 8,512,188
10,009,957 8,512,188
Notes No. - 6
JRADE PAYABLES
Expenses
Trade Payables * 6,092 -
* The Company is in communication with its suppliers to ascertain the applicability
of “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006°. As on the
date of this Balance Sheet the Company has not received any communications
from any of its suppliers regarding the applicability of the Act to them.
6,092
Notes No. -7
QOTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Book Overdraft from Banks 890,897
Current Maturities of Long Term Loan 1,682,689 1,477,987
Interest accured but not due (from LTB) 113,579 132,046
Qutstanding Statutory Payment 94,607 16,180
Other Liability 1,573,355 1,557,497
4,355,127 3,183,711
Notes No. -8
SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Provision For Taxation 350,000 766,500
350,000 766,500
Notes No. -9
LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Sundry Deposits 181,255 1,130
181,255 1,130
Notes No. - 10
INVENTORIES
Finished Goods 28,475,275 28,370,273
Work in Progress 6,556,934 5,159,930
35,032,208 33,530,203
Notes No. - 11
TRADE RECEIVABLE
(Unsecured, considered good)
Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months -
Other Debts 1,593 1,296
1,593 1,296
Notes No. - 12
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and Cash Equivalents :
Balances with Banks 323,893 355,272
Cash In hand (As certified by the management) 53,585 38,500
377,478 393,772
377,478 393,772
Notes No. -13
SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
(Unsecured, considered good)
Other Advances 1,024,735 1,008,178
1,024,735 1,008,178
Notes No. - 14
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Service tax input 46,761
Income Tax advance and TDS 260,260 238,995
307,021 238,995




: Bahubali Tie-Up Private Limited
A/ Notes to Financial Statement
/s For the year ended For the year ended
g Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
(Amount in °) {Amountin”)
Notes No. - 15
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sales & Services
Construction Activities - -
Maintenance And Other Charges 85,583 1,639,573
. B5583 | [ 1.639.573 |
Notes No. - 16
OTHER INCOME
Miscellaneous Income
Rentat Income ‘ 3,882,984 3,675,448
Interest Received on FD/NSC
3,882,984 3,675,448
Notes No. - 17
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY EXPENSES
Land development cost -
Construction and other Materials -
Interest on Project Loan* -
p Professional Charges
intererst Paid on Loan 807,369 900,355
Other Construction Expenses 694,638 1,021,033
* interest paid on loans taken for real estate projects has been included B
in the value of inventory in accordance with AS-16 - "Borrowing Costs". . -
1,502,007 1,921,388
Notes No. - 18 '
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED
GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRESS
Opening stock
Finished Goods 28,357,934 26,702,597
Work in Progress 5,172,268 4,906,218
Sub Total (A) - 33,630,202 31,608,815
Closing stock
Finished Goods 28,475,275 28,357,934
Work in Progress (As certified by the management) 6,556,934 5,172,268
Sub Total (B) 35,032,209 33,530,202
Total (A - B) (1,502,007) (1,921,387)
Notes No. - 19
FINANCE COSTS
Finance Charges
Bank Interest 1,645,747 1,870,569
Bank Charges 628 202
“ 1,646,375 1,870,771
£ INotes No.-20
OTHER EXPENSES
Electricity Expenses - -
Business Promotion - 17,500
Legal and Professional Charges 620
Rates & Taxes 4,423 4,400
Interest on TDS
Repair & Maintenance 736,083
Filing Fees 1,240 2,835
Auditors Remuneration :
- Statutory Audit Fee 5,000 - 5,000
- Tax Audit Fee . 5,000 5,000
Conveyance Expenses 5,407 729
General Expenses 2,664
755,437 30,464




Bahubali Tie-Up Private Limited
The Notes forming part of the Financial Statement

21. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India under
the historical cost convention on accrual basis. These financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material
aspects with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in the Schedule 11t to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

B. REVENUE RECOGNITION

a) Revenue from own construction projects are recognised on percentage of completion method. Units for which agreement
for sale is executed till reporting date are considered for it. Revenue recognition starts when 20% of estimated project cost
excluding land and marketing cost is incurred. Further, units for which Deed of Conveyance is executed or possession is
given, revenue is recognised to full extent.

b) Revenue from Joint Venture Development Agreement under work sharing arrangements are recognized on the same basis
as similar to own construction projects independently executed by the company to the extent of the company’s share in joint
venture.

c) Revenue from Construction Contracts are recognised on percentage of completion method measured by reference to the
survey of works done up to the reporting date and certified by the client before finalisation of projects accounts.

" d) Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services to customers except otherwise stated.
&‘ e) Rental income from assets is recognized for an accrual basis except in case where ultimate coliection is considered
doubtful. .
f) Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis.

C. INVENTORIES

a) Finished Goods: At lower of cost or net realisable value.

b) Work-in-Progress: At lower of cost or net realisable value.
Cost comprises of cost of land and development, material cost including material lying at respective sites, construction
expenses, finance and administrative expenses which contribute to bring the inventory to their present location and
condition.
Provision for obsolescence in inventories is made, wherever required.
Work-in-progress- Real Estate projects (including fand inventory): represents cost incurred in respect of unsold area of
the real estate development projects or costs incurred on projects where revenue is to be recognized.
Work-in-progress- Contractual: represents cost of work done yet to be certified / billed.

D. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

E. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
i) Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax and value added tax, if any, net of sales return.
iy Rental Income: Rental income is exclusive of service tax.

s

F. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
i} Short term employee benefits:
Short term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, expected cost of ex-gratia etc. are recognized in the period
in which the employee renders the related service.
iiy Post-employment benefits

a) Defined Contribution Plan. Employee benefits in the form of Employees State Insurance Corporation and Provident
Fund are considered as defined contribution plan and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
for the period when the contributions to the respective funds are due.

b) Defined Benefit Plan: Employee benefits in the form of Gratuity is considered as defined benefit plan and are provided
for on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method, as at the Balance Sheet
date as per requirements of Accounting Standard-15 (Revised 2005) on “Employee Benefits”.

iy Actuarial gains/losses, if any, are immediately recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.




Bahubali Tie-Up Private Limited

The Notes forming part of the Financial Statement

G.

22.

23.

24,

BORROWING COSTS
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of

such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for mtended use or sale.
Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

TAXATION

a) Current Tax: Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year in
accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Minimum Alternative Tax credit available under section 115JB
of the Income Tax Act, 1961 will be accounted in the year in which the benefits are claimed.

b) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognised subject to consideration of prudence on the basis of timing differences being the
differences between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one
or more subsequent periods using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted as on the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is reasonable
certainty that the asset will be realised in future.

PROVISIONS/CONTINGENCIES

A provision is recognised for a present obligation as a result of past events if it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based on
best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation as at the Balance Sheet date. Liabilities which are material and

whose future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty are treated as contingent liability and are disclosed by
way of note.

EARNINGS PER SHARE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS-20
As at As at
Earnings per share is computed as under:- 31st March, 31st March,
2016 2015
Profit available for Equity Shareholders (A) (Rs.) 1,216,615 2,867,223
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding (B) (Nos.) 10,000 10,000
Earnings per share (Face value of ~ 10/- per Equity Share) 121.66 286.72
Basic & Diluted (A/B) (Rs.) ' '

SEGMENT REPORTING:-

The Business of the company fall under a single segment i.e. Development of Real Estate & Infrastructure”. In view of the
general classification notified by Central Government in exercise of power conferred u/s 211(3C) of Companies Act, 1956 for
company operating in a single segment, the disclosure requirement as per AS — 17 on ‘Segment Reporting’ is not applicable to

the company. The Company’s business is mainly concentrated in similar geographical, political and economical conditions;
hence disclosure for Geographical segment is also not required.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS - 18:-
(i) The company had no enterprise under its control during the year under review.
(i) Other related parties with whom the company had transactions:-

(A) Key Management Personnel & their relatives:-

Sl. No. Name Designation /Relationship

1 RDB REALTY & INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED | Holding Company

(iii) Disclosure of transactions between the Company and related parties and the status of outstanding balances as on
31-March-2016 Amount in (Rs.)

Enterprises over which KMP &
Holding Company their relatives have significant

infl
As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2016 March, 2015 March, 2016 March, 2015

Nature of Transactions

Interest Paid - 736,813 ——
Unsecured Loan Received - 1,095,000 —
Unsecured Loan Repaid - 8,027,397 —- —

Closing Balance
Unsecured Loan Taken —




¥/Bahubali Tie-Up Private Limited

The Notes forming part of the Financial Statement

25. In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated value if realised in ordinary
course of business. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary.
There is no contingent liability except stated and informed by the Management.

26. Previous year's figures have been rearranged and regrouped wherever necessary so as to make them comparable with those
of the current year.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants BAHUBALI TIE UP PVT, LTD. BAHUBALI TIE UP PVT. LTD.

Registration No. 324428E - . S v .
’ I £ fodeck Hivew? T ' #KW&"'V 7 )

s FBIE Director '+ m?’?»i‘“ Directo!
M' Director v Director

Vineet Khetan

|Proprietor

Membership N0.060270

3B, Lal bazar Street,
Kolkata-1
28th May, 2016




Bahubali Tie-Up Private Limited
"BIKANER BUILDING"
8/1, LAL BAZAR STREET, KOLKATA - 700 001
Financial Year 2015-16
Assessment Year 2016-17
P/A No. AACCB9124F
COMPUTATION OF TOTAL INCOME (31.03.2016)

Amount Amount Amount
Rs. Rs. Rs.
INCOME FROM BUSINESS
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax as per Profit & Loss A/c 1,566,755
Add : Depreciation as per Companies Act Nil
Interest on Borrowed Capital Nil
Maintenance Exp. Not Allowed 736,083 736,083
2,302,838
Less :Depreciation Allowable as per Income Tax Act Nii
Rent Considered Separately 3,882,984 3,882,984 (1,580,146)
Less: Carried forward business loss Nil
(1,580,146)
INCOME FROM HOUSE PROPERTY
Gross Annual Value 3,882,984
Less : Municipal Tax Nil
Net Annual Value 3,882,984
Ig .Deduction Under Section 24
Standard Deduction @ 30.00% 1,164,895
Interest on Borrowed Capital Nil 2,718,089
GROSS TOTAL INCOME 1,437,943
NET INCOME 1,137,943
COMPUTATION OF TAX
Income Tax @ 30.00% 341,383
Add : Surcharge . Nil
Add : E.Cess + SHEC @ 3.00% 10,241
Total Tax Payble 351,624
Add : Interest Paid U/S 234B 5,482
U/S 234C 4,614 10,096
Total Tax & Interest Payable 361,720
Less : Self Tax Paid Nil
TDS Receivable 260,260
Tax Payable / (Refundable) 101,460
BROUGHT FORWARD LOSSES
A.Y H/P LOSS BILOSS SET OFF BALANCE
2013-14 - - - -
2012-13 - -
TOTAL - - - -
[~ ~gtWorking
B 351,624
TDS 260,260
91,364
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Apr'15-Sep'15
15% 45% 75% 100% 100%
PAYABLE 13,705 41,114 | 68,523 91,364 91,364
PAID - - - - - -
S'tall 13,705 41,114 68,523 91,364 91,364
Int. @1% 411 1,233 2,056 914 5,482
Int U/s 234C  ~———ormmommm——$ §14.00 | Int U/s 234B
MAT U/S 115 JB
Book Profit 1566755
18.5% of Book Profit 289850
Profit as per Normal Provision 341,383
Tax Payble as per Normal Provision 101,460

As per Computation above




Ny
V" Bahubali Tie-Up Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Cash Flow Statement

A. Cash flow from operating activities :

Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss

Adjustments for '
Interest Paid

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables
(Increase) / Decrease of Long-Term Advances
(Increase) / Decrease of Short-Term Advances
(Increase) / Decrease of Other Current Assets
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables
Increase / (Decrease) of Long term Liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Cash Flow before Exceptional ltems
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Net cash from investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings
Security Deposit paid to WBSEDCL
Interest Paid
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
(A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance

Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance

Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks
Cash on hand (As certified by the management)

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March,2016 31st March,2015
(Amount in ) {Amount in )
1,566,755 3,413,785
694,638 694,638 1,021,033 1,021,033
2,261,393 4,434,818
(1,502,006) (1,921,388)
(297) 1,347,000
(180,125) —
(16,557) (989,178)
(68,026) (32,395)
6,092 (2,433,987)
1,171,416 (589,503) 1,634,064 (2,395,884)
1,671,890 2,038,934
766,640 1,105,062
905,250 933,872
905,250 933,872
1,497,769 1,679,791
(1,724,675) (1,495,723)
(694,638) (921,544) (1,021,033) (936,965)
(921,544) (936,965)
(16,294) (3,093)
393,772 396,864
377,478 393,772
. 377,478 393,772
53,585 38,500
323,893 355272
377,478 393,772

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 324428E

f
Vineet Khetan
Proprietor
Membership No.060270
3B, Lal bazar Street,
Kolkata-1
28th May, 2016
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This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board

BAHUBALI TIE UP PVT. LTD,
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VINEET Kf" AN & oaULIA

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

2

5th Floor, R. No. : 7, 3B, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkat

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members,
m/s. BARON SUPPLIERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements BARON SUPPLIERS PRIVATE
LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016, Statement of Profit and

Loss for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 1n
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial control, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made there under. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s

a- 1, E-mail : khousehouse7 L@gmail.com
(M) 9331040655, 9831165410, Phone : (033) 3022 2030, 2248 5330, 4066 1047




judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the
Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and operating effectiveness of such controls . An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31% March, 2016, and its loss for
the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Requirements of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016(“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, are not applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

¢) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March,

2016, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on

31 March, 2016, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
Ve




f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in Annexure A.

/ g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which required to be transferred by the Company to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd No. 324428E

e

Vineet Khetan
Proprietor

Membership No: 060270
3B,Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata -700001

28" May, 2016




ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BARON SUPPLIERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting BARON SUPPLIERS

PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.




We believe that the audit evidence I/we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my /our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd No. 324428E

e

Vineet Khetan
Proprietor

Membership No: 060270
3B,Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata -700001

28" May, 2016




Baron Suppliers Private Limited j
/ Statements of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2016 |
( Notes For the year ended For the year ended ‘.\
.7 s Particulars No. 31st March 2016 31st March 2015 '
z (Amount in ) (Amount in ) '
\
REVENUE !
Revenue From Operations 15 85,583 1,639,573 i
Other Income 16 3,882,084 3,675,448 |
3,968,567 | \ 5,315,021 |
EXPENSES
Construction Activity Expenses 17 973,300 1,746,734
Changes in Inventories of
Finished Goods and 18 (973,300) (1,746,734)
Work in Progress
‘ Finance Costs 19 1,645,747 1,870,771
& 0 Other Expenses 20 756,366 26,960
’ 2,402,113 | \ 1,897,731 |
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 1,566,454 3,417,290
Less: Provision For Tax
- Current Tax 350,000 767,000
- Tax For Earlier Years 847 350,847 (223,515) 543,485
| \
PROFIT AFTER TAX 1,215,607 | \ 2,873,805 |
EARNINGS PER SHARE (OF ¥
PER EQUITY SHARE)
- Basic 121.56 287.38
- Diluted 121.56 287.38
Notes referred to above forms an
integral part of the Financial
Statements
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date. \
For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants ‘ For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Registration No . 324428E BARON SUPPLIERS PVT, LTD. BARON SUPPLIERS PVT. LTD.
f b | [JA. 7&
v { . \\(g\.‘) fal)
- Ky radesbh 53 6T Ghaiet
oy v Director Directo
Vineet Khetan irecto i
Proprietor Director Director
Membership No.060270
3B, Lal bazar Street,
Kolkata - 700 001
28th May, 2016
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Baron Suppliers Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2016

Notes As at . As at
Particulars No. 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
{Amount in %) (Amount in ¥)
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders’ Funds
a) Share Capital 1 100,000 100,000
b) Reserves & Surpius 2 8,989,101 9,089,101 7,773,494 7,873,494
2. Non Current Liabilities
a) Long Term Borrowings 3 10,964,574 12,689,248
b) Other Long Term Liabilities 4 2,154,498 13,119,072 2,154,498 14,843,746
3. Current Liabilities
a) Short Term Borrowings 5 9,634,972 8,594,485
b) Trade Payables 6 6,091 -
c¢) Other Current Liabilities 7 5,811,310 4,602,707
d) Short Term Provisions 8 350,000 15,702,372 767,000 13,964,192
Total 37,910,545 36,681,432
Il ASSETS
1. Non - Current Assets
a) Long term Loans & Advances 9 180,125 180,125
1. Current Assets
a) Inventories 10 37,042,034 36,068,734
b) Trade Receivable 11 1,595 1,298
¢) Cash and Bank Balances 12 383,931 372,405
d) Short Term Loans & Advances 13
e) Other Current Assets 14 302,860 37,730,420 238,995 36,681,432
Total 37,910,545 36,681,432
Significant accounting policies and other
21to 27
notes to accounts
Notes referred to above forms an integral
part of the Financial Statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates

Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Registration No . 324428 BARON SUPPLIERS PVT. LTD.  BARON SUPPLIERS PVT. LTD.
oS R s
i : el e
\AL/ Lo Bradupriv [ Lt /4
Vineet Khetan ‘ Director B irector
Proprietor Director Director

Membership No.060270
3B, Lal bazar Street,
Kolkata - 700 001

28th May, 2016
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atement for the year ended 31st March, 2016

For the year ended

For the year ended

7 Cash Flow Statement 31st March,2016 31st March,2015
(Amount in ) (Amount in )
sh flow from operating activities : '
/ Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 1,566,454 3,417,290
/ Adjustments for
/ Interest Paid 1,645,747 1,645,747 1,870,771 1,870,771
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 3,212,201 5,288,061
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (973,300) (1,746,734)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables (297) 3,920,831
(Increase) / Decrease of Long-Term Advances (180,125) -
(Increase) / Decrease of Short-Term Advances - 50,000
(increase) / Decrease of Other Current Assets (63,865) (32,395)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables 6,091 (437,414)
Increase / (Decrease) of Long term Liabilities - (7,000,000)
Increase / (Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities 1,208,603 (2,893) 3,039,382 (2,206,330
Cash generated from operations. 3,209,308 3,081,731
Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net) 767,847 1,101,485
Cash Flow before Exceptional Items 2,441,461 1,980,246
" stcash Generated/{used) from operating activities 2,441,461 1,980,246
t. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Net cash from investing activities ——— -
.. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings (1,724,674) (1,495,723)
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings 940,487 1,406,520
Interest Paid (1,645,747) (2,429,934) (1,870,771) (1,959,974)
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities (2,429,934) (1,959,974)]
Net increasel/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
(A+B+C) 11,526 20,272
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 372,405 352 135
383,931 372,405
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance 383,931 372,405
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 323,893 364,098
1sh on hand (As certified by the management) 60,038 8,307
383,931 372,405

his is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

or Vineet Khetan & Associates
-hartered Accountants

‘egistration No . 324428E j

!

o !

ineet Khetan
roprietor

lembership No.060270
B, Lal bazar Street,
olkata-1

8th May, 2016

For and on behalf of the Board

BARON SUPPLIERS PVT. LTD.

Pradedp biver?

e ) at .w-

Director

Director

BARON SUPPLIERS PVT. LT|

%&M@’W“

"(')

Direct
Director
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inancial Statement

/r As at As at
) /Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
/ / {(Amount in ) {Amount in )
dotes No. - 1
SHARE CAPITAL
a. Authori hare Capital
Number of Equity shares ‘
20,000 (Previous year 20,000) 200,000 200,000
200,000 200,000
b, Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital .
Number of Equity shares fully paid up
10,000 (Previous year 10,000) 100,000 100,000
100,000 100,000
c. Par value per share
Equity shares 10 10
10 10
d. Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding as at the beginning and as at the end of the year
Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
Number of shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 10,000 10,000
Add: Number of shares issued during the year —— -
Less: Number of shares bought back during the year w—— -
Number of shares outstanding as at the end of the year 10,000 10,000

e. The rights,preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of dividend and repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/~ share. Each Shareholder is eligible for one vote per share. The dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors (if any) is subject to the approval of shareholders, expect in case of inferm dividend. In the event of liquidation of the
Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company in proportion to their holding, after distribution of all
preferential amounts.

f. Shares held by holding company and ultimate holding company through self or through subsidiaries or associates
9,800 equity shares of the company are held by holding company "RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited”, balance 200 equity shares are held by 2 (two)
director's of the holding company in representative capacity.

a. Details of shareholders holding more then 5% shares, with voting rights.

As at 31 March, 2016 As at 31 March, 2015
Sl . b 2 o
Name of Equity sharehoiders Number of o : Number of | % holding in that class
No % holding
shares held shares held of shares |
1 |RDB Realty & infrastructure Limited 9,800 98.00 9,800 98.00
As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2016 31st March 2015
(Amount in %) {Amount in %)
Notes No. - 2

RESERVES & SURPLUS
i e. Balance in Statement of Profit and Loss

Opening Balance 7,773,494 4,899,689
Add : Profit during the year 1,215,607 2,873,805
8,989,101 7.773,494
8,989,101 7,773,494
Notes No.-3
LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Term Loan from Bank (Secured) 10,964,574 12,689,248

The loan is secured against first charge over property classified
under inventories and lease rental receivable from the property.
Loan is repayable in 96 equal monthly instaliment of Rs. 2,65,349/-
(incl. interest) starting from 05.11.13 and last instaliment falling due
on 05.10.21. The rate of interest is Base Rate Plus 2.60 %

10,964,574 12,689,248

Notes No. -4
OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Advance against properties ——
Sundry Deposits 2.154,498 2,154,498

2,154,498 2,154,498
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Financial Statement

/’artlculars

As at

31st March 2016
{(Amount in )

As at

31st March 2015
(Amount In T)

tes No. -5
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
From Other Than Bank (Unsecured)

a) Related Parties
b) Others
Add: Interest accrued and due (Net of TDS)

Notes No. -6
TJRADE PAYABLES
Trade Payables *
a)Services
b)Expenses
* The Company s in communication with its suppliers to ascertain the applicability
of “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006", As on the

date of this Balance Sheet the Company has not received any communications
from any of its suppliers regarding the applicability of the Act 1o them.

Notes No. -7
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Book Overdraft from Banks
] Current maturities of Long Term Loan
(Z Interest Accured but not due(from LTB)
Outstanding Statutory Payment
Other Liability

Notes No. -8
SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for Income Tax

Notes No. -9
LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Sundry Deposits

Notes No. - 10
INVENTORIES
Finished Goods
Work in Progress

Notes No. - 11
TRADE RECEIVABLE
(Unsecured, considered good)
Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months

Other Debts

28 No. -12
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and Cash Equivalents :
Balances with Banks
Cash on hand (As certified by the management)

Notes No. - 13
SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
(Unsecured, considered good)
Other Advances

Notes No. - 14
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Income tax advance & TDS
Service Tax Input

8,824,485 8,470,000
710,487 9,634,972 124,485 8,594,485
9,534,972 8,594,485
6,091 -
6,091 -
917,460 -
1,682,689 1,477,987
113,679 132,046
92,813 13,662
3,004,769 2,979,011
5,811,310 4,602,707
350,000 767,000
350,000 767,000
180,125
180,125 -
27,348,515 27.229.870
9,693,519 8,838,864
37,042,034 36,068,734
1,595 1,298
1,595 1,298
323,893 364,098
60,038 383,931 8,307 372,405
383,931 372,405
260,260 238,995
42,600
302,860 238,995
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Financial Statement

/l:artlculars

tes No. - 15
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sales & Services
Construction Activities
Other Charges

Notes No. - 16
OTHER INCOME
Miscellaneous income

Rental income

Interest received on FD/NSC

Notesg No. - 17

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY EXPENSES
Cost of Land
Land development cost
Construction and other Materials
Interest on Project Loan”
Professional Charges

‘ Other Construction Expenses

* Interest paid on loans taken for real estate projects has been included in
the value of inventory in accordance with AS-16 - "Borrowing Costs".

Notes No. - 18
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED
GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRESS
Opening stock
Finished goods
Work in Progress (As certified by the management)

Sub Total (A)

Closing stock
Finished goods
Work in Progress (As certified by the management)
Sub Total (B)
Total (A - B)
Notes No. - 19
FINANCE COSTS
Bank Interest
Bank Charges

[Notes No. - 20
OTHER EXPENSES
Legal and Professional Charges
Business Promotion
Rates & Taxes
Filling Fees
Maintenance Charges
Other Expenses
Auditors Remuneration :
- Statutory Audit Fee
- Tax Audit Fee

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2016 31st March 2015
(Amount in X) {Amount in X)
85,583 1,638,573
85,583 1,639,573
3,882,984 3,875,448
3,882,984 3,675,448
788,430 943,551
50,000
183,870 753,183
973,300 1,746,734
27,229,870 26.476 687
8,838,864 7,845,313
36,068,734 34,32:2,000 |
27,348,515 27,229,870
9,693,519 8,838,864
37,042,034 36,068,734
(973,300) (1,746,734)
1,645,747 1,870,569
202
1,645,747 1,870,771
2,800 -
14,500
4,423 4,400
1,240 2,835
740,243
2,660 225
5,000
5,000 5,000 |
756,366 26,960 |

]
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t'éGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

’A. BASIS OF PREPARATION OFFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India under
the historical cost convention on accrual basis. These financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material
aspects with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

. REVENUE RECOGNITION

a) Revenue from own construction projects are recognised on percentage of completion method. Units for which agreement
for sale is executed till reporting date are considered for it. Revenue recognition starts when 20% of estimated project cost
excluding land and marketing cost is incurred. Further, units for which Deed of Conveyance is executed or possession is
given, revenue is recognised to full extent.

b) Revenue from Joint Venture Development Agreement under work sharing arrangements are recognized on the same
basis as similar to own construction projects independently executed by the company to the extent of the company’s share
in joint venture.

c) Revenue from Construction Contracts are recognised on percentage of completion method measured by reference to the
survey of works done up to the reporting date and certified by the client before finalisation of projects accounts.

d) Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services to customers except otherwise stated.

e) Rental income from assets is recognized for on accrual basis except in case where ultimate collection is considered
doubtful.

f) Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis.

. INVENTORIES

a) Finished Goods: At lower of cost or net realisable value.

b) Work-in-Progress: At lower of cost or net realisable value.
Cost comprises of cost of land and development, material cost including material lying at respective sites, construction
expenses, finance and administrative expenses which contribute to bring the inventory to their present location and
condition.
Provision for obsolescence in inventories is made, wherever required.
Work-in-progress- Real Estate projects (including land inventory): represents cost incurred in respect of unsold  area of
the real estate development projects or costs incurred on projects where revenue is to be recognized.
Work-in-progress- Contractual: represents cost of work done yet to be certified / billed.

. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

i) Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax and value added tax, if any, net of sales return.
i) Rental Income: Rental income is exclusive of service tax.

. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

i) Short term employee benefits:
Short term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, expected cost of ex-gratia etc. are recognized in the period
in which the employee renders the related service.
i) Post-employment benefits
a) Defined Contribution Plan: Employee benefits in the form of Employees State Insurance Corporation and Provident
Fund are considered as defined contribution plan and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss for the period when the contributions to the respective funds are due.




uppliers Private Limited
tes forming part of the Financial Statement

qéGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. BASIS OF PREPARATION OFFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

C.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India under
the historical cost convention on accrual basis. These financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material
aspects with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

All assets and liabifities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in the Schedule lIl to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

a) Revenue from own construction projects are recognised on percentage of completion method. Units for which agreement
for sale is executed till reporting date are considered for it. Revenue recognition starts when 20% of estimated project cost
excluding land and marketing cost is incurred. Further, units for which Deed of Conveyance is executed or possession is
given, revenue is recognised to full extent.

b) Revenue from Joint Venture Development Agreement under work sharing arrangements are recognized on the same
basis as similar to own construction projects independently executed by the company to the extent of the company's share
in joint venture.

¢) Revenue from Construction Contracts are recognised on percentage of completion method measured by reference to the
survey of works done up to the reporting date and certified by the client before finalisation of projects accounts.

d) Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services to customers except otherwise stated.

e) Rental income from assets is recognized for on accrual basis except in case where ultimate collection is considered
doubtful.

f) Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis.

INVENTORIES

a) Finished Goods: At lower of cost or net realisable value.

b) Work-in-Progress: At lower of cost or net realisable vaiue.
Cost comprises of cost of land and development, material cost including material lying at respective sites, construction
expenses, finance and administrative expenses which contribute to bring the inventory to their present {ocation and
condition.
Provision for obsolescence in inventories is made, wherever required.
Work-in-progress- Real Estate projects (including land inventory): represents cost incurred in respect of unsold area of
the real estate development projects or costs incurred on projects where revenue is to be recognized.
Work-in-progress- Contractual: represents cost of work done yet to be certified / billed.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
i) Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax and value added tax, if any, net of sales return.
i) Rental Income: Rental income is exclusive of service tax.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
i) Short term employee benefits:
Short term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, expected cost of ex-gratia etc. are recognized in the period
in which the employee renders the related service.
i) Post-employment benefits

a) Defined Contribution Plan: Employee benefits in the form of Employees State Insurance Corporation and Provident
Fund are considered as defined contribution plan and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss for the period when the contributions to the respective funds are due.
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b) Defined Benefit Plan: Employee benefits in the form of Gratuity is considered as defined benefit plan and are provided
for on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method, as at the Balance Sheet
date as per requirements of Accounting Standard-15 (Revised 2005) on “Employee Benefits”.

i) Actuarial gains/losses, If any, are immediately recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

G. BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of
such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use or sale.
Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

H. TAXATION

a) Current Tax: Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year in
accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Minimum Alternative Tax credit available under section
115JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961 will be accounted in the year in which the benefits are claimed.

b) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognised subject to consideration of prudence on the basis of timing differences being the
differences between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one
or more subsequent periods using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted as on the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is reasonable
certainty that the asset will be realised in future.

I. PROVISIONS/CONTINGENCIES
A provision is recognised for a present obligation as a result of past events if it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based on
best estimate of the amount required to settle the obiigation as at the Balance Sheet date. Liabilities which are material and

whose future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty are treated as contingent liability and are disclosed by
way of note.

22. EARNINGS PER SHARE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS-20

As at As at
Earnings per share is computed as under:- 31st March, 31st March,
2016 2015
Profit available for Equity Shareholders (A) (Rs.) 1,215,607 2,873,805
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding (B) (Nos.) 10,000 10,000
Earr.\inqs x?er share (Face value of T 10/~ per Equity Share) 12156 587 38
Basic & Diluted (A/B) (Rs.) |

23. SEGMENT REPORTING:-
The Business of the company fall under a single segment i.e. Development of Real Estate & Infrastructure”. In view of the
general classification notified by Central Government in exercise of power conferred u/s 211(3C) of Companies Act, 1956 for
company operating in a single segment, the disclosure reguirement as per AS — 17 on ‘Segment Reporting' is not applicable to

the company. The Company’s business is mainly concentrated in simitar geographical, political and economical conditions,
hence disclosure for Geographical segment is aiso not required.

24. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS - 18:-
The company had no enterprise under its control during the year under review.
The company had no transactions with any Key Management Personal & other relatives :-

4e Person/Entities able to exercise control by virtue of shareholding:-
Sl. No. Name Designation /Relationship
1 RDB REALTY & INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED | Holding Company

(iiiy Disclosure of transactions between the Company and related parties and the status of outstanding balances.

Amount in X.)
Enterprises over which KMP &
Holding Company their relatives have significant
Nature of Transactions influence
As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2016 March, 2015 March, 2016 March, 2015

Interest Paid - 805,234 — -
Unsecured Loan Received — 1,080,000 -
Unsecured Loan Repaid 8,267,965 -

Closing Balance
Unsecured Loan Taken - —
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"Fin the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated value if realised in ordinary

" course of business. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary.
There is no contingent liability except stated and informed by the Management.

. 26. Contingent Liability — Nil (P. Y. Nil)

27. Previous year's figures have been rearranged and regrouped wherever necessary so as to make them comparable with those
of the current year.

28. Note 1 to 27 forms an integral part of financial statements

For Vineet Khetan & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Registration No . 3244288 BARON SUPPLIERS PVT. LTD- BARON SUPPLIERS PVT. LTD.
. L
'Y w
4 g (i et &P Hulas 7

‘ Director - Director
Vineet Khetan
Proprietor Director Director
Membership No.060270

3B, Lal bazar Street,
Kolkata - 700 001
28th May, 2016




Baron Suppliers Private Limited
"BIKANER BUILDING"
8/1, LAL BAZAR STREET, KOLKATA - 700 001

Financial Year 2015-18
Assessment Year 2016-17
P/A No. AACCBI286A
COMPUTATION OF TOTAL INCOME (31.03.2016)
Amount Amount Amount
RS. Rs. Rs.
INCOME FROM BUSINESS
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax as per Profit & Loss A/C 1,566,454
Add : Depreciation as per Companies Act Nil
interest on Borrowed Capital Nil
Donation Paid Nil
Maintenance Exp. Not Allowable 740,243 740,243
2,306,697
Less :Depreciation Allowable as per Income Tax Act Nil
Rent Considered Separately 3,882,984 3,882,984
(1,576,287) (1,576,287)
Less : Brought forwards loss Nil
Income From Business (1,576,287)
INCOME FROM HOUSE PROPERTY
Gross Annual Value 3,882,984
Less : Municipal Tax Nil
Net Annual Vaiue 3,882,984
g’/ Less :Deduction Under Section 24
K Standard Deduction @ 30.00% 1,164,895
Interest on Borrowed Capital Nil 2,718,089
GROSS TOTAL INCOME 1,141,802
NET INCOME 1,141,802
COMPUTATION OF TAX, -
Income Tax @ 30.00% 342,541
Add : Surcharge Nil
Add : E.Cess + SHEC @ 3.00% 10,276
Total Tax Payble 352,817
Add : Interest Paid U/S 2348 5,553
UIS 234C 4,676 10,229
Total Tax & Interest Payable 363,046
Less : Self Tax Paid Nit
TDS Receivable 260,260
Tax Payable / (Refundable) 102,786
BROUGHT FORWARD LOSSES
A.Y.|B/ILOSS SET OFF BALANCE
2012-2013 - 0.00 -
2013-2014 - 0.00 0
TOTAL - - -
Interest Working
Tax 352,817
TDS 260,260
92,557
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Apr'16-Sep'16
15% 45% 75% 100% 100%
PAYABLE 13,884 41,651 ‘ 69,418 92,557 92,557
PAID - - - - - .
Sall 13,884 41,651 69,418 92 557 g2 557
int. @1% 417 1,250 2,083 926 5553
Int Ufs 234C """ 4.676.00 | IntU/s 2348
MAT U/S 115 JB
Book Profit 1566454.12
18.5% of Book Profit 289794
Profit as per Normal Provision 342,541
Tax Payble as per Normal Provision 102,786

As per Computation above

o RO S PN T
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’S REPORT

To,
The Members of
RDB LEGEND INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s. RDB LEGEND
INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss and cash flow
statements for the year ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The company’s board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. This responsibility also includes the
maintenance of the accounting records in accordance of the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies
making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control . that werc operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act. the auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the rules made thereunder.

o — '-/-
Office ¢ 24, View Towers, Lakdikapool, Hyderabad - 500 004. Ph : 040-23307651, Telefax : 23317589 Mobile : 9849023688
e-mail : penumarthico@gmail.com; sreekrishnap@rediffmail.com
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. We have conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India: in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31. 201 6: in the case of the statement of the
Profit and Loss Account, of the profit/ loss for the year ended on that date; and in
the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order")
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act ., we Report that :

Office : B-24, View Towers, Lakdikapool, Hyderabad - 500 004. Ph - 040-23307651, Telefax : 23317589 Mobile 9849023688
e-mail : penumarthico@gmail.com: sreekrishnap@rediffmail.com
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a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to

the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our
audit;

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by

the Company so far as appears from our examination of those books:;

¢) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and cash flow statements

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the balance sheet, statement of profit and loss and cash flow

statement comply with the Accounting Standards Specified under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 Of the Companies
(Accounts)Rules 2014 : and

¢)  On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on

March 31, 2016, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 6 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in

accordance with the Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s ) Rules

2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us:

i)  The company has no pending litigations which may impact the financial
position in the financial statements. '

ii) The company has no long term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable loss,

iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be
transferred to the investors Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.

Place: Hyderabad For PENUMARTHI & CO.,
Date: 20.05.2016 SRTH Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 02634S)

P. Sree Krishna
Partner
(Membership No. 01 8908)

Office : B-24, View Towers, Lakdikapool, Hyderabad - 500 004. Ph : 040-23

e-mail : penumarthico@gmail.com:; sreekrishnap@rediffmail.com

307651, Telefax : 23317589 Mobile : 9849023688
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¢ Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of
RDB Legend Infrastructure Private Limited on the stand alone financial statements
for the year Ended on 31.03.2016. We report that:

(1) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars
including quantitative details and the situation of the Fixed Assets.

(b) The Fixed Assets of the Company have been physically verified by the
management at the end of the year, which is reasonable. and no material
discrepancies between books and the physical inventory have been noticed.

(ii) (a)The company is maintaining proper records of the inventory. The company
has been conducting physical verifications of same. The discrepancies
noticed on verification between the physical and the book records were not
material.

(b)The procedure followed for physical verification by the management is
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and nature of
its business. :

© The company is maintaining proper records of the inventory. The
discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical and the book
records were not material.

(iii)  The Company has not granted any loans secured or unsecured to Companies,
firms or other parties listed in their register maintained under Section 189 of
the Companies Act 2013.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations give to us
the Company has adequate internal control procedures commensurate with
the size of the Company and the nature of its business for the purchase of
goods and other assets and for sale of goods. During the course of the audit,
we have not observed any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in
internal control system of the company.

(v)  Inour opinion and accordin g to the information and explanations given to us,
the company has not accepted any deposits from public which attracts the
provisions of section 76 of the Companies Act 2013.

(vi)  We have broadly reviews the books of accounts relating to materials, labor
and other items of cost maintained by the company pursuant to the Rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of the cost records
under sub section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and we are
of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been

made and maintained.
/ b4
/ o

Reg. No.\:,
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e-mail : penumarthico@gmail.com; sreekrishnap@rediffmail.com



PENUMARTHI & CO.
O‘}( CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(vii)(a)  The Company is regular in depositing the statutory dues except in respect
of Service Tax and TDS. On our verification and explanations given to us
the company has to remit an amount of Rs. 51.56 Lakhs towards the service
tax Collected and Rs. 49.19 Lakhs towards the TDS made from the
contractors and salary employees etc., to the credit of the Central Govt.,
Account. These amounts are outstanding as at the last day of the financial
year, in respect of Service Tax the delay is for a period of one year and in
respect of TDS delay is for period of more than three months from the date
they become payable to the best of our information.

(vii) (b) Further, since the Central Government has till date not prescribed the
amount of cess payable under section 441 A of the Companies Act, 1956, we
are not in a position to comment upon the regulatory or otherwise of the
company depositing the same.

(viii) In our opinion, the accumulated losses of the company are not more than fifty
percent of its net worth. Further the company has incurred cash losses of Rs.
434.55 Lakhs during the financial year covered by our Audit and
immediately preceding financial year.

(ix)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of the dues to a financial
institution, and banks.

(x)  The company has not given any guarantee to any financial institution
prejudicial to the interest of the company.

(xi)  In our opinion, the term loans have been applied for the purpose for which
they were raised.

(xii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by

the company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

PLACE: HYDERABAD For PENUMARTHI & CO.,

DATE: 20.05.2016 / P ’fi_qw\ Chartered Accountants
\(«{‘:‘\ MY L. 7 f:’ i
LS e (P. SREE KRISHNA)
e Eot Partner M No 018908

Firm No. 0026348

Office : B-24, View Towers, Lakdikapool, Hyderabad - 500 004, Ph : 040-23307651, Telefax : 23317589 Mobile : 9849023688
e-mail : penumarthico@gmail.com; sreekrishnap@rediffmail.com



RDB LEGEND INFRASTRUCTURE PVT LTD
D.NO.6-3-1238, Legend Apartments, Rajbhavan Road, Somajiguda, Hyderabad-500082.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st Mar, 2016 ( In Rupees)
Note As at For the Year
No. 31st Mar, 2016 31st Mar, 2015
| EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders' Funds 1
a) Share Capital 60,100,000 60,100,000
b) Reserves & Surplus 172,187,080 232,287,080 222,937 147 283,037,147
2.Share application money pending allotment - 4,941,000
3. Non Current Liabilities 2
a) Long Term Borrowings 707,765 2,654,883
b) Other Long Term Liabilities 707,765 2,654,883
4. Current Liabilities 3 i
a) Short Term Borrowings 325,209,974 335,980,071
b) Trade Payables 108,943,723 95,718,977
¢) Other Current Liabilities 1,994,303,800 1,648,063,111
d) Short Term Provisions 85,600 2,428,543,097 -— 2,079,762,159
Total 2,661,537,942 2,370,395,190
Il ASSETS
1. Non Current assets
a) Fixed Assets 4
i) Tangible Assets 14,887,170 16,290,402
i) Intangible Assets - -
iii) Capital Work In Progress — 14,887,170 - 16,290,402
b) Non Current Investments 5 - -
¢) Long Term Loans & Advances 6 461,741,360 454,318,763
2. Current Assets j
a) Inventories 1,876,011,646 1,614,388,668
b) Trade Receivables 243,210,664 237,134,134
c) Cash & Cash Equivalents 15,857,429 3,885,238
e) Short Term Loans and Advances 94,468 9,468
f) Other Current Assets 49,735,205 2,184,909,412 44,368,517 1,899,786,025
Total 2,661,537,942 2,370,395,190
The Notes forming part of the Financial 15
Statement

.

In terms of our report attached.

For PENUMARTHI&CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm No.002634S

o s
ot P B.Rajasekhar Reddy
Whole Time Director
P.SREE KRISHNA
Partner

Membership No.018908
B-24,View Towers, Lakdikapool,
Hyderabad-500004

20th May,2016

Vishal
Company Secretary

ushal




Particulars

As at
31st Mar, 2016

As at
31st Mar, 2015

b) Reserves & Surplus
Securities Premium
Opening Balance

240,000,000

240,000,000

Closing Balance
Profit & loss Account
Opening Balance (17,062,853) (4,665,797)
As per annexed account (50,750,067) (12,397,056)
172,187,080 222,937,147
Notes No. "2" Non Current Liabilities
a) Long Term Borrowings
From ICICI Bank - —
From Kotak Mahindra Bank m== -
From Kotak Mahindra Bank - II 707,765 2,654,883
From L&T Finance Ltd g =
707,765 2,654,883
b) Others Long Term Liabilities :
Security Deposit - =
Advance Against Properties i =
Notes No. "3" Current Liabilities
a) Short Term Borrowings =
a) Related Parties 46,604,691 216,710,489
(Includes interest Rs.31,28,271/-, Previous year Rs.32,54.615/-)
b) Body Corporates 278,605,283 119,269,582
325,209,974 335,980,071
b) Trade Payables -
Sundry Creditors: :
- Goods 51,972,954 46,346,746
- Services 47,275,572 43,106,614
- Expenses 9,695,198 6,265,617
108,943,723 95,718,977
c) Other Current Liabilities
Advance From Customers 1290479865 1133175174
Advance received against property 684,795,000 491,545,000
Rental Deposit Received 6,627,785 6,627,785
Current Liabilities 4,941,000
Interest Accrued But Not Due on Loans - : -
Statutory Liabilities 7,460,150 16,715,152
1,994,303,800 1,648,063,111
d) Short Term Provisions
Provision for Income Tax - -—
Income Tax Payable for Earlier Years 85,600 -

85,600




RDB LEGEND INFRASTRUCTURE PVT LTD

Notes to the Financial Statement (In Rupees)
As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar, 2016 31st Mar, 2015
Notes No. 1 Shareholders' Funds
a) Share Capital
Authorised
8500000Equity Shares of * 10/- each 85,000,000 85,000,000
Previous year 10000000Equity Shares of * 10/- each o
1500000, 9% Optinally Convertible Preference Shares 10/- each 15,000,000 15,000,000
Previous Year , NIL
100,000,000 100,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up: 60,100,000 60,100,000
60,10,000 Equity Shares of * 10/- each S
60,100,000 60,100,000

i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Equity shares with voting rights Closing Balance Closing Balance
As on 31st Mar, 2016
- Number of shares 6,010,000 6,010,000
- Amount (*) 60,100,000 60,100,000
Year ended 31 March, 2015 =
- Number of shares 6,010,000 6,010,000
- Amount (') 60,100,000 60,100,000

ii) Details of shares held by the holding company, the ultimate holding company, their subsidiaries and associates:

Particulars Name of the Company Number of Equity Shares Number of Equity Shares
Period As on 31st Mar, 2016 For the Year 31st Mar, 2015
Holding Company RDB Reality Infrastructure | 3,065,100 3,065,100
Ultimate Holding Company None s -
Subsidiaries of the Holding Company | None - -
Associates of the Holding Company None -— —
Subsidiaries of the ultimate None -—- -
Associates of the ultimate None - ---

(iv) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

iii) Arrears of fixed cumulative dividends on preference shares as at 31st Mar, 2016 NIL/- (As at 31 March, 2015 NIL)

As on 31st Mar, 2016 As on 31st Mar, 2015
0, - - i 0 - -
Name of shareholder Equity shares with voting rights Number of % ol Number of % holding in
that class of that class of
shares held shares held
shares : shares
RDB Reality Infrastructure Ltd 3,065,100 51% 3,065,100 51%
Legend Estates Private Limited 2,944 900 49% 2,944 900 49%

(v) Shares Reserved for Issue under option As at 31st Mar, 2016 are NIL (Previous Year NIL)
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Particulars

As at

31st Mar, 2016

As at

31st Mar, 2015

Notes No. "5" Non Current Investments
Long Term investment in - Non Trade

Unquoted Equity Shares Face Value
£ 10
£ 10
£ 10

TOTAL
Aggregate book cost of unquoted investments Rs.

Notes No. "6" Long Term Loans & Advances
Capital Advances

Total A

Deposits with Land Owners

Deposits - Others

Preliminary Expenses to the extent Not W/Off
Total B

Grand Total (A + B)
Notes No. "7" Current Assets
a) Inventories
Work In Progress(As Certified By Management)

b) Trade Receivables
(Unsecured, considered good)
a) Exceeding Six months
b) Other Debts
Total A

Grand Total
c¢) Cash & Cash Equivalents

i) Balances with Banks
Current Accounts

ii) Cash in Hand
Cash in hand (As certified by management)

iii) Fixed Deposits
Fixed Deposit Account(Pledged With Bank As Security)
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit

d) Short Term Loans and Advances
Advances Recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be
received
a) Related Parties
b) Others

e) Other Current Assets
Advance to suppliers & Others
Advance Against Service Taxes
e-Self Assessment Tax & TDS Receivable

Nos. Cost (") Nos. Cost ()
460,101,172 453,576,172
1,640,188 742,591
461,741,360 454,318,763
461,741,360 - 454,318,763

1,876,011,646

1,876,011,646

243,210,664

243,210,664

243,210,664

14,559,940

1,297,489

]

15,857,429

94,468

94,468

25,944,841
23,208,444

581,920

49,735,205

1,614,388,668

1,614,388,668

237,134,134

237,134,134

237,134,134

3,110,223

775,015

3,885,238

9,468

_ 9,468

13,116,331
24,799,822
6,452,364

44,368,517
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RDB LEGEND INFRASTRUCTURE PVT LTD
D.NO.6-3-1238, Legend Apartments, Rajbhavan Road, Somajiguda, Hyderabad-500082.
PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st Mar, 2016 (In Rupees)
Note As at As at
No. 31st Mar 2016 31st Mar 2015

1 REVENUE

Revenue From Operations 8 6,837,649 131,539,581

Other Income 9 1,951,014 836,814

Total Revenue 8,788,663 132,376,395
2 EXPENSES

Construction activity expenses 10 306,892,615 266,229,907

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work in Progress

& Stock in Trade i i (261,622,978) (135,248,958)

Employee Benefits & Expenses 12 4,671,981 9,218,139

Finance Costs 13 78,078 2,078,096

Depreciation 1,604,191 (148,763)

Others Expenses 14 2,223,831 2,645,030

Preliminary expenses — o

Total Expenses 53,847,718 144,773,451

PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE TAX (45,059,055) (12,397,056)
3 TAX EXPENSES

Less: Provision For Taxation

a) Current Tax - -

b) Tax for Earlier Year 5,691,012
PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAX (50,750,067) (12,397,056)
Profit/(L oss) From Discontinuing Operations

Provision for Income Tax Written Back 5,605,412 -

4 PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD (45,144,655) (12,397,056)
EARNINGS PER SHARE (OF * PER SHARE)
Basic (7.51) (2.086)
Diluted (7.51) (2.08)
The Notes forming part of the Financial Statement 15
In terms of our report attached.
For PENUMARTHI&CO For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm No.002634S
G
-Rajasekhar Reddy
Whole Time Director
.SREE KRISHNA
Partner
Membership No.018908
B-24 View Towers, Lakdikapool, Vishal Kaushal
Hyderabad-500004 Company Secretary
20th May,2016




RDB LEGEND INFRASTRUCTURE PVT LTD

Notes to the Financial Statement (In Rupees)
As at As at
31st Mar, 2016 31st Mar, 2015
Notes No. - "8" Revenue From Operations
a) Sales of Construction 6,837,649 431,535,501
6,837,649 131,539,581
Notes No. - "9" Other Income
a) Misc. Income 1,917,734 836,814
b) Interest Received 33,280 =)
1,951,014 836,814
Notes No. - "10" Construction activity expenses
i) Registration Charges 0 0
ii) Construction and Other Materials 141,360,420 119,740,672
iii) Labour Charges 90,360,013 69,649,095
iv) Other Construction Expenses 31,939,900 41,756,251
v) Interest Paid on Loan 40,918,782 33,436,289
vi) Profession Charges 2,313,500 1,647,600
306.892.615 266,229,907

Notes No. - "11" Changes in Inventories of Finised Goods,

Work in Progress & Stock in Trade
Work In Progress

Total (A)
B) Closing Stock (As Certified by the Management)
A) Work In Progress
Total (B)

(A-B)

Notes No. - "12" Employee Benefits Expenses

Salary & Bonus 4,671,981 9,218,139
4,671,981 9,218,139
Notes No. - "13" Finance Costs
Bank Charges 78,078 100,365
Interest Paid to Others 0 1.977.731
78.078 2,078,096 |
Notes No. - "14" Others Expenses
a) Adminstration Expenses
Statutory Audit Fees 150,000 150,000
Internet Charges 182,223 221,933
Filing Fees 0 43,900
Professional Charges 540,000 0
Rates & Taxes 582,173 246,902
General Expenses 682,705 360,374
Total (A) 2.137.101 1.023.109
b) Marketing Expenses e
Advertisement & Publicity 86,730 1,621,921
Total (B) 86,730 1,621,921
Grand Total (A + B) 2,223,831 2,645,030

1,614,388,668

1,479,139,710

1,614,388,668

1,479,139,710

1,876,011,646

1,614,388,668

1,876,011,646

1,614,388,668

(261.622,978)

(135,248.958)




RDB LEGEND INFRASTRUCTURE PVT LTD

D.NO.6-3-1238, Legend Apartments, Rajbhavan Road, Somajiguda, Hyderabad-500082.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016 (In Rupees)

For the year ended 31st For the year ended
March, 2016 31st March, 2015
A. |[Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit/ (Loss) before Tax, & Extraordinary ltems -50750067 -12397056
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 1604191 -148763
Preliminary expenses 0 0
Interest Income -33280 -
Interest Paid 40918782 42489693| 35414019.8 35,265.257
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes -8260374 22,868,201
Adjustments for : :
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories -261622978 (135,248,958)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables -18368895 (106,425,711)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Creditors and Other Payables 359551035.2 274,006,620
Income Tax paid -581920 (6,452,364)
Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities 70,716,868 48,747,789
B. [Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Acquisition of Fixed Assets -200959 (271,901)
Interest Received 33280 -
Net Cash Inflow from Investing Activities (167,679) (271,901)
C. |[Cash Flow from Financial Activities
Interest paid -40918782 (35,414,020)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Long Term Borrowings -1947118 (2,177,992)
Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital - -
Share Application Money Received -4941000 (39,660,000)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings -10770097 29,343,083
Net Cash Inflow from Financial Activities (58,576,997) (47,908,929)
Net Cash Inflow/ (Outflow) during the year (A+B+C) 11,972,192 566,959
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 3,885,238 3,318,278
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 15,857,429 3,885,238

I) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in

Standard - 3 on Cash Flow Statement issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Il) Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged wherever necessary.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

the Accounting

In terms of our report attached.

For PENUMARTHI & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm No.002634S

P.SREE KRISHNA

Partner

Membership No.018908
B-24,View Towers, Lakdikapool,
Hyderabad-500004

20th May,2016

Vishal Kaushal
Company Secretary

B.Rajasekhar Reddy
Whole Time Director
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15.

A.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all the material aspects with Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost convention on an accrual basis in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP). The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the company except otherwise stated and are consistent with
those used in previous year.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the Balance
Sheet date and amounts of income and expenses during the year. Examples of such estimates include contract costs expected to
be incurred to complete construction contracts, provision for doubtful debts, income taxes and future obligations under employee
retirement benefit plans. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The effects of adjustment arising from revisions made to
the estimates are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which such revisions are made.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

a) Revenue from own construction projects are recognised on percentage of completion method. Units for which agre=ment for
sale is executed till reporting date are considered for it. Revenue recognition starts when 20% of estimated project cost
excluding land and marketing cost is incurred. Further, units for which Deed of Conveyance is executed or possession is
given, revenue is recognised to full extent.

b) Rental income from assets is recognized for an accrual basis except in case where ultimate collection is considered doubtful.

c) Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis.

FIXED ASSETS
Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price
and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

DEPRECIATION

(i) Depreciation on Tangible assets is provided under Straight-Lane method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the
management, which are charged under written down value method (WDV). Depreciation on additions/deletions during a period is
charged on prorata basis from the date of addition or deletion, as the case may be.

(i) The Management estimated the useful life of fixed assets as follows.

Buildings 30 Years
Plant and Machinery 10 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years
Computers 3 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years
Vehicles - Motor cars 8 Years
Vehicles - Scooters and mopeds 10 Years
INVENTORIES

a) Finished Goods: At lower of cost or net realisable value.

b) Work-in-Progress: At lower of cost or net realisable value.
Cost comprises of cost of land and development, material cost including material lying at respective sites, construction
expenses, finance and administrative expenses which contribute to bring the inventory to their present location and condition.

Provision for obsolescence in inventories is made, wherever required.

v
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G.

16.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
i) Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax and value added tax, if any, net of sales return.
ii) Rental Income: Rental income is exclusive of service tax.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
As on 31st March, 2016, there is no liability towards Employees benefit.
Employees Provident Fund is been covered from the Financial Year 14-15. The arrears of Rs.5,40,229/- and for 15-16 have
been paid the next financial year. No provisions are made in this fincial year. Constribution to State Employees Insurance
Corporation has not been made till the financial year 15-16.

Short term benefits and post employment benefits are accounted in the period during which the services have been
termincated.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of
such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

TAXATION

a) Current Tax: Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year in accordance
with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Minimum Alternative Tax credit available under section 115JB of the Income
Tax Act, 1961 will be accounted in the year in which the benefits are claimed.

b) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognised subject to consideration of prudence on the basis of timing differences being the
differences between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or
more subsequent periods using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted as on the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that the
asset will be realised in future.

PROVISIONS/CONTINGENCIES

A provision is recognised for a present obligation as a result of past events if it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based on
best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation as at the Balance Sheet date. Liabilities which are material and
whose future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty are treated as contingent liability and are disclosed by
way of note.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the same exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment is charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognised in prior
accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of the recoverable amount.

RDB Legend Infrastructure Private Limited
The Notes forming part of the Financial Statement
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1. Earnings per share in accordance with AS-20

Profit available for Equity Shareholders (A) ®) (123,97,056)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding (B) (Nos.) 60,10,000
Earnings per share (Face value of ¥ 10/- per Equity Share) (2.06)
Basic & Diluted (A/B) ) :

2. Segment Reporting:-
The Business of the company fall under a single segment i.e. Development of Real Estate & Infrastructure”, In view of the general
classification notified by Central Government in exercise of power for company operating in a single segment, the disclosure
requirement as per AS - 17 on ‘Segment Reporting’ is not applicable to the company. The Company's business is mainly
concentrated in similar geographical, political and economical conditions: hence disclosure for Geographical segment is also not
required.

3. Related Party Disclosures in accordance with AS - 18:-

RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited

(ii) Other related parties with whom the company had transactions:-
A) Key Management Personnel & their relatives:

Managing Director

Jt Managing Director

Director
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Legend Estates Private Limited

(iii) Disclosure of transactions between the Company and related parties and the status of outstanding balances as on
31-Mar-2016 (and Previous year figures have been gi in brack Amount in (Rs.)

Interest Paid 3,58,272
Directors’ Remuneration - Nil (Previous | | 4800000 @ ¢
year Rs.16 lakhs each) to Sane e i
Mr.Nageshwara Rao, Mr.Kapel Baldawa ’
and Mr.Rajasekhar Reddy) Nil
: = 35,00,000 |  15.60,632
Unsecured Loan Received 64,303 |- 105.00.000 15.00.000
; . 5l BTI51EA9
Unsecured Loan Repaid 40.35,827 : 4?’.77]000- .”17,0&000
Advance Received SRR e el NS
Refund of Advance Received
Closing Balance on March 31st
Remuneration Payable 1.5-. 42, 400:
Advance Taken e
Loan Given
~ 4061430 ( 230,04,089| 14859,425
Unisacured Loan Taken 448178 |  314.97.088 | 14659425

4. In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated value if realised in ordinary
course of business. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary.
There is no contingent liability except as stated and informed by the Management.

5. The Company is in communication with its suppliers to ascertain the applicability of “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006". As on the date of this Balance Sheet the Company has not received any communications from any of its
suppliers regarding the applicability of this Act to them.

6. During the year 2013-2014, the Company has availed the term loan facility of Rs. 52.92 Lakhs from Kotak Mahindra Bank
Limited against which against the company hypothecated the crane purchased out of the term loan availed.

7. During the year 2012-2013, the Company has availed the Vehicle loan facility of Rs.4.36 Lakhs from L & T finance against which
against the company hypothecated the vehicle purchased out of the term loan availed. This loan has been satisfactorily closed
during the financial year.
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8.

Secured by way of
hypothecation of
equipments

Details of secured Loans with repayments

Equipments
Finance

Kotak
Mahindra
Bank

The Loan is
Repayable in
35 Monthly
Intstalments of
" 1,81,825/-
starting from
30-Sep-13 and
last instalment
falling due on
20-July-16.

The applicable
rate of interest
is 13.16%

707765

2654883.46
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The Notes forming part of the Financial Statement
9. During the year the compnay has not alloted any share to the existing share holders.
10.  The inventory quantity and value is as per the certificate given by the management
11.  Percentage of the completion of the construction is as per the management information.

12. Rs.5,19,653.00 demanded as interest on delayed payment of tds to central government account made by IT Dept. not providing

in the books of accouts.

13. Rs.49.19 lakhs outstanding as at the the end of the year ,deducted during the year on account of Tax Deuction at source on
Salaries, Contractor Payments, Interest , Commission is yet to be deposited with the Central Government. The Company is in

process ofdepositing the same in the account of the Central Government

14. Rs 51.56 lakhs Service Tax payble as at the end of the year on advances received from the customers and on Bills/payments
made to Contractors is yet to be deposited with the Central Government.The Company is in process of depositing in the account

of the Central Governmenet

15. The previous year figures have been rearranged and regrouped wherever necessary ,so as they are comparable to the current

year figures

16. The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016 had been prepared as per the then applicabie, Schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013, the financial statement for the year ended Mar 31, 2016, the previous year have also been reclassified /
regrouped to confirm to his year's classification. The adoption of Schedule IIl for previous year figures does not impact

recognition and measurement principles followed for preparation of financial statements.

For Penumarthi & Co ; = nd on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regd. No. 002634S

s g,f/_,

Kapel Baldawa B.Rajasekhar Reddy
P/Sree Krishna Whole Time Director Qva Whole Time Director
\h!

s

artner
Membership No. 18908
Vishal Kaushal
Company Secretary
Hyderabad
The 20th day of May 2016
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